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Directors’ report

easylet ple is incorporated as a public
Emited compary and is registered in
England with the registered number
3959649, easyjet plc's registered office
is Hangar 89, tondon Luton Adrport,
Bedfordshire LU2 9PF,

The Directors present the Annual
report and accounts for the year
ended 30 September 2009, Beferences
10 ‘easyjet’, the ‘Group’, the ‘Comparny’,
‘we, or ‘our’ are ta sasylet plc or 1o
easyjet plc and its subsidiary companies
where appropnate.

Pages 01 to 55, indusive. of this Anrual
report comprise the Directors’ report
that has been drawn up and presented
n accordance with English company
law and the liabitues of the Directors in
connection with that report shall be
subject 10 the limitations and restictions
previded by such law.
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OVERVIEW
2009 BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Results at a glance

2009 2008 Change
Total revenue (£ milion) 2,667 2,363 129%
Profit before tax— underlyng' (£ milion) 43.7 1234 (64.5)%
Profit before tax— reported (£ million} 54.7 1102 (50:4y%
Pre-tax margin — underiying (%) 1.6% 5.2% {36)ppt
Returm on equity - reported (%) 5.5% 6.8% (1.3)ppt
Basic EPS — reported (pence) 16.9 198 (14.6)%

Highlights

+ Total revenue per seat up 10.9% (4.1% at constant currency),
driven by the strength of the easyJet network, competitor capacity
reduction of around 6%, strong ancillary revenue performance
and a 2.6% sector length increase

7 Passenger numbers up 3.4% to 45.2 million and load factor
improved by 1.4ppt to 85.5%

+ Underlying profit before tax' of £43.7 million delivered in line with
expectation. The £79.4 million reduction in underlying pre-tax profit
compared to the prior year is driven by a unit fuel cost increase
equivalent to £86.1 million and interest income lower by £30.5 million

+ Operating costs? per seat {excluding fuel and currency movement)
increased by 3.9% for the full year. Total underlying cost per seat’
(excluding fuel and currency movement) up 6.2% partly driven by
increased sector length, planned lower aircraft utilisation during
the winter and a £30.5 million reduction in interest income

7 Significant progress on cost reduction initiatives: 19 expensive
aircraft exited from the fleet; systems implemented; renegotiation
of our maintenance arrangements with SRT to deliver savings of
around £175 million over the 11 year life of the contract

¥ easylJet’s position in European short-haul aviation has strengthened
with market share gains in a number of valuable markets such as
Paris, London Gatwick, Milan and Madrid and over a 10% increase
in slots at capacity constrained airports

= Sufficient resources in place through a combination of undrawn
committed facilities and surplus cash to fund future aircraft
deliveries for at least the next 18 months

= Forward bookings broadly in line with prior year

ate ¥ Undertying financial performance exchades an £H.0 miton profit on the disposal of tree aigraft in 2009, and £12.9 m2on of costs associated
with the imegration of GB Airwiys i 2008,
Nozte 2: Exclides interest income.
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easyJet AT A GLANCE

During 2009 we have
delivered a resilient financial
performance.

By building strong positions

at major airports in key
markets such as London

Gatwick, Milan, Madrid and

Paris we have developed
Europe’s premier air
transport network.

114 airports
27 countries
- Aberdeen - Bucharest - Gran Cavana -Mageva {Funchal) - Porta
- Abcarme (Oropen) {Las Paimag ~Madrid - Prague
— Akmera = Budapest —Grencbie —Magorea (2aima) - Rhodes
- Amsterdam - Caglan Gardea) -~ Harmburg —Malaga ~ Rome Campno
- Casablanca - Helsinki i
Agiunas =Maka —Rome Fumicino
- Athens ?ma N Hurgnada ~Manchester ~ Reowarieri
- Barcelona - A (f-_d:r) foza ~Marrakech - Salzirg
~Ban Colegeliomn  ensonuck ~Marsetie —Samoriei
- BasehMuhouse- Copenhugen Imvemess (Provence) ~ Sharmn Bl Sheikh
Freiburg —Corls  _istapu-Sbiha  -Menorca (Mahon)  _gg0y
« Belfast - Corsica {Ajccio} ~Mian {nase — Skt
Intermational - Corgica (Jasm2) — MEan Malpansa — Si0c
- Serin - Creie (Herakbon)  —Kictia _ Mortoelier (Amdnz)
S‘.:hoewe'd - Cypaus (Larmaca) —Munich - Tallin
- Samz ~Cyprus (Panhoy) -~ Kuwsamo — Mo ~Tanger
‘alib” - Dalsran —LaRocheie — s - Terante Soutn
- Simngram -Dortmune ~Nartes - Thessolorid
- Bodrum - Dubrewnix - MNaples - Toulouse
~ Bordea . - East Midlands —Newcastle ~ Tune
= Jourremouth ~ Edinburgn _hue o Valenga
- Arisiol -faro - Ofwa (Sardinia) - ;‘&r;ce *arco
- ~Fuerteventura -
= Brusyels ~Geneva — London Gatwick, _ z:!:gl(::z)e —Vienna
oo - Gibrafar - London buon Gate - Warsaw
(Q‘mg)‘ - Glasgow —LondonSiarsted  _ pviy Oty - Zurich
~ Prsa (Tuscary)
We are presentin 37 of the
top S0 European airports and
CHAR l S 269 milion peopie live within
60 minutes drive from an aiport
REMOVED served by casylet
We have presence on 45 of the
fop 100 European routes, more
than any other carmier,

422 routes, 114 airports.
27 countries.
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6.5% market share.
45 milion passengers.

181 aircraft situated in 20 bases.

50% of passengers originate
outside the UK.
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REMOVED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In a tough economic
environment, our resilient
performance is a testament
to the quality of our
business model.
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Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to report that your Company has delivered a resilient
performance in what has been one of the most challenging trading
environments for many years, Weak consumer confidence, combined
with fuel and currency volatility, has made for an uncertain business cimate
in general this year, but especially so for aidines.

Against this backdrop, easylet is one of the few airlines anywhere to remain
proiitable this year with undertying pre-tax orofits of £44 million, compared
ta £123 million last year. These resuits were driven primarily through good
revenue perforrmance offsetting the £86 million unit increase in fuel costs and
£31 million reduction in interest incorme. We also took advantage of capacity
auts by other carners to advance our position in the European short-haul
market, gaining share [n important markets such as iifan, Paris, Madrid and
London Gatwick and increasing our stot portfolic at congested arports

by over 10%.

Business model and strategy

[n a tough economic environment, easylet’s continued resilient performance is
atestament to the quality of its business model, Europe’s premier ar transport
network, cur strong customer proposition and service delivery are linked to a
highly efficient operating model that is predicated on simplicity and low cost.

As part of the annual strategy process, easylet’s Board has agreed a fleet plan
that will enable your Company to deliver growth of around 7.5% per annum'
over the next five years. This fleet plan gives easyjet the ability o take
advantage of the substantial commercial opportunities apparent in European
short-haul aviation, whilst maximising margns and defivering positive cash
generation beyond the period of the higher than normal capital expenditure
associated with the replacement of the more expensive Boeing subfleet.
The plan nevertheless retains sufficient in-built flexibility to allow a slowng

of growth should cur margins come under pressure.

Whilst some of our strategic debate during the past |2 months was perhaps a
little too public. | believe that the subject matter and intensity of the discussion
around the most appropriate rate of growth forthe Company evidences the
commitment of indvidual Board members to the Comparry's cause, | am pleased
to report that the whole Board believes we have come to a sersible outcome.
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Board

At easylet we believe that good corporate governance is vital, At the heart
of this s 2 strong Board team who both support and challenge the executive
management so that together, we can unlock easylet's huge potential, whilst
appropriately managing the risks associated with operating in such a volatile
industry. easyfet is an exciting business that readily attracts talent and hence
Iam pleased to report on how we have been able to further strengthen the
Board in the past year.

Sir Michael Rake was appointed Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent
Directorin June. Mke is an experienced intermational business leader and

is currently Chairman of BT Group plc prior to which he was Chainman

of KPMG International.

Keith Hamill joined the Board in February. Keith's background as Chairman
of Travelodge and Chairman of Go Fly! Ltd, prior to its acquisition by easyjet
in 2002, is highly relevant and | have welcomed his robust and analytical
approach to the assessment of risk in our Board discussions,

Bob Rothenberg MBE, senior partner in the accountancy firm of Blick
Rothenberg, was appointed to the easyjet Board as a Non Executive Director
with effect from | August 2009. His appointment was made under the terms
of the Company’s Articles ghving Sir Stelios Haji-loannou, the Comparny's
founder, nominee director appeintment rights on behalf of himself and
easyGrouwp Holdings Limited, his private investment vehidle and a sharehalder
in easylet phe. Bob's appointment was formally endorsed by the members of
the Company's Nominations Committee and he brings valuable financial
adwvisory and general business experience.

Sir Colin Chandler stepped down earlier in the year as Chairrman after seven
years service to the Company, We thark him for his significant contribution
throughout his tenure, as he chared the organisation during the period which
saw easylet achieve its current leading position in the European market.

Jeff Carr, our Group Finance Director since 2005, also left to take on a larger
challenge and we thank him too for his contribution. Whilst we complete

the search process for Jeff's successor, we are very pleased that Mark Adams
has joined us on an intenm basis as Chief Financial Officer; Mark has held a
number of senior financal positions across a range of sectors and we welcome
his contribution during this interim period.

People

It has been a challenging year for easyet’s people. | have spent a lot of time in
the past few months with the easyet senior management population and can
testify to their exceptional level of passion for and belief in easyjet. In a tough
industry this level of engagement is a real diferentiator 1o the performance of
the business. The cormmitment and enthusiasm of our crew continues tobe a
kery driver of our successful customer proposition and the whole Board is
grateful for the continued professionatism and commitment of all our people.

Note |: Measured in seats flown.
Noze 2: Carbon dioxide,

Industry regulation

The regufatory framework we operate in is crucial, 2s alongside ensuring that
we can operate in a safe environment, it has a significart effect on both our cost
base and the opportunities available for future growth. We are working across
Europe to persuade governments and the European Commission to deliver
regulation that prevides stability, is sensible and allows us to compete fairy.
easylet was bormn out of the liberalisation brought about by EU open skies

2nd has been at the forefront of promoting fair competition for the benefit of
consumers. YWe continue in that spirit with our campaign to ensure that local
airport monopolies are not able to capture monopoly rents. We also need
10 ensure that easyjet continues 10 operate on a level cost playing field with
legacy Buropean carviers absent protectionist measures imposed by national
goverrments. We have also committed to a greater focus on the remaining
structural inefficiencies. such as the mznagement of airspace and 11s associated
charging mechanisms.

We know itis important that ourindustry addresses its wider responsibiliues,
in particularto ensure we play our part in tackling dimate change. We have
now taken the first steps towards aviasion's entry into the European Emissions
Trading System, where we will operate within a system that caps overall COy?
emissions, ensuring they are put on a downwards path towards agreed
targets. However, environmental measures must deliver real gains in
ervironrmenial efficiency, and cannot be used as a way to simply 1ax
passengers and 50 we are continuing to waork for the reform of UK Air
Passenger Duty (APD) to operate as a genuine ingentive to drive
environmental change rather than the current blunt instrurment to swell
Government coffers,

Conclusion

As easylet navigates what s still an uncertain and difficult landscape, | am
confidert that easylet’s strengths will continue 1o prevail and that it will
emerge as a dear winrer in European short-haul aviation. | would alsa fike n
particular to thank Andy Harrison ang his executive team for so successiully
managing the Company dunng such a challenging year.

fﬂ"”/ e el

Sir David Michels
Non Executive Interim Chairman

IMAGE
REMOVED




a .
06 easyJdetplc ! Annual report and accounts 2006

,..).

BUSINESS REVIEW
STRATEGY AND KPIs

We believe people make
the difference. It's through
the efforts of all our people
to deliver our four strategic
priorities that we will realise
our vision: to become the
best low fares airline in

the world.

Financial KPIs

CHARTS
REMOVED
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Strategic KPIs

SAFETY IS OUR
NO.1 PRIORITY

We wil never compromise our commitment
to safety, which is always the first priority for
all of our people.

CHART
REMOVED

DEVELOP A WINNING
CUSTOMER PROPOSITION

We are continuing to refine our winning
proposition to a wide range of business
and leisure customers.

CHART
REMOVED

4

BUILD EUROPE’S No.1 AIR
TRANSPORT NETWORK

- We are focusing oh improving our routes,

slots and bases to build on our leading
presence across kurope.

CHART
REMOVED

DELIVER LOW COST AND
MAXIMISE MARGINS

We are improving revenue and managing
costsin order to enhance our reputation as
Europe's most efficient airine.

CHART
REMOVED

easyJet people make the difference
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REVIEW OF STRATEGY

1 Safety is our No:1 priority

Throughout the organisation — from the boardroom to our crew,

engineering and ground staff — the first priority for all of our people
is the pursuit of safety in all they do, for the benefit of customers,

colleagues and shareholders.

3.5 years

the average age of our fleet

We believe in the importance of a young
and reliable fieet, which leads to lower
maintenance and network disruption costs.
We currently fly 18] aircraft, with 35

new Airbus A320 family aircraft joining the
fleet during the year, as part of our plan to
operate an Airbus-only fleet from 2012

Safety: part of our DNA

Safety underpins everything we do. The organisation
is structured tc focus on safety issues at all levels,
and it is the first 2genda item at every Board
meetng. Qur safety culture positvely encourages
the reporting of all safety-related incidents and
events, through a range of reporting tools, no
matter how minor they may seem. These reports
are assessed and categorised, wath risk values
assigned and aggregated to form our Composite
risk value (CRV) index. This process allows safety
trends to be identified and corrective action
implemented, as part of our Safety Management
System (SMS). Our CRV index showed a steady
improvement for the year under review as ilustrated
on page 7. However. we are not complacent about
safety issues and continue to exercise vigilance in
order 1o cortinuously improve our safety performance.
As part of the feedback process 1o our crew,

we launched a new regular safety bulletin during
the year. This highlights and encourages best
practice, thus keeping our flight and cabin crews
fully engaged with safety improvement initatves.

New Safety Management System

In our industry, risk is unavaidabie. The key lies
in how this risk is identified and managed n a
transparent manner.

2009 saw the ntroduction of a new Safety
Management System, which provides a framework,
for managing the two pillars of safety performance
and safety complance at easyjet. Adopted by

the European Aviation Safety Agency’s European
Commercial Aviation Safety Team with our active
support, the SMS s a continuous improvemert
process. It focuses on identifying hazards, assessing
the risks associated with those hazards, managing
these risks and then ensuring that any changes have
had the desired impact.

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Rigorous safety processes

Andy Harrison, Chief Executve Officer, and
Operations Director, Cor Vrieswilk, are
responsible for all aspects of safety delivery,
including our compliance abligations under the

Air Operators Certificate (AOC). Andy Harrisan,
the Accourtable Safety Executive, chairs our Safety
Review Board. The Safety Review Board meets
monthly to assess reports from the Safety Action
Groups we have established across the business.
This review and assessment process delvers
monthly reports to both the UK Civil Aviation
Authonty (UK CAA) and the easyjet Board. Our
Director of Safety and Security, Captain Dave Pnor
reports directly to the Board independently of the
Cperaticns Director.

Our window on the operational
world - monitoring every second
of every flight

Flight management data recorded during 98%

of our fights is sent via a GPRS link direct 1o our
Luton base as soon as the aircraft has touched
down. Several thousand megabytes of data are
transmitted per flight, and all are analysed and fed
into the SMS within 24 hours.

Approval for our training
qualification

During the year, we became only the second UK
airiine to be granted approvat for managing our
in-house pilot training to ensure it meets our
specific training reguirements,

Under the Alternative Training Quality Programme
(ATQP), we are now allowed to tailor one of the
two mzndatory annual {light simulator sessions to
match our own training needs identfied through
the SMS and the speafic arcurnstances of our routes.

During 2009, cur pilots undertook around 15,000
hours of simulator training, with the prime focus
on practising realistic scenarios.

Sessions are carried out in real time, with three
levels of threat introduced during the flight, to provide
valuable data on our pilots' operational managemen
skills. In addition, the tailored sessions enable us to
increase pilot familiarity with new airports, which
are continually added to the network.

The excellence in service displayed by easyjet
cabin crew has its roots in the Acadermy, easylet's
dedicated aircrew training faciity at Luten. It's here
that cabin crew tearn advanced first aid and how
to handle emergency situations. The syllabus
covers all aspects of the regulatory requirerents
plus those elements of crew resource management
that mizke our cabin crew stand out from the
crowd. The technical training is enhanced through
the use of a dedicated cabin simutator and fire
fighting rmodule.

IMAGES REMOVED

Leading the way in

fatigue management

As we seek to optimise the use of our assets,

we needto be able to monitor and manage

crew performance effectively, ensuning that our
crew remain sufficienty alert at all irmes, In 2006,
we adopted an inmovative approach, with the
introducton of a Fatgue Risk Management System
(FRMS) in conjunction with the UK CAA, to assess
the potential risks of plot fatigue based on intensive
scheduling practices. This pioneenng work: has led to
easylet being at the forefront of crew performance
management, in the pursuit of operational safety.

The FRMS enables us to monitor and understand
the relationships between rostering, operational
variables, crew performance and workload,
allowing procedures to be implemented or
strengthened,

As part of cur continuous improvement
programme, we are working with the UK CAA,
the International Civil Aviation Organisation
(ICAQ). the International FRMS forum and
organisations such as Imperial College London,
City University London and most recently NASA,
1o further improve our understanding of fatigue.
This will alow us to develop more flexible roster
patterrs and operational procedures to support
our expansion while also retaining the focus on
operational safety. Qurwork in the field of faigue
has now ganed worldwide recognition as industry
best practice and has inspired the introduction of
similar programmes across gther aidines, with the
approval of the regulators,

Engineering
Improving our engineering function
Following the consolidation of easylech and

GB Airways into the easylet engineering function.
we insourced some of our technical services during
2009. This has given us more internal capacity and
contral to ensure the safety and reliability of our
growing fleet.
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REVIEW OF STRATEGY CONTINUED

2 Build Europe’s No1
air transport network

We aim to fly the right routes at the right times to meet

the demands of our broad customer base. Last year

we flew 45.2 million customers on over 400 routes linking
114 airports, giving us a 6.5% share of the European market.

No

We are the
leading airline at:
London Gatwick, Milan
Malpensa and Geneva.

IMAGE
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18%

Pan-European strength

easyjet has a leading presence on Europe’s top
100 routes, with increasingly strong positions in
the key markets including London Gatwick, Milan,
Geneva and Paris. We focus on the routes our
custormers fing the most attractive, at convenient
times of the day, concentrating our efforts on the
most popular destinations and departure points
together with the routes that have the strongest
business links.

Customer and geographic diversity are core
easylet advantages. We serve a broad a mix of
leisure and business travellers, and for the first time
this year saw ha'f of our customers drawn from
outside the UK. Furthermore, nearly 40% of flights
did not touch the UK during 2009, reflecting an
increase of 16% in the number of our maintand
European routes.

increase in Paris

seat capacity

Qur seat capadty at

Paris has increased
by 18% since 2008,

IMAGE
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Shaping the network

Almost 300 million potental passengers five within
an hour of arports served by easyjet. But to win
their business, we need to continually manage and
fine-tune our network, Put simply, we must give
custormers the opportunity 1o fly where they want,
when they want.

There is significant scope to drive performance
forwards in three specific areas — routes, slots

and bases. One of easylet's strengths is its flexabiity
in asset allocation; we can and do move aircraft
around our network 1O ensure we are generating
the best possble return on our INvestments.

Route management

Schedule quality is vital, Since 2006 we have
strengthened our position at tondon Gatwick,
Pars, Milan and Madrid by a combined total of
seven million departing seats. At London Gatwick,
wae have increased our share of short-haul flights to
Europe and have significantly higher load factors
than our competitors,

While we continue to build frequency and stability
on our core routes, we also remain alert to
opportunites to refresh the route mix ang offer
more chaice. Market intelligence through customer
research, together with insight from regiona
managers and a team of European market
managers, helps us to «dentify those opporunities.

For example, we announced the launch of
Dissseldorf flights during 2009, with daily return
flights from Rome, Basel and London. As business
demand falls away through the summer months,
we actively manage our schedule and move assets
onto leisure routes. We increased capadity into
several destinations incluging Turkey, Morocco and
Croata, where we fly into Dubrovnik from five
airports across the continent.

39

Number of routes

between primary airports

We fly 3% routes betwesn pnmary
airports across Europe, Our nearest
competitor is British Airways, with 25.

IMAGE
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Slot management

Departure time is important to all our customers,

but particularly those on business trips and
weekend breaks.

Unlike some competitors, who use smaller,

more remate, and much less convenient airports,
over 0% of easylet aircraft operate into and

out of congested airports. At these busy facilities,
where slots are at a premium, we work hard

to build our portfolio across Europe. Our slot
management {eam has considerable capabiity
and expertise, with over 60 years of combined
experience and extensive contacts at

furopean airports.

Number of aircraft by base

Base management

Orvernight stops create unnecessary costs.

By managing the bases where we locate crew
and aircreft, we are able 1o improve efficiency
and maximise revenue, During summer 2009,
we flew over | 000 sectors daily and only five
aircraft were located overnight at locations
other than our bases.

Base location is constantly under review,

For example. we have increased the number of
aircraft based in ltaly from three to 16 since 2006
and in France from I to (4 in the fast |2 monthe.
At the samne time, we have reduced capacity at
under-performing bases such as Luton,

IMAGE
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REVIEW OF STRATEGY CONTINUED

3 Develop a winning
customer proposition

easydJet’s network, great schedule and industry-leading
distribution via easyJet.com appeals to a broad base

of both business and leisure customers. The easyJet
brand has pan-European reach and appeal throughout
27 countries. New initiatives are continuing to strengthen
our position as both a leading airline and an innovative
e-commerce business.

IMAGE
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£9

per bag

We only charge £9 each way for

a 20kg piece of hold luggage. Ryanair
charges £1§5 for the same luggage.

Understanding our customers

We work hard to get close to our customers,
listening to their needs and evohving our schedule
and services to match. During the year, we
aggregated all our customer data into a single
location to give us a fast and intelligent view on
emerging trends in customer travelling habits,

easyjet is leading the way within the airfine industry
on its use of social media to drive customer
engagernent and improve the customer
experience —snce its faunch six months ago.
@easyletcare on Twitter has proactively assisted
thousands of customers, easyjet also developed
the first aifine iPhone application in Europe,
providing customers with real time data on the
arrivals and cepartures for flighis to and from

our Swiss airports.

Ensunng that our customers armive at their
destination on time is key to delivery of a winning
customer proposition, and at easyfet we continually
measure on tme performance, In the year, our on
time performance {(measured as percentage of
fghts arriving within 15 minutes of scheduled
arvival time) improved from 7549 to 79.5%.

The result? Continued strong appeal across the
four key custemer groups: business people;
holidayrmakers: customers visiting friends and
relatives; and second home owners. In fact, nearty
90% of customers surveyed during the year would
recormnmend easyjet to a friend.

IMAGE
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Bon appetit

Croissant et café

Qur inflight cazering is now based on regional
preferences. Our customers can buy the food and
drink they prefer — with a greater choice of produce
sourced to cater for local tastes.
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Improving our communications
The better we understand our cusiomers,

the more accurately we can target our
communications. For example, with our new
customer database in place, we are now able to
tailor marketing ermals 1o reflect the purchasing
patterns and preferences of indvidual customers.

To support a renewed focus on business travel,
we launched an online campaign targeted at
finance directors, “Keep the FD happy'*is an
interactive video that takes a hght-hearted look
at how easylet can save a company money in
these tough times — but also highlights the serious
business benefits of flying with easylet, such

as no weight restnctions on hand baggage and
the ability to book through their preferred travel
management channel, See the campaign at
httpfwawwkeepthefdhappy.com/

Our iconic Objects campaign continues to run
across Europe, adapted to the needs of different
markets. The campaign uses iconic orange
“Objects” to represent the destinations to which
we fly or the type of trip cusiomers are taking.

It delivers an energetic, exciting evocation of the
travel possibilities we provide and a clear focus
on the low price of the flight. Each easylet
campaign runs across a broad variety of both
online and offline media.

Qur public stance on dimate change, such as
signing the Copenhagen Communiqué, sends

out an important message. Environmental matters
are importanrt to us, as they are to our customers.
We have integrated a carbon calculator and

offsetting facility into our online reservation system,

with all imvestments made exclusively in United
Nations-certified offset projects. Since the
scherne was launched, easylet customers have
1o date offset over 194 million Kg of CO2.

IMAGE
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Over £2m

in easyJet Plus! subscriptions

More than 20,000 custorners have chosen

to pay around £100 each for easyJet Plus!,
our annual Speedy Boarding pass.

Enhancing easyJetcom

As the UK's most visited airline site, easylet.com
remains our prirmary distribution channel and in
the last year we have commenced a major rebuid
and refresh. We consulted with our customers,
identifying what was and what was not liked about
the existing site, and also looked at a wide range of
top sites, both inside and outside the travel sector,

We have concerttrated our initizl energy on the
most important section: the boaking funnel, where
five pages are respansible for detivering around

£2 bilion in revenue. The site is built on a more
robust and scalable platform and is even easier

1o use, with a wider template and a basket that

is visible at all times.

IMAGE
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Winners!

and the winner is...

easyet has won a number of industry
awards in the year, including Best European
Budget Airline (World Traveller Awards),
Best Airine Website (Trawolution) and the
Condé Nast Traveller Best Low Cost Airline
award (for the 6th consecutive year).

Building our appeal to

business travellers

In a tough economic environment, we have
increased our share of the business trave! market in
the pastyear We recognise that the business travel
segment, where revenue per seat can be arounc
209 higher than average, has differert booking
requirements to other markets. In particular, large
corporates have strict trave! management policies
in place and manage their travel requirements
through agents who often book through the
industy’s Globa! Distribution Systems (GDS)

such as Amadeus and Galllee.

Last year we rmade our schedule available via

the GDS and other aggregator systems, so we
are nowlisted in agents' search results alongside
other camiers, By the end of the year, around
159 of business seats were already being booked
through ths channel,

Business travellers, as well as leisure customers,

are also benefiting from our winning customer
experience initiatives. These indlude the ability

to checkin orling up to €0 days before a flight,

the opporwnity to take an eadier flight for free,

an inflight magazine that is as gocd aread as itis

a promational tool, and regionalised food and
drink menus. Speedy Boarding remains an attractive
customer proposition and we have been working
hard to improve delivery across the network,

In addrion, this was the first full year for easyjet Plus!,
an annual Speedy Boarding pass. With over 20000
mermbers across Eurcpe, the card has quiddy become
a popular feature with easylet’s frequent travellers.
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1Mmonths

schedule online

We now release our flight schedule up
to || months in advance, so customers
can plan and book well ahead.
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REVIEW OF STRATEGY CONTINUED

4 Deliver low cost and
maximise margins

easyJet’s strategy is growth with margin improvement
and therefore the management team continually focuses
its efforts on all three drivers of margin: yield, ancillaries

and cost, with the aim of achieving a 15% return on equity

in the medium-term.

Independent research*
proves that

we are the best value carmer
on 78% of all business itineraries
surveyed. Business travellers can
make savings of over £100 on

almost half of all occasions.

~ ITM Research Fare Study
June-August 2008,
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Improving yield

Through this recessionary period, our superior
network and competitive fares have enabled us
to win market share and drive the best revenue
performance of any European airfine. Over the
past year, we have grown the number of business
passengers in spite of an overall decline in the
business travel market.

Qur unique reveriue managerent systern delivers
trangparent and simple pricing for our customers
while, at the same tme, enabling us to capture the
maximum yeld available in the market for each
route. Our aim s to be significantly cheaper than
our direct competitors on each route. thereby
allowing us to take market share.

Driving ancillary revenues

We see a number of opportunities to drive
continued growth in ancitlary revenues by
introducing initiatives that add value to cur
customer proposition.

In-flight services continue to deliver improving
revenue. The year saw wastage of fresh food
hatved and the introduction of new localised
food and drink choices which better match the
expectations of customers on different routes.
For 2010, the emphiasis will be on fresh food,
including a key country-specific bistro offering,

‘We have also expanded the number of partners
we work with to provide customers with services
induding car hire, hotel rooms, coach and rail trave!
and insurance. Agreements with new partners
such as Mondial Assistance and Laterooms.com.,
together with renewed focus on long-term
partrerships with companies including Europecar
and Gatwick Express, will drive revenue through
easyJet.com

Customers of all airlines now accept that bag
charges are inevitable and during the year we
increased our ‘first bag'” charges o £9. However,
we are committed 1o ensuring that our charges
remain competiive and support a strong customer
proposition. Therefore we recognise that future
opportunites 16 increase revenue in this area may
be fmited.
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Fuel management system - case study

Fuel efficiency is very important 1o us at easyjet. & is our largest single cost and

also the most volatile. During 2009, we have made significant improvements to

our fuel effliciency. saving 1.2% of alf the fuel we burm. We have achieved this
through the implementation of a new flight planning systemn, together with a
focus on fuel conservation both in the air and on the ground. Due 1o the high
number of sectors we operate each day, even a small fue! saving per flight adds
up to big financial gains.

The new flight planning system apumises every flight based on route, payload,
weather and fuel, It was introduced during the year, reaching full capability
towards the end of the penod. This means we are well positioned in 2010

to receve the full year benefiz of having the system in place plus dentfy other
areas of additonal savings.

Fuel conservation in the air has been achieved through successiul engagement

with our flight crews on a range of inftiatives 10 optimise operating procedures.

On the ground, we have successfully reduced our reliance on auxiliary power
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units in favour of ground pewer and operated an optimised aireraft schedule,

We remain firmly committed to fuel efficiency and have a range of further
initiatives in the pipeline for 2010, across all areas of our business from

engineering to flight operations,

Managing costs

It is vital that easylet aggressively manages its cost
base so that it can continue to offer competitive
fares profitably. e2sylet aims o deliver at least
£150 milion of cost reduction inttiatives by the end
of financial year 2012; this will enable us to offset
inflationary pressures and deliver a £ per seat
benefit to the botwom line at current exchange
rates. There are clear opportunities in the
following areas:

Efficient fleet management

Aircraft ownership costs on arcraft is expected to
fall by £30 milion per annurm by the end of financial
year 2012, criven by the exit of our non-core flest
of Boeing 737-700s anc GB Airways arrcraft.

The easylet A320 farnily of arcraft are cheaper
o own and operate and the fleet raticnahsation
programme will ako cemnove the need for the
additional Boeing-specific training that we
currently carry out.

Leverage scale and recession to deliver
procurement efficiencies

Safety is always our No.| priority and we

will never comprormise that commitment.

inthe last |2 months we have seen a succassful
renegotiation of our maintenance contract

with SR Technics, a world-class provider.

The new arrangement is for !l years and wilt
generate savings of around £35 million. We wil
also maintain our policy of leveraging our scale and
buying power to challenge airports on the charges
they levy and aim to deliver savings of £60 million.

Systems implementation to drive efficiency
Fuel remains a major cost. We have targeted

a 3% improvement in fuel bum, some of which
has already been delivered during the year under
review and a further £20 million will be delivered
by 2012, However, there rermains room for further
improvement, specifically through pilot technique
and a new fuel reporting systern.

We have also set ourselves a goal of a 10%
improverment in crew efficiency. which will be
delfivered through route and crew optimisation
tools and a new rostering systerm that goes live in
the coming year: These initiatives will deliver savings
of £35 million by 2012.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

This is an exceptionally
resilient performance, which
is a tribute to the strength

of our business model and
the quality of our people
and our network.
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Andrew Harrison
Chief Executive

Introduction

This has been an importart year for easyet. The business has traded resiliently
during a recession and easylet was one of the few airfines globally to make a
profit this year with an underlying pre-tax profit of £43.7 millon. Revenue
grew by 12.9% to £2.666.8 million. this stong performance partially offsetiing
the £30.5 milfion reduction in interest income and the £86. milion increase
in unit fuel costs (equivalent to £1.63 per seat).

We have strengthened the fundamentals of the business, with improvements
in network qualtty. lower cost deals with key suppliers and enhancements to
easyletcom giving easyjet a great platiorm for profitable growthin the
medium-term from which to achieve a 15% return on equity, The Board has
also agreed a fleet plan which will deliver arounc a 7.5% growth per annumin
seats fiown cver the next five years. This fieet plan will enable easylet 1o grow
its share of the European short-haul market fror around 7% to 10%,

Our people

We have outstanding pecple, including our front line cabin crew and pilots
who are highly rained and professional. They all make a crucial contribution

10 our success and help 10 ¢reate an easyjet personality which 1s an important
competitive advantage. | would like to thank them all for helping to deliver
such a resilient performance in very difficult economic circumstances, We aim
to have an open and egalitarian environment where everyone is valued for
their contribution to easylet. We consider it important to protect and develop
this culture as the airfine grows into a large pan-European business, Balancing
the imperative for cost efficiency and supporting our culture in a pressurised
and uncertain econemic cimate has been particularty challenging in 200%. --

Marketplace review

easylet operates the leading network in turopean short-haul aviation,
measured by presence on the top 100 routes. Around 200 carmers compete
in the Eurcpean short-haul market and the tog five players, including easylet,
account for around 60% of seats flown with the rest of the market being
highly fragmented.

Whilst the average growth of the market over the past 20 years or so has
been 4.5% per annum, in the past year overall capacity in the European
short-haul market shrank by around 5% as airlines sought to mitigate losses
driven by higher fue! costs and falling demand. easylet continued its strategy
of carefully targeting growth in markets from which weaker competitors are
retreating in this period of recession. Thus easyjet is building strong,
defendable market positions that will ensure it is well positioned for profitable
growth once the European econormy improves.

Consequently, easylet gained market share in the year ang passenger numbers
grew by 34% to 45.2 milion and load factor improved by |4 percentage
points to 85.5%. easylet strengthened its position in a number of valuable
markets including Paris, London Gatwick. Mitan and Madrid, increasing its slots
at constraned arports by over 10% in the year.

Regulatory update

in March 2008, the UK Competition Commission confirmed that BAA would
be required 1o sell a number of its airports. Whilst easyjet welcomes the
break-up of BAA and the recently conlirmed sale of Gatwick, the London
airports will coniinue to be monopolies, regardless of who owns them, due to
the fack of spare capadity in the market, The sale highlights the need for tough
and eflective airport regulation to protect airlines and passengers from the
new owners exploiting their market power.

easyjet continues to advocate the immediate reforrm of UK Air Passenger
Duty (APD), which taxes passengers rather than flights, into an emissions-
based tax, and the phasing out of APD when aviation joins the European
Emission Trading Scheme (EU ETS) in 2012, easyjet was an early advocate of
aviation's entry into the EU ETS as an international, market-based solution to
ensuring aviation addresses its climate change responsibilities. We now look to
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the Copenhagen Climate Sumimiit in December to produce a sensible global
agreement on aviation and dimate change. Such a global agreement should
recognise efficiency standards for aircraft, with the emphasis on planes utilisng
modem, more environrentally friendly technology.

Business performance

easylet delivered a resilent performance in a tough and uncertain macro
economic environment this year by continuing to focus on the four themes
we outlined in the Intenm report:

*+ Development of Europe’s No.| air transport network
+ Focus on margins through driving revenue and rmanaging costs
+ Management of cash, capiial expenditure and fleet

+ Mrigation of risk from volatility of fue! prices and currency rates

Development of Europe’s No:1 air transport network

easyjet's unique differentiator is its network, with a leading presence on the
top 100 routes in Europe and postions at primary airports that are attractive
to time sensitive consurmers. easylet’s network has appeal across a broad
range of European consumers both leisure and business. Additionatly, half

of easylet’s passengers now originate from outside of the UK. This balanced
revenue base has protected easyjet from the worst effects of recession and
allowed us to win share from higher cost competitors.

easylet continued to actively manage its network by optimising routes, During
the past year, 28 underperforming routes were dosed and 70 new routes
were aunched. easyjet’s presence onthe top 100 routes increased by six
following our entry onto routes such as Rome to Milan and Paris to Barcelona.

Onerall, easylet's capacity (measured in seats flown) grew by 1.8% during the
year, with an increase of 16% in mainand Europe, focused on France (up 30%).
italy {up 78%) and Spain {up 16%). easylet's capacity at Gatwick grew by 12%.
partly driven by the full year effect ofthe GB Airways acquisition on 31 January
2008. Capadity was reduced in weaker performing markets such as Luton and
the UK regions.

UK

At Gatwick, easylet 1s now the leading airiine with 39 based arcraft and a 30%
share of the arport’s passengers and we continue to leverage that position to
absorty compettive pressures. Longer sector routes are performing well and
slots acquired with GB Atrways were optimised in the period with busingss
orientated routes being allocated to peak slots and leisure routes moved to
later in the day. Ve are winning the compettive battie on traditonal sun
routes with excellent load factors, abeit wath weaker market pricng, easyjet
ias also benefited from legacy competizor withdrawal on key business routes.

At Belfast, competitors are in retreat and both yields and load factors
improved towards the latter part of the year. We had a strong performance
at Manchester, where we now have three aircraft based. In addition, we have
proactively reduced capadity at other LUK bases which deliver below Company
average margins,
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Northern Europe

In Germany, we improved the schedule during the year. Additional additonal
capacity has been added on routes to Milan, Copenhagen and Brussels from
our Berlfin base, which has improved our appeal to business travellers.

‘We closed the base at Dortmund but profitable routes were retained.
easylet celebrated its tenth birthday in Switzerland in the past year where
we have |2 aircraft based, easylet’s position improved as competitors came
off key routes and we expanded flying between Switzerland and the French
regions and Scandinavia.

Southern Europe

easyfet has |3 based aircraft at Milan and we continue to outperform the
competition, with significandy stronger load factors. easylet has opened

a base at Rome Fiumicino with three aircraft based there operating on both
intra-European and ftalian domestic routes. Madrid delivered improvements
in load and profizability in the year as competitors continued to reveat and
we optimised our schedule, easylet now has 14 aircraft based in France and

is France’s second largest airline with 2 10% market share. France continues to
be an attractive market for easyjet as low cost carrier penetration is haff the
European average and the market conseguently has structurally higher fares.

Focus on margins through driving revenue

and managing costs

easyjet's strategy is growth with margin improvement and therefore the
management team continually focuses its efforts on all three drivers of
margin, narnely yield, ancillaries and costs.

Margins in the past two years have been severely impacted by higher fuel
prices with an aggregate £5.71 (£1.63 in 2009) increase in unit fuel costs,
albeit profit per seat has only declined by £347 due to the strength of the
revenue performance.

In the past year, easyjet’s industry leading revenue performance, has been
driven by proactive aircraft allocation into stronger markets such as Gatwick
and Milan, and good commerdal management especially in pricing, promotion
and route selection.

In addition, easyjet is benefitng from its efforts to target the business travel
arket with around 153% of business passengers now originating through
business orentated distribution channels. Business austorners tend to bock
later. paying around 20% more than the average fare for their easylet fights.

Ancillary revenue income grew by 38% to £9.77 per seat. The checked bag
charge averaged £4.51 per seat, an increase of £1.73 per seat in the year and
other ancillary revenues grev by £0:97 to £5.26 per seat. Going forward,
easylet’s in-flight reverues will benefit from the introduction of electronic
point of sale equipment onboard and food offerings tallored by market and
designed to appeal to a broader range of consumers, Improvernents in
website presentation should also result in improved cornversion rates for
car hire and hotels.

It is vita! that easylet aggressively manages its cost base so that it can continue
10 offer compeuive fares profitably. Operating costs excluding {uel®, per seat
rose 3.9% at constant currency in the year principally due to increased sector
length, the planned lower awrcraft utilisation over the winter as we mitigated
margin dilution due to higher fuel costs and price increases at Gatwick which
have cost around £10 milion this year.

In the second half of the year, we saw improvemenits In aircraft ownership and
maintenance costs. easyjet also delivered improvemenits in its operations
information technology infrastructure in the year and key systems to support
the crew efficiency programme have now been irnplemented. We have now
reviewed our progress against the £125 million cost savings target identified in
2008 and believe there is greater potential to take cost out of the business.
Based on the financial results for the year ended 30 September 2009, we have
updated our targets and now expect to deliver cost savings of £130 miflion by
the end of financial year 2012, After inflation and increases in regulzied airport
charges this will equate to approximately £1 per seat profit improvement.

easyjet has also leveraged its scale and the recession to renegotiate some key
contracts with suppliers. Overall capaaty in the European short-haul market

is shrinking and as one of the few carriers in Europe growing capacity, easyjet
is well placed to secure better terms at arports.

Following a global tendering process, easylet has selected Zurich-based SR
Technics for airframe maintenance support of easyjet’s core Alrbus fleet for a
period of It years. The agreement, valued at more than 31,6 billion, provides
easylet with a reduction in maintenance costs (excluding engines) of around
£175 milion over the life of the contract. SR Technics will provide a range of
services incuding aircraft maintenance, cemponent repair and overhaul, and
logistics management for easylet’s core Arbus fleet.

A sgnificant portion of our cost base i dewermined by governments and
regulztory bodies, in partiaular, navigation costs and charges at regulated
airports. We have increased our focus on these costs by constructively
engaging the governments and regulators that set them. Alongside our work
at Gatwick and Stansted, areas of particdlar focus have been the regulatory
charges at the Paris airports and Amsterdam, UK navigation charges and the
wider European approach to navigation costs. Looking forward, we will sustain
this invalvernent and seek to further develop our influence across Europe.

Management of cash, capital expenditure and fleet
Fleet plan

easylet is making good progress towards its goal of operating a common
aircraft flees, Eliminating the Boeing and GB Airways sub-fleets will take
cost out of the business and simiplify our operations,

The intention is to exit &l 2 reraft in the two sub-fleets by 2012 to cormplete
the realisation of ownership cost savings of around £40 million per annum.

12 Boeing 737s and four GB Alrways A320s were retumed 1o lessors in the
past year. The sale of the seven A321s from the GB Airways sub-fleet continues
10 progress with three A32ls disposed ofn the year with an assodiated profit
on disposal of £11 million. It is anticipated that the rernaining A321s will leave
the fleet by September 2010. The five A39s previously held for sale have
been returned to the fleet and will be used to support our mainland
European expansion plans in 2010,

In the past year; easyjet took delivery of 15 A32C aircraft and 20 A319 arcraft
under the termrs of the Arbus easyjet agreement. Configured with |B0 seats.
the A320 will enable us 1 Increase our capacity at peak umes at slot
constrained airports. Also, the aircraft cperates with a cost per seat that is
around 6% lower than the A3I9,

The wotal fleet at 30 Seprember 2009 comprised |81 aircraft. A further 70
easylet specification aircraft deliveries are currently planned for anival over the
riext three years, a netincrease of 26 ancraft over this period giving an expected
total number of aircraft of 207 by 2012, easylet has a high degree of flexibility in
its fleet planning arrangements and thus is sble 1 manage the total number of
aireraft in the fleet through a combinaton of deferrals and lease extensions.

Fuwme
dekveries
{including Un-
exercsed  exertied
Under Unde~ mrthase  purchase
coerzing fnante Changes in rghis) mghis
Owned lease tease Toral year  fpoed (ol l)
easylet
A320 family 103 46 b 155 35 72 a8
Boeing
737700 - 17 - 17 (1) - -
GB Airways
A320 family 4 5 - 9 {7) 2 -
107 68 6 181 &6 74 88

Mot |: The 72 future easylet delveries are anucipated 10 be defvered over the nex; four
finarcial years. 27 0 2010, 22in 2011, 2 n 2012 and 20 2013,
Nate 2: Purchase rights may be taken on any A320 family aircraft and are valid unid 2015,
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The total fleet plan over the period 1o 30 September 20123 15 as follows:

Ga
easyjet Boeing  Airways
A320 737- A320 Toul

At 30 September: farnily 700 famly  aircraft
2008 20 29 16 165
2008 {55 17 9 181
2010 182 8 2 192
201t 194 2 - 196
20012 207 - - 207

Mote 3: Assurmes assess Meld forsale are sald in financial year 2010

Cash and capital expenditure

easyjet’s cash and money market deposits as at 30 September 2009
exceeded £1 bilion reflecting conunued strong cash flow generation:
additionalty, easyjet has sufficient resourtes n place, through a combination of
undrawn committed faciliies and surplus cash, to fund fture aireraft deliveries
for at least the next 18 moniths, In the year; gearing increased from 2%% to
38% reflecting ncreased debt-financed capital expenditure as we continue
the replacement of cur Boeing sub-fleet.

Mitigation of risk from volatility of fuel prices

and currency rates

easylet operates under a clear set of treasury policies agreed by the Board.
The aim of easylet's hedging policy is to reduce short-term earnings volatility
and therefore the Company hedges forward, on a rolling basis. between 50%
and 80% of the next 12 months anticipated requirements and between 20%
and 50% of the following 12 menths anticipated requirements, In the past year,
easyjet’s fuel hedging caused an adverse variance to market rates of around
£330 miftion, partially offset by a benefit of around £120 million from its US
dollar hedging. Details of our current hedging arrangements are shown below:

fuel  US dollar euro
require-  require-  surplus

Percentage of anticipated requirement hedged ment ment sale
& months ended 31 March 2010 72% 65% 87%
Rate TIEMT 178 €117
% months ended 30 September 2010 6l%  38%  76%
Rate 73T $lea €14
Year ended 30 September 2010 66% 51%  80%
Rate $/50MT %172 €LI5
Year ended 30 September 2011 2% 0% 35%
Rate $720MT  $162 €108

Outicok

Whilst economic conditions remain challenging for consumer facing
businesses and in particular airfines, easyjet’s scale, low cost and highly
efficient business model and strong financial position will ensure itis
able 1o take advantage of the current recessionary period by:

=+ driving cost out of the business; and

¥ carefully targeting capacity increases and share gains in vahiable
markets across Europe ensuring that easyfet is well positioned
0 exploit profitable growth opportunities when economic
conditions improve,

easylet's pre tax result in 2010 at curent fuel prices® and excharige rates®
will benefit by around £100 millisn from lower fuel prices as higher price
fuel hedges roll-off, slightly offset by a strengthening US dollar.

Capacity, measured in seats fiown, for both the first half and the full
year is expected to increase compared 10 the pnor year by around
109 as easylet continues with its strategy of carefully targeting growth,
The current expectation is that competitor capadity on easylet routes
will be down by low single digits.

Naturally, the impact of unemployment is expected to iead to some yield
detericration overthe winter, Wit over 45% of the available first half seats
now booked, total revenue per seat at constant currency in the first half of
the year is expected to decline by a few percentage points compared to the
prior year,

Total operating costs® per seat, excluding fuel, at constant currency are
expected to be broadly flat for the full year and up low single digits in the
firs: half of the year compared 1o the prior period. Improvements in
maintenance, ¢rew and overhead costs will offset the mix impact of

our continued growth in primary arports.

We expect a reduction in interest ncome of around £10 million compared
to the prior year due to continued lower interest rates, which will mainly
impact the first hall result.

We see a tough winter ahead, We are focusing our efforts on further cost
savings and efficiency programmes, together with optimising route
profitability and aicraft allocation. We shall also benefit as our fuel hedges
adjust to market prices. Putting 2l this together, at current fuel prices* and
currency rates’, we expect eagylet 1o make sutstanual profit:mproverment
during 2010,

Nate 4:IUS5657 per matec tonne a2t |3 Novernber 2005,
Note 5:\US$1.67/ and €112/ a1 |3 Movember 2009,
Note 6: Excludes interest income,

Youean.

Andrew Harrison
Chief Executive
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The business continues to
generate strong operating
cash flow and ends the year
with over £1 billion in liquid
funds, a strong balance sheet
and significant undrawn
financing in place.
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Mark Adams
Interim Chief Financial Officer

Reported profit before tax for the y=ar ended 30 Sestember 2009 was
£54.7 million induding £11.0 miltion profit on the disposal of three Airbus
A321 arcraft, acquired as part of the GB Arways acquisition and sold during
the year, Excluding this profit on sale, the undertying profit before tax for the
year was £43.7 milion: this compares o an underlying profit before tax in
2008, excluding the one-off costs assadiated with the integration of GB
Alrways, of £123.1 mitlion. GB Airways & now fully integrated into the easylet
business and therefore its results are not separataly identvfiable. However, it
should be noted that the comparative period to these results incudes only
eight months of GB Airways activity.

Results this year have been significantly impacted by the following factors:
¥ Fuel prices and hedging

~+ US dollar and euro exchange rates

% Reduction in aircraft utilisation

Fuel prices and hedging

Total fuel cost amounted to £807.2 milion in 2009, an increase of 13.9%
compared to 2008, equating to a cost perseat of £15.28, up £1.63 per seat or
11.9%. The average market price for jet fuel dunng 2009 was $335 per metric
tonne (excluding fees and taxes) compared to $1,070 in 2008, driven by the
extraordinary spike in fuel prices during that year. However, after taking
account of hedging taken outin 2008 during the peried of high fuel prices,
easyet's effective price for 2009 was $951 per metric tonne compared to
$948 in 2008.

With the effective US dollar price broadly flat for 2009 compared to 2008,
the increase in fuel cost per seat is largely driven by the strengthening of the
LS dollar against sterfing, partly mitigated by US dolfar bedging.

Despite the introduction of additional heavier A320 aircraft into the fleet and
an increase in the average load factor of [4ppt, average fuel bum for the year
was 715 US galions per block hour compared to 717 in 2008, prnapally
refiecting the implementation of fuel conservation initiatives.

US doliar and euro exchange rates

The market rate for the US dollar strengthened by 22% from an average rate
of 1.99/£ in 2008 to 1.56/£ in 2009; after taking account of hedging, easylet’s
effective rate strengthened from an average of [.96/£ in 2008 to |.78/£ in
2009. The business has no US dollar revenues but significant US dollar costs
for fue!, aircraft leases, maintenance and some loan interest and consequently
the 9% moverrent in the effective doflar rate had a significant impact on
financial performance.

The euro has strengthened by 12% from an average rate of 1.32/£in 2008 to
|16/£ in 2009. Aporoxirmately 42% of revenues and 31% of costs (principally
ground handling, airport and navigation charges and some crew osts) are
denominated in euro resulting in a net long position: the strengthening of the
euro, therefore, delivers a positive impact 10 the results, For the first tme this
year some hedging of the euro surplus has also been undertaken.
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Certain key measures are therefore significantly impacted by exchange
rate fluctuations. These measures on a constant currency basis are snown
in the adjacent table:

Reduction in aircraft utifisation

in response to the fuel price situation at the beginning of the year, the level
of flying actwity during the first six months of 2009 was actively reduced;
however, utilisation retumed to more normal levels for the summer,

So while total aircraft has increased by 16.0% from an average of (50.1

in 2008 1o 174.1 in 2009, the number of seats flown has only increased

by 1.8%. Average aircraft utilisation, measured in terms of block hours

per operated aircraft per day, has fallen from 11.9 hours per day in 2008

to 140 hours in 2005,

As a result of this positive dacision to reduce utilisation, and therefore
capacity flown, to protect profit margins. cost per seat measures are
adversely affected as non-variable costs are spread over relatively
fewer seats,

Operational measures 2009 2008 Crange

Seats flown (mifions) 528 519 1.8%
Passengers (millions) 43.2 437 34%

Load factor 85.5% 84.1% 14ppt

Ayallable Seat Kilometres {ASK)

{millions) 58,165 55,687 44%

Revenue Passenger Klometres

(RPK) (millions) 50,566 47690 6.0%

Awverage sector length (kilometres) 1101 1,073 2.6%

Sectors 337266 333017 1.3%

Block hours 645446 631,084 2.3%

Number of aircraft ownedfieased

at end of year 181 165 9.7%

Average number of aircraft

owned/leased during year 174, 150.1 16.0%

Number of aircraft operated at

end of year 170 161 56%
Average number of aircraft

operated during year 160.1 145.3 10.2%
Operated arcraff utiisation

(hours per day) 1.0 9 (69)%
Number of routes operated at

end of year 422 380 1h.1%

Number of airports served at end

of year 14 100 14.0%
Financial measures 2009 2008 Change

Return on equity 5.5% 68% (1.3)ppt
Per seat measures

{undertying)*

Profi before tax perseat (£) 0.83 237 65.1Y%
Revenue per-seat (£) 5047 4551 109%

Revenue per seat at constant

currency (£) 4736 45.51 4.1%

Cost per seat {£) 49,64 4314 (15.09%
Cost per seat excluding iue! (£) 3436 2949 (16.5)%
Cost per seat excuding fue! at

constant currency (f) 3032 2949 (6.2)%
Per ASK measures

(underlying)*

Profiz before tax per ASK {pence) 0.08 022 (66.0)%
Revenue per ASK {pence) 4.58 424 8.1%

Revenue per ASK at constant

aurrency (pence) 430 424 1.4%

Cost per ASK (perce) 4.51 402 (12.h%
Cost per ASK excluding fuel

{perce) 312 275 (13.6)%
Cost per ASK excluding fuel at

constant currency (pence) 2.85 275 (3.5)%

*Underlying measures exdude an £11.0 m2ion profit on the sale of three areraftn 2009 ang
£12.9 milion of costs associated with the integration of GB Airways in 2008 .
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Total revenue

Totat revenue in 2009 grew by 12.9% to £2,666.8 million which equates

to £5047 per seat, representing a growth of £4.96 per seat or 10.9%.

On a constant currency basis, total revenue per seat grew 4.1%; after allowing
for the increase in sector length of 2.6%, this represents a strong undertying
performance, particularly in light of the difficutt external economic conditions.
This result has been supported by the continuing strategy to increasingly
deploy capacity to the better located but more expensive airports preferred
by customers and thereby improve network mix,

Passenger revenue

Passenger revenue in 2009 grew by 78% to £2,150.5 milion. Despite the
16.0% increase in average aircraft dunng the period, capacity in terms of seats
fiown increased by only 1.8% as a result of the decsion 10 reduce Thying actmty
particularly through the wirter Load factor improved 1.4ppt to 85.5%, the first
time since 2005 that the annual load factor has exceeded 85%. This resuited

In a 3.4% increase in passenger numbers to 45.2 million demonstrating a fiight
1o value as easylet increased market share by attracting customers from
higher fare competitors.

The shift towards deploying refatively more capacity to European markets
continues. Capacity in total rose 1.8% in 2009 versus 2008; of this overall
increase, capacity at UK regional bases reduced by 8 4% whilst continental
European bases increased by 16.0% with most of this investment being
focused in Milan Malpensa, Paris Chartes de Gaufle and Lyon. London bases,
in aggregate, reduced by 3.19% with Gatwick capacity up by 11.5% but Luton
and Stansted reducing by [8.3% and 16.3% respectively. The percentage of
revenues denominated in euros in 2005 was 42% with, in aggregate,
non-sterfing revenues now accounting for 51% of total revenues,

Passenger revenue per seat increased by 5.9% to £40.70 but on a constanit
currency basis fell by 1.9%. This reduction in revenue per seat in the current
economic environment, taking into account the expected dilution from an
increase in the checked bag charge, is testament to the strength of the
network. Passenger revenue per ASK, on a constant currency basis,

fell by 4.4%.

Ancillary revenue

Ancilary revenue increased by 40.6% o £516.3 milion in 2009, driven manly
by increases in the checked bag charge. Bag charge revenue delivered

£238.1 million in 2009, an increase of £94.0 milion or 65.2% compared

1o the previous year. As expected, this has been accompanied by a small
yield dilution, but with approximately 70% of passerigers having checked
baggage. the net result is positive. Speedy Boarding continues to deliver

a strong performance,

Costs

2009 2009 2008 2008
Undertying costs* £ milllon per seat £ meion per seat
Ground handiing 255.9 4.84 2122 409
Airport charges 481.5 .11 3972 7.65
Fuel 807.2 15.28 7087 13.65
Navigation 2323 4.40 1957 377
Crew 306.6 5.80 2632 507
Maintenance 161.6 3.06 147.5 2.84
Advertising 47.0 0.89 46.5 050
Merchant fees and
COMMISSIoNs 33.5 0.64 337 065
Aircraft and passenger
insurance 1.3 0.21 EA 0.7
Other costs 104.8 1.98 g7.5 |.68
Total operating costs 2,441.7 46.21 21013 4047
Net cwnership costs 181.4 3.43 i38.4 2.67
Total costs 2,6213.1 49.64 22397 43,14
Tota! operating costs
exchiding fuel 1,634.5 30.93 1,392.6 26.82
Total costs
excluding fuel 1,815.9 34.36 1,531.0 2949

*Undertying measures exclude the £11.0 miflion profit on disposal of assets hekd for sale n 2009
and €125 miflion of GB Airways niegauon cosisn 2008,

Total costs

Total cost per seat excluding fuel was up 16.5% or £4.87 per seat to £34.36in
2009, compared to 2008. In addition to the strengthening of the US dollar and
euro, the Swiss franc strengthened by 19%. As a significant proportion of the
cost base is denominated in these currencies, this has had a significant impact
on unit costs. Excluding the impact of exchange rates, cost per seat excluding
fuel was up 6.2% or £1.83 per seat compared to last year.

The impact of the reduction in global interest rates has had a significant impact
an interest income n the year; interest income in 2009 at £18.4 milion was
£30.5 million lower than the £48.9 milion reported in 2008. These changesin
interest rates are largely out of easyjet’s control so, excluding the impact of this
reduction, operating cost per seat (excluding fue! and at constant cunrency)
was up 39% compared to 2008, On a cost per ASK basis, excluding fuel,

costs Increased by 13.6% but on a constant currency basis by just 3.5%.

Again, exduding the impact of interesi ncome, this figure falls to 1.3%.

As a result of the reduction in winter flyng activity ang wzilsation, unit cost
measures are adversely impacted as non-variable costs are spread over
relatively fewer units of production.
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Ground handling

Ground handling cost per seat at constant currency was up £0.27 or 6.6%
compared to 2008. Approximately 61% of ground handling costs are now
denominated in euro, up 6ppt from 2008. The drivers of this increase inchude
airport mix, as preserice continues to be increased in the top European
airports (estimated impact £C.14 per seat), the full year effect of PRM
(Passengers with Reduced Mobility) charges and increased adverse weather
related de-iing costs.

Airport charges

Airport cost per seat at constant currency was up £0.59 or 7.8% compared
to 2008, Approximately 58% of these costs are denominaled in eurc,

up 7 percentage points from 2008. The key driver of this increase has been
over-inflavon price rises in airport passenger related charges at a number of
lacations across the network, increasing costs by approximately £30 mitlion.
Significant increases have occurred at Gatwick, Luton, Amsterdam and

at alt Sparish and Italian airports. Mix continues (o IMpact as we increase
our presence (n the top European airports, In a speafic response to the
uneconomic level of charges at Luton, easylet announced in September
2009 that it would remove some flying for 2010 and redeploy aircraft

1o more profitable actvity elsewhere,

Crew

Crew cost per seat at constant currency was up £0:44 or 8.7% compared

10 2008. Anincreasing proportion of these costs are denominated in
non-sterfing currendies as more overseas contracts are introduced and
approximately 25% of these costs are now denominated in euro and 9% in
Swiss franc. The increase in unit costs has been driven by last year's crew pay
deal which was linked to August 2008 RP), the increased costs associated with
the introduction of everseas contracts (a necessary part of the expansion
strategy into continental Europe) and maintaining higher than required crew
nurbers over the winter, whilst there was reduced aircraft utifisation, as these
crew were required for the summer activity.

Crew costs continue to be a key area of management focus with significant
opportunities for efficiency improverent in the medium term.

Maintenance

Maintenance cost per seat at constant currency was dewn £0.12 or 4.1%
compared to 2008, The net reduction in unit cost manly refiects the benefit
of the reduction in the number of leased aircraft as the Boeing 737-700s
have started 10 leave the fleet partly offset by the full year costs of the

rew in-house maintenance planning function. During the year, 12 leased
Boeing 737-700s and four leased (ex GB) A320s were retumed to lessors.
Approximately 35% of maintenance costs are denominated in US dollar

and 2% in euro,

At the end of the year, negotiations were completed with SR Technics
on a new maintenance contract which will deliver savings of around
£175 milion over the 11 yearlife of the contract.

Insurance and other costs

Other costs per seat at constant currency were up £0.57 or 9.3% compared
to 20C8. The main drivers of this per seat increase were reduced utilisation
and an increase n disruption costs {driven by bad weather in the winter)
partally offset by the profit on the Boeing spares optimisation project,

as reported in te first half of the financial year
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Ownership costs

Net ownership costs, on a per seat basis at constant currency, were up

£0.52 or 194% compared to 2008. The average number of aircraft during
the year was 174.1, up 16.0% compared to the previous year The number

of non-operational aircraft increased by nine compared to last year principally
due to aircraft held for sale and an increase in alrcraft in maintenarice as
easyjet prepared aircraft for return to lessors, There were 35 additions
during the year, 3| debt financed and four cash financed; 12 Boeing 737-700s
and four ex-GB A320s were retumned to lessors and three ex-GB A32ls
were sold.

Net ownership costs include interest income which has fallen from

£483 million in 2008 to £(8.4 miliion in 2009, a fall of £30.5 million due to

the dramatic drop in market interest rates and despite cash balances and
money market deposits rising from £863 million at 30 September 2008 to
£1,075 milion at 30 September 2009. Gross ownership costs i.e. excluding
the impact of interest income, on a constant currency basis, improved by
£0.13 per seaz or 3.5%, This benefit is driven by the ext of higher cost leased
Boeing 737-700 aircraft and replacement by lower cost owned Ajrbus aircraft
and lower interest rates feeding into interest payable as rates are re-priced

to market.

Unit costs have been impacted by the reduced winter flying activity with costs
of the fleet that is, on average, 16.0% larger being spread over a simifar amaunt
of seats flown as last year.

The exit of higher cost 737-700 aireraft is well under way and this, together
with the exit of higher cost aircraft acquired as part of the acquisition of GB
Airways, is expected to delver the targeted benefits in aircraft ownership,

CHARTS
REMOVED

*Undertying number; exchudes an {11 million profiton the sale of three arcraftn 2009 and
£12.9 million of one-off integration costs for GB Airways n 2008,

Headline profit before 1ax for 2009 was £54.7 million: after excluding the
one-off benefit of the prefit on sale of three ex-GB A321s. undertying profit
before tax was £43.7 million, This is a fall of £79.4 million in underlying profit
before tax compared to 2008, despite the fuel bill rising £98.5 million. With
total revenue per seat increasing by 10.9% and total cost per seat increasing
by 15.1%, profit margin dropped by 3.6 percentage poinis to |.6%.

Profit after tax and retum on equity

At the end of 2009, favourable resclution was reached with HMRC on a
prior year tax matter resuiting in the release of a provision. This release has
contributed to an effective tax credit rate for the year of 30.23 compared to
an effective tax charge rate of 24.5% in 2008, For 2010 the effective tax rate 15
expected to be a charge of 25%.

The tax provision release also had a signdicant impact on the return on
equity n 2009, For the year it was 5.5% compared to 6.8% 1n 2008, a fall of
1.3 perventage points. Although underlying profit before tax fell by 64.5%.
retained profit, significandy impacted by the 1ax provision release. fel by only
144%, With sharehotders’ funds broadly flat year on year, the resuftant retumn
on equity is therefore only down by |3 percernage points.

Basic earnings per share. at 169 pence, is down 14,6% compared to 2008,
reflecting the significant drop in retained profit. being offset, to a large extent,
bry the tax provision release,

In line with established policy. no dividends have been paid or propesed in the

year ended 30 September 2009 or during the comparative accounting peried,
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Balance sheet and cash flow

As discussed in the Business Review, the industry has faced challenging
economic conditions in 2009, However, easyfet continued to generate

a strong cperating cash flow and ended the year with over £] bilionin
cash and short-term liguid depesits, a strong balance sheet and significant
undrawn committed financing to fund future aireraft deliveries.

A clear focus on working capital and balance sheet management has
put easylet in a strong position to withstand the current economic
climnate and to emerge strongen.

Despite a significant tightening of credit in capital markets, easyjet

has capitalised on the strength of its business model and financial position
to secure addiional debt and lease financing 1o add to that agreed in
December 2007,

Summary balance sheet +08
2009 (resmed  Change
€ million £ dien £ mion
Goodwil 365.4 3654 -
Property, plant and equiprment 1,612.2 11026 5096
Other non-current assets 213.2 2184 52
2,190.8 1.686.4 5044
Net working capital (537.3) (3065}  (2308)
Cash and cash equivalents 788.6 6322 1564
Money market deposits 186.3 2303 560
Borrowings (1,120.6) 6269y  (4937)
Other non-current liabilities (300.5) (3373 36.8
Net assets 1,307.3 1,278.2 291
Share capital and premium 748.5 745% 26
Reserves 558.8 5323 265
Shareholders’ funds 1,307.3 1,278.2 291

~Fair value adiustments in respect of GB Ainways, ses note 23 te the accounts,

Shareholders’ funds increased by £2%1 milion in the year, the profit afier tax
being offset by a reduction in the fair value of the Group's cash flow hedges
ret of deferred tax. The strengthening of the US dollar and the eurc against
sterling in the year has caused a significant reducuon in the fair value of the
Group's currency derivative portfolio; this was partially offset by a decrease
in the value of the et fuel derivative liability as fuel prices fell. These fair value
gains and losses are deferred in equity and recyded to the income statement
in ine with the underiying hedged tramsaction.

Goodwill was £3654 milion at 30 September 2009, Provisional fair values of
assets and liabilities acquired through a business combination may be adjusted
for 12 months following the acquisition date; for GB Airways this period ended
on 31 January 2003. Since 30 September 2008, the fair value of maintenance
provisons has been increased reflecting additional hiabitties relating to

engines on aircraft held under operating leases. After allowing for tax refief,
goodwill relating to the GB Airways acquisition increased by £5.6 million

to £55.8 million. Comparative balances have been adjusted to reflect that
these liabilities were extant at the acquisition date.

The net increase n property, plant and equipment in the yearwas £505.6
milion. Additions 1n respect of new arcraft delivered, pre-delvery deposits
for future delveries and non-aincraft fixed assets wotalled £515.0 milion, this
was ofiset by depreciation charged in the year of £554 million and disposals
of £49 million. Duning the year, easylet tock delivery of an additional 20 A319
aircraft and the first 15 easylet specification A320 aircraft. Three ex-G2
Airways A3l aireraft were sold gererating a profit of £15.0 milion.

These assets had been transferred to assets held for sale in 2008. Four A32i
arcraft remain as assets held for sale at 30 Septamber 2009. The five easylet
specification A3 aircraft disclosed as assets held for sale at 30 September
2008 were taken off the market in the year and returned to property. plant
and equipment at their book value of £54.9 million. Potential purchasers have
found credit hard 1o obtain in the current market and the Board has agreed to
retain these owned aircraft to support the European expansion plans in 2010.

MNet working capital improved by £230.8 milion in the year Assets held

for sale decreased by £121.7 millicn with three AZ21s sold and five A319s
returned to property, plant and equipment. Trade and other payables
ncreasec by £97.7 millon as a result of additionzl unearmed income, the
ncrease i the size of the business and efficent warking capital management,
Uneamed income increased due 10 the strength of the euro aganst steriing
and as a result of the schedule now being on sale out for up 1o 11 months.

in addition, the fair value of short-term derivative bafances decreased

£43.6 million year-on-year as the US dollar and eure strengthened

against steriing,

The total of cash and cash equivalents and money market deposits was
£1,074.9 milion at 30 September 2009 up £2124 milion compared to

30 September 2008, Net cash of £134.5 million was generated from
operations as a result of cash received in advance from customers and strong
working capital management. £90.2 million was received from the sale of
three ex-GB A321 aircraft and other fixed assets in the year The purchase
of aircraft in the year was funded predominantly by additional borrowings.
Of the 35 A320 family aircraft delvered in the year, 31 were mortgage
financed. Money market deposits are held partially in US dollars to provide

a match against LS dollar denorminated borrowings,

Excuded from the above total is £72.3 million of restricted cash disclosed

irs ather non-current assets and net working capital. These amounts relate
principally to operating lease deposits and customer payments for holidays.
The totat of cash and cash equivalents, money market deposits and restricted
cash at 30 September 2003 was £1,i47.2 million (30 September 2008:
£928.7 millon).

As detailed above, most aircraft delveries were funded from agditional
borrowings. Total borrowings increased by £493.7 million in the year 1o
£1,120.6 milion as a result of £468.2 million of new draw downs net of
repayments and foreign exchange movements of £25.5 milien on the
retranslation of debt. Most borrowings are denominated in US dollars;
however sorme faclities were drawn in euros for the first time in the year.
The LS dollar rate moved from 1.78 at 30 Septernber 2008 to 1.50

at 30 September 2009,

Other non-current fiabilities indude mantenance prowvisions for work due

to be performed in more than one year of £168.6 million, deferred income
relating principally to the excess of sale price over fair value for arcraft subject
to sale and leaseback of £52.6 million, deferred tax liabilities of £76.7 million
and long-term financial instrument liabilives of £2.6 milion.

Maintenance provisions have been impacted by the movemnent in the

US dollar and euro exchange rates in the year. Deferred tax liabilities have
decreased by £31.4 milion since 30 September 2008 as a result of the
reduction in the value of cash flow hedges, reduced accelerated capital
allowances and the recognition of a deferred tax asset on losses; offset

by a charge for increased short-term operating timing differences.




28 easyJet plc

Annual report and accounts 2009

)

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED
Net (debt) / funds (excluding restricted cash)
200% 2008 Crangs
£ million £ milon £ milion
Cash and cash equivalents 788.6 6322 1564
Money market deposits 186.3 2303 56.0
1,074.9 862.5 2124
Bank loans {1,010.7) (5249) (485.8)
Finance lease obligations (109.9) (102.0) (79)
(1,120.6) (6269 (4937
Net {(debt) / funds (excluding
restricted cash) (45.7) 2356 (281.3)

The net of cash and cash equivalents, money rmarket deposits and borrowings
(excluding restricted cash) at 30 September 2009 was a net debt position of
£45.7 million (30 September 2008: net funds of £235.6 millicn) following the
funding of capital expenditure through additional borrowings in the year.

Gearing increased i the year from 28.7% to 37.6%. The increase is a result of
additional borrowings relating to new owned aircraft and the movement in
the US dollar exchange rate. Geanng 1s consistent with that reported at the
half year. Additional debt drawdown in the secand half of the year has been
offset by improved shareholders' funds as a result of profits earmed in the
summer and the reversal of fair value fuel hedge losses deferred in equity

at 31 March 2009,

Despite reduced profit fevels in 2009, easyet generated a positive operating
cash flow in 2009 of £134.5 miltion as a result of a sirong improvement in
working capital

Capital expenditure in the year was funded from further borrowings and is
shown net of the proceeds from the sale of the three A32| aircraft and other
assets in the year.

The value of cash holdings benefized from forelgn exchange moverrents
following the strengthening of both the US dollar and the euro against sterling.

CHART
REMOVED

Summary cash flow
2009 2008 Change

£ millon £ nifion £ mion
Cash generated from operations 134.5 296.2 (lel.7y
Acaquisition of GB Airways - (118.0) 1180
Net capital expenditure {430.3) (2999) (1304)
Net increase/{decrease) in loan
finance 470.1 (5.5 475.6
Net increase in money market Undrawn committed financing facilities
deposits (29.0) 8.7) (20.3) Uss mﬁﬁ.:: s réﬁ USSG;;E‘
Other induding the effect of
exchange rates 15.1 490 (379) December 2007 facility 278 885 (607)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and Revolving credit fadility 150 250 -
cash equivalents 1564 (869) 2433 Facilities at 30 Seprember 528 1,135 {607)
Cash and cash equivalents at Sale and leasebadk finance secured
begnning of year 832.2 715 (865)  after the balance sheet date 222 - 222
Cash and cash equivalents at Undrawn committed
end of year 788.6 6322 1564 financing facilities 750 1135 (385)

Cf the $937 million aircraft financing faciity agreed in Decernber 2007,

$52 million was drawn in the year ended 30 September 2008, an additional
$607 eillon was drawn in the current year, leaving $278 million for future
deliveries. Seven A320 deliveries in the year were funded from additional
mortgage finance secured in September 2003,

In addition to the undrawn December 2007 facilites of $278 million, easy|et
has an undrawn revoiang credit faality in place for $250 million, gvng total
undrawn facilities at 30 Septermber 2009 of $528 millien.

Subsequent to the year end n November 2009, easyjet secured $222 milion
of addiyonal sale and |leaseback finance bringing totat urdrawn faciliies 10
$750 million. Future airgraft deliveries will be funded through a combination
of undrawn committed facilities and surplus cash.
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Going concem

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the accounts, the Directors
have considered the business activities as set out on pages 1610 19 as well

as easylet's principal risks and uncertainties as set out on pages 28 10 29,
Based on easylet’s cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied
that easylet will be able to operate within the level of its facilities and available
cash for the foreseeable future. For this reason, easyJet continues to adopt
the going concem basis in preparing its accounts.

Significant contracts

easylet operates a {leet constituted manly of Airbus*® aircraft with some
Boeings which are being phased out. Engines are provided by CFM and IAE
and maintenance of aircraft and engines is undertaken by SRT, Virgin®,
Aerotron*, GE, MTU and Lufthansa. The major lessors of aircraft to easyjet
are AWAS* BOC Aviation*, GRCAS* Nomura Babcock & Brown®, Royal
Bank of Scotland® and Sumisho*. The major lenders to easyjet for aircraft
purchase are Alliance & Leicester®, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi®, BNP Paribas®,
Calyon*, HSH Nordbank*, Kivw*, Matixis*, PK Airfinance*, Royal Bank of
Scotland™, Surritorno Mitsui Banking Corperation® and WestLB*,

Qur miin insurers are Global, AIG, Kiln, Canada Life, QBE, Chubb, Ace
and Allianz,

One of our biggest costs is fue! and our main suppliers are Shell, Air BP, Exxon
and Q8. OurlT systems include agreements with AIMS, who provide crew,
airgraft and flight management control and operation software; SAVVIS who
provide data centre hosting facilives: Lufthansa who provide flight planning
systerns; SOPRA, who develop our reservaticns system; and Agresso who
provide cur accounting system.

On 30 September 2009 the Company had 20 bases and they were
operated by

BAA

AdP

Saint Louls — EurcAirport Basel-Muhouse-Freiburg
Manchester Airports Group
South West Arports
Abertis

Peel Holdings

Aeroports de Lyon
Fughafen Berlin-Schoenefeld
Aeroporti Di Milano
Newcastle Airport

Geneva International Airport
AENA

At these airports our ground handling was carried out by:

Menzies Aviation
Servisair

Group Europe Handling
Awviapartner

Swissport

SEA Handling
Globeground Berlin

Cur main ancillary partners are Gate Gourrmet. who provide ourin-flight
merchandise, Eurcpcar, who provide car rental, Hotelopia and Laterooms
who broker hotels and Alvia who, through the Mondial brand, provide insurance.

Qur credit card acquirers are Elavon, Lloyds TSB, Euroconnect, Barclays
Merchant Services and American Express. Our payment service providers
are CyberSource and Bbit.

The Company is regulated by the CAA and easyjet Switzerland is regufated
by FOCA. We have impartant relationships with NATS and Eurocontrol in
relation to air traffic services.

The rmain unions we daal with in the UK are BALPA, UNITE and ALAE:
in France they are SNPL and UNAC/CFTC: in Spain they are SEPLA and
CCOO; in Italy ANPAC CISL; and in Switzerand BALPA and ESPA.

We use training services from CTC and fiight simulation services from CAE.

We have a key relationship with easyGroup IP Licensing who own
the easyjet brand.

*These contracts contain provisions giving the other party the right 10 terminate i there is a change
n ¢control neasylet.

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

easylet aims to have partnership agreements with suppliers, which stresses
the importance of sirong suppliers aligned to the success of easylet as a
business, Mary of cur supply agreements are unique and tailored 1o the needs
of the business, to make sure that suppliers are rewarded appropriately for
delivering services which meet pre-agreed performance targets and align with
easylet's own internal performance goals. Our practice is to:

+F agree the terms of payment at the start of business with the supplier
¥ ensure that those suppliers are made aware of the terms of payments
*+ pay in accordance with contractual and other legal obligations

At 30 September 2009, the number of creditor days outstanding for the
Group was 15 days (2008: ten days), and for the Comparnty was nil days
{2008: ni days).
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Principai risks and uncertainties

This section cescribes the prncipal nsks and urcertainties which may affect easylet's business, financial results and prospecss.

Rk descnouon Potertal mopact

Margation

Safety and security

Safety/security incident: Failure to
prevent a saety or secunty incident or deal
with it effectively.

Agdversely affect our reputation, operational and
financial performance.

Qur number one priority is the safety of our customers
and people. We operate a strong safety managerment
system through:

F Fatigue Risk Managerent Systermn:

¥ Incdent reporting; w
+ Safety Review Board;

3 Safety Action Group:

We also have response systems in place and provide
training for ¢risis management. -

External risks

Economic demand for air travel:
easylet’s business can be affected by macro
economic issues outside of its control such as
weakening consumer confidence or inflationary
pressures,

Adverse pressure on revenue, icad factors
and potentially resicual values of aircraft.

Regular monitoring of markets and route performance
by our network and fleet management tears.

Strong balance sheet supports business through
challenging economic conditions for the sector:

Appropriate mix of owned and leased aircraft reduces
residual value exposure.

Competition: easylet operates in competitve  Loss of market share and erosion of revenue,
marketplaces against both flag carriers and other
lew-cost arines.

Routne monitoring of competitor actrity.
Rapid response In antiopation of and to changes,

Regulatory intervention: Many of the Airport charges may rise. Furthermore, slots rmay
arports which easylet fiies 1o are regulated, and  not become readily avalable. This may adversely
as such, charges are levied by way :)? regulatory  impact our cost base and require us to revise our
dedisicn rather than by commerdial negotiation.  network developmertt plan.

Many airports are aiso slot constrained and

therefore also subject to regutation.

easylet has a key role 1” nfuenang the future state of
regulations. One example of its pro-actveness is the
instigation of a judiaal review of the Civil Aviation
Authority (CAA) which may lead to changes in the
economic regulation of increases to UK arport charges.

Potential impact on cansumer demand for

Environmental impact: Consumer
the core business.

attitude to dimate change,

Regulation and oversight across Europe:  Lack of awareness of local regulations or
Retaining control and oversight of local rmanagement issues could have adverse
regulatory and management issues across the operational, reputational and financial
network as the Company grows geographically,  consequences.

Erwironmental Management Group that co-ordinates
ervironmental policy and public communications.

easylet operates modem, fuel-efficient aircraft
operating at high capacity and flies to conveniently
located airports.

Country oversight boards are being established for
our main markets.

Reputational risks

Business continuity: easyjet's head office
1s located at a major Londen alrport.

A loss of facilities could lead to disruption.

Alternative site is in place should there be a need to
relocate at short notice due to loss of facilities.

IT security and fraud risk: easyjet
receives most of its revenues through credit
cards and as an e-commerce business, faces
external and internal IT security risks.

A security breach could result in a material
adverse effect for the business and severe
reputational damage.

Systerns are secured and monitored against .
unauthorised access. :

Scanning software for fraudulent customer activity that is
monitored and controlled by Revenue Protection team.

Earfier this year the Court held that some of

the Licensor's requests for dedarations about
interpretation of Brand Licence provisions could only
be tried if they were amended to breach of contract
claims. The Licensor subsequently amended its case
to cdaim specific breaches of contract and served a
number of notices of breach. However, the
substantrve points of difference between the parves
remain materialfy unchanged.

Brand ownership: The clairm brought by
easyGroup IP Licensing Lirmited {Licensor’)
aganst the Company in the High Court for
clanficaton of certan termrs of its Brand Licence
agreement with the Compary continues,

it is now anticipated that the case wil be heard in
the High Court during June 2010. The Comparny
rermans confident that its response 1o the clams is
well founded.




Annual report and accounts 2009

Overview
+» Business review

Govemnance

Accounts

Oriher information

Rk deseripuon

Rotenviial impact

Mrugauon

E-commerce risk

Dependence on technology: easyjet is
heavily dependent on the website easyjetcom
and three key systems in particular: eRes, which
is used to process seat purchases and manage
reservations; RMS which is used for yield
management; and AIMS, which is used to
manage operational data and crew positioning.

An outage of any of these key systems could have

a material adverse eflect for the business.

Two server focations are run in parallel resulting
in a highly resifient system architecture which is
subject to review and testing.

easy)et has a comprehensive system of back-up
and protection,

People risks

Industrial action: Large parts of the easyjet
workforce are unionised. The same applies to
our key third-party service providers, where
smilar issues exist.

Retention of key management: Due to
easyjet’s lean business model. the Company is
reliant on certain key managers.

If there is a breakdown in this process, then
operations could be disrupted with a resuitant
adverse effect on the business,

Loss of key personnel could result in a short-term

lack of necessary expertise in certain positions.

Cellective bergaining takes place on a regular basis.

Bi-annwal talent maragernent and succession
planning of key positions.

Key supplier risk

Dependence on third-party service
providers: easylet has entered into
agreements with third- service providers
for services covering a significant proporton of
its cost base. There can be no assurance that
contract renewals will be at favourable rates,

The loss of any of these contracts, any inability to
renew them or any inability to negotiate
replacement contracts could have a materal
adverse effect on future operating costs.

Centralised procurement department that negotiates
key contracts.

Most developed markets have suitable alternative
service providers.

Financial risks

Fuel price and currency fluctuations:
Sudden and significant increases in jet fuel prce
and foreign exchamge rates would significantdy
imnpact fuel costs and other foreign currency
denorminated costs.

if not protected against, this would have a material

adverse efiect on finandial performance.

Policy to hedge within a percentage band for rolling
24 month peried.

To prowide protection, the Grous uses a imited range
of hedging instruments traded in the over the counter
(OTC) markets, principally forward purchases, with

a number of approved counterparties.

Financing and interest rate risk: All of
the Group's debt is asset related, reflecting the
capital intensive nature of the aiine industry.

Market conditions could change the cost of finance
which may have an adverse effect on the financial

performance.

Group interest rate management policy aims to
provide certainty in a proportion of its financing,

QOperating lease rentals are a mix of fixed and {loating
rates {currently 60% to 40%).

Al on balance sheet debt floatng rate, re-priced
up to six moniths.

A portion of US dollar mortgage debt is matched
with LS doflar money market deposits.

Liquidity risk: The Group continues to hold
significant cash or kiquid funds as a form of
insurance,

Lack of sufficient liquid funds could resuitin
business disruption and have a rmaterial adverse
effect on financia performance.

Board policy is to maintain an absalute minimum fevel
of free cash and money market depesits.

Allows business to ride out downiturms in business or
temporary curtailment of activities (e.g, fleet grounding,
security incident, extended industrial dispute at key
supplier).

Committed borrowing fadilities of LUS$0.5 billion at
30 September 2009,

Credit, risk: Surplus funds are invested in high
quality short-term liquid instruments, usually
money market funds or bank deposits.

Possibility of material foss arising in the event of
non-periormance of counterparties given recent
wrmoll in financial markets.

Cash is placec on deposit with institutions based
upon eredit rating with a maximum exposure of
£100 million for AAA ratings.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate responsibility and
how we operate underpins our
long-term prospects and our
future financial performance.
Safety, customer satisfaction,
people and the environment all
matter to our business.

bige 5
Our values:

Our employees are | AG E
driven by our core M

values of safety,

teamwork, pioneering, R EM OVED

passionate and integrity.

Safety is our No.! priority and a dlear imperative
for every arfine, ncluding easylet. We recognise
the risks assocated with operating an airine and
work tirelessly to ensure the safety of our customers,
our people and our shareholders’ investments.

At easylet we believe people make the difference;
by treating cur people well, they will be more
customer-focused and better represent the easylet
brand - and that in turn will drive greater custormer
satisfaction.

In order for aviation to have a long-term future, we
must minimise our ervironmental impact, ensure
that environmenital impacts and the evolving
reguiatory ervronment are considered in all key
business deasions and contnue 1o Invest n a fleet
of young anc fuel-efficient aircraft,

Safety and our custorner propositon are key
strategic prionties and are covered in detal on
pages 8 to 9and 12 to I3 of this publicaton and
therefore this Corporate Respansibility repart
focuses on our approach 1o people and
environmental management.

People

Our business is only as good as the pecple that
we recruit, train and retain, Our people strategy
is underpinned by the comerstones of talent,
engagernent and organisational design and ams
10 ensure that, through strong {eadership, we have
the right skills in the nght place at the right tme,
thereby creating an environment where people
perform better for us than they would for anyone
else, We recognise that having the nght skills,
experience ans cutiure directly iInfluences our
performance across all of our strategic objectives.
Our ethos is expressed through five values; safety
{our No.! priarity — no compromises), tearmwork
{we'll get there faster together}, pioneering
(breaking the mould 1o find new ways and new
opportunities), passionate (were arnbitious to be
the best we ¢an be) and integrity (we mean what
we say, and doitl).

Recruitment

Our employer brand remains a key strength

—we received over 45,000 hits on our website

for opportunities which resulted in over 20000
applications, the quality of these applications was
high and continues to ensure that we have buoyant
holding pools from which to source our

future employees.

We continue to focus on recruiting crew that live
and breathe our values and have, for the past few
years, changed the emphasis of our employment
model to match the seasonal peaks of our business.
We recruited 672 cabin crew in the year; our
strategy to employ on fixec werm contracts and
invite people back year after year enables us to
manage our business flexibly whilst maintaining

our high standard of operation. We also operated
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the Flexicrew scheme for our pilot requirements,
employing 92 pilots across seven bases for fixed
periods of time, to meet our operational needs.

Following the consolidation of easyTech and GB
into the easyjet engineering and maintenance
iunction, our focus has been on integration and
building talent for our future growth, We have
recruited 28 people into the function this year
fallowing the in-sourcing of several activities
previously undertaken by a third party supplier,
This exercise has enabled us to manage the safety,
oversight, availability and reliability of the ever
grawing fleet. This has been another positive step
forward in ensuring a world-dass operation and a
fully integrated engineering and maintenance function,

Training

A wide variety of people joined easyjet through
the year. Ve have looked to continuously improve
our well-established and thorough induction
training programme for crew and are in the
nrocess of refreshing our offering for those within
the Management and Administration (M&A)
popufation. This will ensure that all of cur new
jeiners understand the easylet cutture, what we
value, our strategic objectives and how they can
contribute 1o our success from day one. easyjet
wants people who are new to the organisation to
settle in as quickly and efficiently as possible and
will continue to invest in the induction process for
everyone's benefit.

We continue to partner with leading schoals such
as Cranfield University and Londoen City University
to ensure our managers get high guality support in
developing both their technical and management
skills. \We continue to build and maintain good
relationships with well regarded research and
advisory erganisations and many of our senior
managers continue to represent easylet at
numerous extemal events hosted by these

leading organisations.

Retention

easylet targets a sensible balance of retention

and attrivon, bensfiting from ourinvestment in
recruitment and training, combined with continual
injection of fresh thinking. Retention rates are
influenced by rewards (including pay, benefits

and career development opportunities) and
employee engagement.

We recognise that it is often beneficial to the
business to identify and develop talent intemally
together with recuiting externally. Four years
ago, we developed our talent identification and
sugcession planning process, which is now
embedded in our organisation, As a result, we are
more effective at iderifying ang retaining a pool
of talent internally on which we can draw as key
roles become vacant or new roles are created.
Consequently, whilst we have experienced higher
than normal turmover among senior managers
this year, we have been able to source some
replacernents from within our talent pool whilst

4 Me

IMAGE

REMOVED

Award-winning
share plan

Over 80% of
employees particpate in
our muitt award wanning
easylet Shares 4 Me.

dso taking the opportunity to refresh our talent
mix from outside. Overall unforced staff tumover
has improved by 5.] percentage points to 69%
since 2008, although understandably, the tough
economic enviconment may have also significantly
influenced employees’ decision 1o stay at easyjet.

Turning Europe Orange

In ine with our quest o "Turn Europe Orange”
we have made significant progress in expanding
our employer presence across Europe. In 2009,
easyJet continued to grow its employee base in
Italy, Spain and France, strengthening our position
as a truly pan-European air transport, network.

As at 30 September 2009, easyjet employed 6,666

people (2008: 6,107), based throughout Europe as
ilustrated below:

United Kingdom 4473
Switzerland 498
France 435
Spain 432
laaly 521
Germany 307
Total 6,666
Equality and diversity

easylet is an equal opportunities ermnployer:

We ensure that our employees and applicants
do not receive less favourable treatment on the
basis of their age, colour, creed, disability, ill or
part time status, gender, marital status, nationality
or ethnic origin, race, religion or sexual orientation.
Applications from disabled employees are always
fully considered, bearing in ming the aptitudes

of the applicant concemed. In the event that

one of our people becormes disabled every effort
is made to ensure that their employment at
easylet continues and training is arranged

where appropriate.

Reward

easylet offers a competitive rewards package
and reviews salanes annually in line with market
rates o ensure continued alignment to the
market. The rewards package includes an annual
performance-driven bonus, based on personal
and Company performance, which encourages
al employees to contnbute towards achieving our
strategic objectives. Employees are also eligble to
participate in a Group personal pension towards
which easylet contributes, as well as having the
option to make their own contributions through
salary sacrifice.

Share schemes

easylet once again offered all employees the
opportunity 10 join its popular all-employee share
pian, easyjet Shares 4 Me, The plan has won five
rmajor awards to date, and involves three elements:
Save As You Earn (SAYE); Buy As You Earn (BAYE)
and Free Shares. Each scheme is Her Majesty's
Reverue & Customs (HMRC) approved and

is open to all employees on the UK payroll,

For employees whe are on non-UXK payrolls,
international schemes have been established with
similar terms and conditions to the UK scheme,
albeit without the UK 1ax benefits, Parucipauon in
the scheme remains very strong, with over 80%
of eligible staff now taking part in one or more

of the plans.
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Your benefits

In January 2009, we ntroduced 'Your Benefits”

to UK staff. This enables employees to access
programmes and savings which would nct be
available to thern on an individuzl basis. The benefit
choices for 2009 included car breakdown cover,
childcare vouchers, a “cycle to work” scheme,
dental and optical insurance. Give As You Earm,
health screening, income protection insurance,

life assurance and prvate medical insurance. There
are also "lifestyle’" products which offer discounts
on a wide range of products and services.

Employees make further savings in tax and
National Insurance for many of these benefits,
through salary sacrifice. easylet’s National Insurance
savings contribute to the financing of the scherme,
which is fully outsourced.

Staff trave!

Discourited staff trave! continues to be a popular
benefit avallable to all easylet employees.
Unlimited staff trave! on the entire easylet network
is available for easylet employees, their dependants
and up to three nominated companions, subject
10 availability. easylet employees made 7346l
backings using staff travel during the year, a total
of 126,562 seats flown, The most popular route
purchased by our employees was the London
Gatwick to Malaga route.

IMAGE
REMOVED

Employee engagement
Commurication

easyfet is committed to ensuring high employee
satisfaction and engagement levels across its
business. Engaged and motivated employees are

a ¢ritical enabler for us to deliver on all of our
strategic objectves, for example by dentifying ways
that we ¢an mprove our customer proposition,
decrease our cost base, and, operate safely at

&l tmes.

One way in which we achieve these high levels of
employee advocacy and engagemerit is our ability
to underpin our culiural values in how we work
with our people through informing and consulting
with thern, Our flat management struciure enables
us to communicate directly with alt our employees,
A number of communrication forums are also in
place; in addition, easylet is currently establishing

a European works councit called the easylet
European Forum. This representative group
provides a communication vehicle for information
and consultation at a European level for issues that
affect employees in more than one country.

The aim of this forum is threefold: to assist in
sharing best practice and communication across
the business, to raise awareness and understanding
of European-wide issues and how they affect us,
and to inform us on what we can do to ensure

we remain successful and true to our principle

of low cost.

We work with our emplayee representatives and
recognise a number of trade unions across Europe.
easylet has not lost any days due to industrial
action during the year. In addition, we have joint
working groups actively engaged in improving
productivity in lfestyle related matters for our
crew; activites which are consistent with our brand
promise and cultural values. We survey opirion
directly with all our crew members to take
"temperature checks” on how we are progressing
and how their needs are changing,

Pulse

We monitor and identify ways to improve
employee satisfaction through our annual Pulse:
survey, which al employees are encouraged to
participate in. This year, only 36% of employees
participated in Pulse — a disappointing response
rate which we believe may be due to our crew's
perception that management would be unfikely
10 put any suggestions into effect because of the
difficult ecanomic environment. Of those that did
respond to the survey, however, 66% of our people
indicated they are erther satisfied or very satisfied.
with high levels of both employer and service
advocacy helping us to deliver our customer
proposition. Summansed Pulse resuits are

shown below:

2009 W08 Varirce
Response rate 36% 7%  (36)ppt
Satisfaction 66% 72%  (B)ppt
Service advexacy 0% 7%  (dppt
Engagement 70% 72%  {(Dppt

Great place towork ~ 60% 69%  (Fppt
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ETS

EU Emissions
Trading Scheme
We were leading
proponerits for
aviation's entry

into EU ETS.

The executive management team expected that
the Pulse results would decline in 2009 because
of the unprecedented economic uncertainty and
significant pressure to reduce costs. However,
easylet is focused on addressing any concems
identified and, 1o this end, has made & commitment
1o make a step change improvermnent in
communication processes and resource across the
business. In particular, there is a plan to re-energise
the base sponsorship programme around the
network for all members of the easyjet leadership
team. This will improve the understanding
between people based in the network and those
based n the cantral office at Hangar 85.

GEM awards

During the year, we have continued to promote
our values with our “Going the Extra Mite”
employee award programme. These awards are
designed to recognise employees who go beyond
what can rightly be expected of them in their role
in order to deliver business success. During the
year, our people have been submitting nominations
Iinked to our customer proposition and values,
together with revenue generation and cost
reduction recommendations,

Successful nominations By customer proposition

Low cost Care Corvenience
12% 60% 28%
Successiul nominations by easyjet value

Safetyy  Tewrmork  Fioneeng  Passionae  husgrity
20% 36% 5% 23% 16%

easylet strives 1o ensure that our recognition
programmes continue to align employee
contribution with business resuits and, to that end,
the award programme will be revised during 2010,

Charitable donations

Cur charity pelicy is to recognise and devote
efforts to a single charity each year. This year, our
chosen charity was The Anthony Nolan Trust.

easylet has worked with The Anthony Nolan Trust
to help promote the charity, with activities including
onboard collections, a “dick ang give” carmpaign
from our website, fundraising activities initiated by
our people, a feature in the inflight magazine and
other public relations activities, £50,000 was
donated to The Anthony Nofan Trust by easylet

as a corporate donation.

Political donations

easylet does not make any donations o any
political party. This in not in line with our values
and would be deemed as inappropriate.

Gifts and gratuities

easylet employees are sometimes sent gifts from
various companies throughout the year. In order
1o provide dear guidance to employees and avoid
oatential conflicts of interest, we have a strict
policy that prevents any employee accepting gifts
over a nominal value of £35. Every Christmas (and
less frequently, at various times through the year)
easylet holds a staff raffle of all the gfis that are
recewed. Every employee across Europe is entered
into the draw and alocated a unigue reference
number, Numbers are then drawn at random and
winners have the gifts sent directly to their home.

easyJet and the
environment

Environmental issues are important to all of us,
and we are committed to ensuring that both
easylet, and the industry as a whole, play our

part in meeting our ervironmental responsibiities.
Everyore at easylet helps deliver on our
environmental commitments, from the cabin
crew who collect waste for recycling to the senior
management working with politicians on climate
change and manufacturers to push for next
generanon aircraft.

Awviation contributes to climate change.

The long-term predominant effect 15 from
carbon dioxide (CCs) emissions, of which
aviation contributes around 3% of man-made
COn emissions. The ovemding environmental
1ssue is tackling climate change.

The target for the industry must be to reduce

its emissions over time, and we welcome the

UK Govemment's endorsement of this approach
when it set industry emissions targets last year.

The industry faces significant challenges: untke many
other sectors, there are no carbon free solutions
on the horizon, and its high profile may put it at
significant risk of punitive measures, This is why we
have been at the forefront of efforts to put aviation
into the EU Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS),a
framework for reducing EU emissions, and driving
the development of next generation acraft Taking
responsble steps is not only the right thing 1o do,
but it also Emits the risk of unreasonable measures
being imposed on the avation industry. Ve are
pleased to report that avaton's entry into EUETS
is now definite. We took a tead role in this work,
and we are now working to ensure that easyjet

is ready for formal entry in 2012, Entry into EUETS
carries both risks and opportunities. However,

we believe that due 1o our efficiency, we are

well placed relative to competitors.
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Qur focus on effidency is central to delvering our
emvironmental commitments, and means we are
sign:ficantly more emvironmentally efficent than
most ather airfines. Over time this will 2lso give

us a competitive advantage, as ervironmentally
inefficient flying will becorre increasingly
unsustainable,

The most significa~t effect of the emissions of
mono-nitrogen oxides (NOx) from aviation are
currently considered to be on local air quality
around airports. All of our aircraft deliveries since
February 2008 have been fitted with the new
CFM56 “Tech Insertion” engines that reduce
NCx errissions by 25% due to better combustion
processes - almost 2 quarter of our fleet are now
fitted with these more environmentally efficient
engines which are also expected to delivera 1%
impravement in COx emissions,

At the airports we operate from, we also have a
local impact on the environment in the form of
noise, However, our business mode! ensures that
the impact of this on the local environment is less
than for many other carriers. Our new aircraft are
amongst the quietest in the industry and we have
very few operations at night {2300 hrs ~ 0600 hrs)
when noise is of the greatest concemn. All of the
aircraft in our fleet are compliant with the latest
required international noise standards, known as
“Chapter 3", but aiso with the fatest more stringent
standard, known as “Chapter 47,

Tackling climate change

The overwhelming majonty of our greenhouse gas
erigsions come from fiying (we esumate less than
1% of our emissions are nen-ftying related). and itis
these emissions which we report on and focus our
efforts on reducing, We are workung to be as
efficient as posable. in particutar by fiying new,
highty efficient aircraft, using our arcraft as
efficiently as poss'ble. conumually focusing on
reducing the emissions from each flight and
working to improve the efficiency of the airspace
we fly in, Due 10 ths, we are the most effivent
arline on a significant majority of the routes we fly.

Qur policy is 1o expand our fleet through the
acquisition of the latest technology aircraft. as
these are more fuel efficient than older models.
Qur average fleet age is 3.5 years, broadly flat
compared to last year, We also use these aircraft
as efficiently as possible, by maximising load factors
and seating density {see ' The easylet efficiency
advantage’, right).

Al aspects of our business mode! are designed
around safety and efficiency. This focus on
efficiency minimises the environmental impact of
each passenger flight. Our network development
has generally focused on substituting services in

500

Shaping the future:
Owver 500 global
comparies, including
easylet, have signed

up to the Copenhagen
Communiqué on
Climate Change.

The easyJet efficiency advantage
An easylet passenger is responsible for 22%
fewer emissions than a passenger on a traditional
airfine to the same destination and using the
same plane

¥ The ypical seating configuration of an Airbus
A3I9is 124" seats. Our Airbus A319s fly with
|56 seats which is 26% more seats than the
normat configuration

= Qur average load factor (percentage of seats
sold) i finzncal year 2009 was 85.5%; the
average load factor for European arlines n
2009 was 68.0%’

+ Therelore, we sell on average 133 seats per
flight; a typical Eurocean airline would sell
84 seats zer flight

+ Each of our Airbus A319s therefore
potentially carries 58% more passengers
per flight than the European norm

+F Even taking the additional fuel bumn into
account for the greater number of passengers,
we estimate that we bum 22% less fuel than
the typical European airline operating an
A319 on the same route

Naoie I: Source: Airbus.
MNote 2: Source: AEA for Jenuary—Awgust 2009,

IMAGE
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markets dominated by inefficient former
state-owned airfines with our more efficient
product ~ 80% of our capacity is deployed in
established markets. While we aim to grow these
markets through our low fares, when we enter

a market we often substitute for exasting less
efficient services. The efficiency that we bring to

a market can even result an overall reduction in
emissions in absolute terms, even if total passenger
numbers increase.

Alongside our operating mode! we work every
day on improving the efficiency of our fiying, and
inthe last year mplemented a number of fuel
saving initatives (see page 15 for more detal).
Finally, by pushing for more efficeni airspace use,
such as Continuous Decent Approaches, we are
demandirg that our service providers match

our level of commutment,

Taking these together we have set a target
to reduce our COz emissions per passenger
Km by 3% by 2011.

CHARTS
REMOVED
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Reducing our emissions

During the year, efficency improvements have
led 10 a significant reduction in emissions intensity.
In particular:

+ Total emissions from our operations continue
to grow at a slower rate than the total RPKs
flown, ind'cating improwving environmental
efficiency

=+ Total COr emissions from operations under
our control grew by 2.5% from 4.3 million
tennes to 4.4 million tonnes, less than the
6.0% increase in RPKs

=+ COr emissions per bocked passenger trip fell
by 0.9% from 98.6 Kg per passenger flight 1o
97.7 Kg per passenger flight, despiie the 2.6%
increase in average sector length

* Average CO; emissions frem our flghts
reduced by 3.3% from 90.3 g COz per
passenger kilometre to 87.3 g COn per
passenger kilometre

During the last nine years cur emissions of CCr
per passenger kilometre have reduced by 25%.

22%

more efficient:

We estimate that we bum
222 less fuel than some of
our competitors on the
same route,

easyJet leads the way

in shaping a greener future

easyjet believes that emissions from aviation will
need to fall in the fong-term, but that achieving this
will require the industry and governments to work
together ft will require step changes in efficiency,
through new technologies, and the right policies
from governments.

We continue to actively engage with both airframe
and engine rmanufacturers in pursuit of this vision
by 2017, further developing the visicn we outfined
in 2007 - the easyjet ecojet, WWe have set out a
platform for an aircrafi that is 25% quieter, emitting
50% less COr and 75% less NOx per passenger
Km than today's aircraft.

We support efforts to include emissions from
international transpert into a post-Kycto climate
change agreement, and along with the business
leaders of over 500 global companies, we have
signed the Copenhagen Communiqué on Climate
Change. We are committed to working with policy
makers across Europe to help shape future polcies.
In addition to our work on ETS, we are working to
irnprove the efficiency of airspace and are involved
in the SESAR (Single European Sky ATM Research)
programme, part of the implementation of the
EU's Single European Sky (SES), which aims to
reduce emissions by at least 109 across Europe.

Alongside this we are invoived in a range of bodies,
including the Sustainable Aviation group in the UK.
We also answered the Carbon Disclosure Project
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Questionnaire as part
of the latest Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP7).

Crucially, we believe it is important that consumers
are giver full and accurate information on the
carbon mpact of their fight We have provided 2
carbon calculator on our website, and consumers
are informed of the emissions they are responsible
for as they book and are given the oppertunity to
offset the carbon ermissions of their flights as part
of the booking process. Our offset scheme only
uses United Natens certified carbon credits,

IMAGE
REMOVED
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01 Sir David Michels

Non Executive Interim Chairman

David (1946) was appointed to the Board on

6 March 2006 and became the Chairman of
easylet on | July 2009, He is currently Deputy
Chrairman of Marks and Spencer plc and is also
Non Executive director of Strategic Hotels &
Resorts, Inc and the lumeirah Group. David has
held a number of senior management and plc
board positions in the leisure industry. He spent
15 years with Grand Metropdlitan, mainly in sales
and marketing, which culminated in a board

position as Worldwide Marketing Director In 1989,

he became Deputy Chairman of Hilton UK and
Executive Vice President, Hilton International.

He joined Stakis in 1991, as Chief Executive,

and became Group Chief Executive of the Hiltton
Group (formerly Ladbroke Group) in June 2000,
a positiory he held until 2006, He was previously
Senior Independent Director at British Land Plc
and Arcadia Plc. He is the current President of the
British Hosptality Assoaation and was knighted in
June 2006 for services to the hospitality industry:

02 Sir Michael Rake

Non Executive Deputy Chairman and

Senior Independent Director

Michae! (1948) was appoinited Deputy Chairman
on | June 2003, He is Chairman of BT Group ple,
The UK Commission for Employment and Skills,
as well as a Director of Banclays PLC, McGraw-Hill,
Inc and the Financial Reporting Council. He is also

Chairman of the private equity oversight

group, the Guidelines Monitoring Committee,
From May 2002 to Septernber 2007, Michael
was Chairman of KPMG International. Prior to his
appointrment as Chairman of KPMG Intermational,
he was Chairman of KPMG in Europe and Senior
Partrer of KPMG in the UK,

03 Andrew Harrison

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew (1957) became Chief Executive Officer
on | December 2005, He was previously the Chief
Executive of RAC plc prior to its acquisition by
Awiva plc in 2005. Andrew joined Lex Service picin
1996 as Chief Executive and led its transformation
from a vehicle distribution company inte RAC ple,
a strongly-branded, consumer-facing services
company with 65 million mermbers, RAC ple
delivered strong growth in a vanety of consumer
services, which incduded 85M. financial and legal
services, as well as good expansion in business
services, winning farge contracts, The successfud
integration of Lex and RAC resutted in astrong
rise in profits and a tripling of the share price during
Andrew's tenure as Chief Executive. Andrew

was a Non Executive Director at Emap between
2000 and 2008 where he also chaired the Audit
Committee. Prior to Lex Service, Andrew was an
Executive Director of Courtaulds Textiles pic.

04 David Bennett

Independent Non Executive Director

David (1962) was appointed to the Board on

I October 2005 and is Chairman of the Audit
Cormmittee. He was recently appointed asa
Director of Pacnet Limited. Prior to this, David was
an Executive Director of Abbey National Pic and
was Group Chief Executive of Alliance & Leicester
ple having previously served as Group Finance
Director. David held a number of senior
managernent positions at Cheltenham &
Gloucester Bulding Society and Lioyds TSB. He
was also an Executive Director of the National
Bark of New Zealand Limited and is a member of
the Assoceton of Corporate Treasurers.

05 Sven Boinet

Independent Non Executive Director

Sven (1953) was appointed to the Board of easyjet
in March 2008, A graduate of Stanford University.
he was previously CEQ of Lucien Barmiére Group
and was recently appointed CEO of Pierre &
Vacances/Center Parcs Group, a €1.5 billion
tumover company leader on the continent of
resort and leisure lodging. He previously held 2
number of serior management roles overa 15 year
period at the French hotels group, Accor, He was
aso a Non Executive Director of lastminute.com
from 2003 until its sale to Sabre in 2005,




+

37 casyJet ﬁlc

Annual report and accounts 2009

Cverview

Business review

<+ Govemnance

Accounts

Ctherinformation

IMAGES
REMOVED

06 John Browett

Independent Non Executive Director

Johin (1963) joired easylet in Septernber 2007,
He 1s currently Chief Executive Officer of DSC
International plc, a position he has held since
December 2007, Prior to joining DSG International,
Johin was the Operations Development Director
of Tesco plec. He joined Tesca as Group Strategy
Director in 1998 and held a number of Execurive
Director positions in the company including
rurning Tescocom from 2000 to 2004 where he
was responsible for formulating and defivering its
strategy fromlaunch to proditzbility.

A praduate of Cambridge University and Wharton
Business School, John was at the Boston Consulting
Group between 1993 and 1998.

07 Professor Rigas Doganis
Independent Non Executive Director

Rugas (1939) was appointed to the Board on

} December 2005. Rigas is an aviation consuitant
and strategy adviser to airlines, airports, banks and
governments around the world, He is Chalrman
of the European Aviation Club in Brussels and a
MNon Executve Director of GMR Hyderabad
International Airport, India. He is a former
Chairman/CEO of Olyrmpic Airways and was
formerly a Non Executive Director of South
Alrican Airways. Rigas is also a visiting Professor
at Cranfield University and the author of books
on aviation economics and management.

08 Sir Stelios Haji-loannou

Non Executive Director

Stelios (1967) founded easyjet in 1995,

He was easylet’s Non Executive Chairman unti
November 2002 and was reappointed to the
Board in May 2005. A graduate of the London
School of Economics and City University Business
School, Stelios founded his first business, Stelmar
Tankers, in 1992, This shipping company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange in 2001 and was
sold in 2005 to OSG shipping group.

Since 1999 Stelios has set up some 16 other
“easy'-branded ventures, which are capitalised
and managed separately from easyjet within
easyGroup Holdings Ltd, Stelios’ private investment
vehicle. An up-to-date list of these businesses can
be found on www.easycom. easyGroup owns
the "easy" brand and licenses it to the vanous
easy-branded ventures (inciuding easylet) and

is also a major shareholder in easyjet plc. Stelios
was knighted in November 2006 for services

10 entrepreneurship.

09 Keith Hammil

Independent Non Executive Director

Keith (1952) was appointed to the Board on

| March 2009. He 15 a Fellow of the nstitute of
Chartered Accountants, is charman of Travelodge
and was Chairman of Go, prior to its acquisition by
easylet in 2002. He has considerable experienca
as a Director of listed companies, is currently the
Chairman of Tullett Prebon and Afterian and was
Chairman of Luminar and Moss Bros. He is also a
Director of Coling Stewart and has previously
been a Director of Electrocomponents and
Cadmus Cormmunications Corp. He was Finance
Director of WH Smith, Forte and United Distillers
and a Partner in PricewaterhouseCoopers. He also
chairs the board of the University of Nottinghamn.

10 Rohert Rothenberyg

MNon Executive Director

Bob (#930), was appointed to the Board on

| August 2009, He is Senior Partner in the
London-hased accountancy firm of Blick
Rothenberg. Bob is a Gevernor of Highgate School
and a Trustee of The Prince’s Foundation for the
Built Emaronment. He was made an MBE in the
2007 New Year's Honours List for services to
business and to the community in London.

The following Cirectors resigned duning the year
Dawn Arey (resigned 31 December 2008)

Sir Colin Crandle~ (resigned | July 2009)

Jeff Carr {resigned 35 Sepember 200%)
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01 Andrew Harrison
Chief Executive Officer
See Directors' profiles.

02 Dana Dunne .

Chief Commercial Officer

Dana (1963) joined easylet in September 2005,
Before joining easyet, Dana was CEO of AOL
Europe, one of the leading online companies

in Europe. Prior to that he was head of the
transformation of AOL in the US. Dana has held
anumber of other senior positions in the telecom
and media industry. At Belgacom he was President
of one of their four business units, Retall Carrier
and Network Services, and prior to this was

MD of the Business Division, At US West, Dama
was Vice President of Strategy and Oevelopment
for US West, Inc. and President of US West
International, Pnor to this Dana was at MdKinsey
& Compary, in theyr Madnd, Brussels, and London
ciices where he was one of the leaders of ther
telecoms practice, Dana has an MBA from the
Wharton School of Business, an MA from the
University of Pennsylvania, and a BA from
Wesleyan University.

03 Mike Campbell

People Director

Mike (1957) joined easylet in October 2005

as People Director: Before joining easylet Mike
worked at Wedgwood in a broad role as Director
of Peopla and Brands and Managing Director for
Carada, Australia and Pan-Asia. Prior to that
Mike worked for 14 years at Rujitsu in a variety of
development and personnel roles across Europe,
Asia, Africa and the Middle East, ending up as
Chief Personnel Officer. His early careerwas

in education and research. Mike has a BScin
Mathematics and Masters in Fluid Dynarnics.

04 Tim Newing

IT Director

Tim (1959) ioined easyjet in August 2006, He has
awide range of expenence across the technology
spectrum and has played a mager role in the
development of the National Lottery over a

ten year period, first as Technical Manager for [T
supplier GTECH UK before joining Camelot as
Head of Projects and Networks in December
2000 and becoming IT Director in March 2002.
During this time, Tim successiully developed and
delivered a series of programmes that saw a period
of major technological innovation, significanty
enhancing the systemns architecture and key
business processes within Europe’s biggest lottery
company, and, at the same time ensuring high
reliability and avadability from the production
systems. His achievements saw him recognised as
the 2005 T Director of the Year in the Jasger-
LeCouftre Telegraph Business Awards.
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05 Cath Lynn 06 Cor Vrieswijk 07 Warwick Brady

Director of Network Development and Planning
Cath (1964) spent 12 years n retal for ] Sansbury
before being head hunted in 1998 by Barbara
Cassani for the start up of Go where she was part
of the management buy out team and headed up
cabin services and on board product development
and later customer services. Cath played an active
role in the merger of Go into easylet. Cath has
successfully carried out a number of senior
management rofes at easyjet including Head

of Ground Operations, Head of Airport
Development and Procurement and Head

of Network Developmenit.

Operations Director

Cor (1958) joned easyjet n January 2007 from
Transavia.com which is a Dutch-based airine
where he was Chief Operations Officer for nine
years and brings 25 years' experience in the aidine
industry. His responsibilities at Transavia.com
included flight operations, cabin operations.
engineering and maintenance and ground handling
together with relevant experience in marketing,
hurnan resources and [T, Cor's first degree was

in engineering folowed up by a Masters Degree
in organisational sciences,

Procurement Director

Warwick (1964) becarme Procurement Director
on 5 Mzy 2009, He has sgif.cant experience of
leachng low cost arines in areas ranging from high
growth and restructuring, through to tumarounds.
Warwick was Deputy Operations Director at
Ryanair from 2002 to 2005, where he held various
executive roles including Deputy CEO of Buzz,
following its acquisition from KLM. More recently,
he spent two years in india as Chief Operations
Officer of Air Deccan. Most recently, Warwick
was CEQ at Mandala Airiines.

08 Mark Adams

Interim Chief Financial Officer

Mark (1964) joined easylet in September 2009 as
Interim Chief Financial Officer; Mark)s a Chartered
Accountant and has held a number of senior
finance roles across a range of sectors, including
mosi recently Helphire Group plc, Alpha Arrports
Group pic and STA, Travel Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principles statement
easyjet s commiited to meeung the required standards of corporate
govermnance,

Statement of compliance

Duning the year the Board considers that it and the Company have complied
with the best practice provisions of Section | of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance of une 2008 without excaption. The Combined
Code is issued by the Financial Reporting Council and available on the
Financial Reporting Council's website, htip/iwww.freorgukicorporate.

Board of Directors
As at 30 September 2009, the Board compnised nina Non Executive
Directors (including the Interim Chairman) and one Executive Director.

The roles of Chairman (as fulfitled by Sir Colin Chandler and subsequerttly Sir
Dawd Michels as interim Chairman) and Chief Executve (Andrew Harison)
are separated, clearly defined, and approved by the Board. Sir Michae! Rake
15 the Senior Independent MNon Executive Director and holds the post of

BDeputy Charman.

The Company regards David Benrett, Professor Rigas Doganis. john
Browett. Sven Beinet and Keith Hamill as independent Mon Executive
Directors. Dawn Airey, who served for part of the year as Non Executive
Director, was also regarded as independent. Sir David Michels was also
regarded as independent until his appointment as Interim Chairman and
Sir Michael Rake is regarded as independent.

Sir Stelios Hag-loannou 1s not regarded as independent due to hus significant
beneficial shareholding in the Company and his prior invelvement in an
executive management capacity. Bob Rothenberg is not considered to be
independent due to his appointment by Sir Stefios Hap-loannou pursuant to
Articie 87 of the Company's Articles of Association, as set out below:

"87.] For so long as the Controlling Shareholders directly or indirectly hold
In aggregate at Jeast 25 per cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company and the Company is entitled to continue 10 use the “easylet”
brand under the terms of the easyjet Brand Licence. the Controlling
Shareholders {or either of them) shall be enttled to appoint any two
persons 10 be Non Executive Directors and in addition Sir Stelios Haji-
loannou shall be enttled 10 be the Chairman of the Board and of the
Company.

"87.2 For so long as the Controfiing Shareholders directly or indirectly held
in aggregate at least 10 per cent of the ssued ordinary share caprtal of the
Company and the Company 15 entitled to continee 1o use the “easyjet”
brand under the terms of the easyjet Brand Licence, Sir Stelios Haji-loannou
shall be entitied to be the Chairman of the Board and of the Company.™

Board engagement with investors

The Board continues to consider that it is appropriate for the Chaimman to
be the primary conduit with investors given his experience in liaising with
sharehalders and relative longevity on the Board following his predecessor's
departure,

Each Chairman of the Board has made himself available for investor meetings
and questions, In person, during the year and has updated the whole Board
on the results of his meetings and the opinions of investors, Each Senior
Independent Mon Executive Director has alse acted as an altermatrve pont
of contact and attended meetings n order to helg develop a batanced
understanding of the issues and concems of major shareholders, Regular
feedback 15 provided to the Board on the opmions of shareholders and an
wvestor percepion audit 15 carmed out by an independent third party on
annual basis.

The Board meets regularly, with |2 meetings having been held during the
year ended 30 September 2009. All members of the Board are supplied in
advance with appropriate inforrmation covenng matters which are to be
considerad. t is standard practice for the Non Executive Directors 1o meet
without any Executive Directors present on a regular basis during the year,
usually prior to or immediately after each Board meeting,

The appoirtments of Keth Hamill and Sir Michaet Rake during the year as
Non Executive Directors were the result of a search process carmied out
using externa recruitment consuftants in accordance with longstanding Boanrd
practice,

Meetings attended

Auar  Rermuneration PNeormnatons
Drrextor Board Comimittee Commimee Commates
Sir Colin Chandler
(resigned | fuly 2009) 9 nfa 2 3
Andrew Hamson 12 3 = nfa
Jefi Carr (resigned
25 September 2009) 12 4 [ nfa
Professor Rigas Doganis 10 nfa 4 3
Sir Stelios Haji-loannou 12 nia nfa nfa
John Browett o (g nfz
Sir David Michels I 4 nfa**
Dawd Bennett I 4 4 3
Sven Boinet 9 nfa 3 ria
Dawn Airey (resigned
31 December 2008) I n/a na na
Keith Harmift (appointed
! March 2009) 8 2 [#ro nfa
Sir Michael Rake (appointed
b June 200%) 3 i n/a na
Bob Rothenbery {appointed
| August 2009) 2 (i na nfa
* By mviion,

** Apporrsied Chastnan of the Nommauons Commaee on | July 2002,

*4 Appainied Charman of tha Remunemuon Commizee on | juty 2009,

Sir Colin Crandier resigned dunng the year with effect from | July 2008 and,
aiter consideration by the iNominations Committee and the Board, Sir Dawd
Michels was appointed Interrm Chairman with Sir Michael Rake as Deputy
Chairman.

Bob Rothenberg was appointed by easyGroup Holdings Limited and Sir
Stelios Haji-loannou pursuant to the rights granted to them under Article 87
of the Company's Articles of Association The members of the Nomination
Comimittee also considered and approved his appointment. Separately, the
Board has taken advice during the year from expert management search and
development consultants with a view to both enhancing its development of
key managers and reviewing its succession planning for the top executive
roles in the Company.




41 easyJet pic

Annual report and accounts 2009

Overnew

Business review

¥ Governance
Accounts
Other information

Directors and officers insurance cover has been established for all Directors
to provide cover against ther reasonable actions on behalf of easylet. Dunng
the year, the Interim Chairman undertock a performance revew of the
Board using an extermal evaluation too! provided by a corporate agvisory
company. The process nvoived a detailed questionnaire completed by each
of the Directors, one on ore discussions with indivdual Directors and a
separate review of the outcome by the iull Board in a plenary session,

The performanice of the Board (including the Interim Chairman), the Board's
Committees and also that of the indvidual Board Directors was reviewed
as part of the same process. The Board considered that given the short
period of tme for which Sir David Michels had held the position of Interim
Chavman it would not be appropriate to have hs performance reviewed

as Chairman by the Senior Independent Non Executive Director prier to
30 September 2005,

The Board regularly receives updates, via the Company Secretary, on
relevant legistation, regulation and govermnance best practice.

Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

At 30 September 2009. the Remuneration Committee compnsed four
Independent Non Executive Directors, namely Kerth Hamill (Committee
Chairman), Davig Bennett, Professor Rigas Doganis, and Sven Boinet
This Committee, which meets at least twice per year, has responsibility
for making recommendations to the Board on the compensation of senior
executives and determining, within agreed terms of reference, the specific
rernuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors and the
Chairrman, in addition to meetings to allot shares under the Company's
share option scheres, the Remuneration Committee has met four times
during the year.

The Board has reviewed the composition of the Rermuneration Committee
during the year and at the end of June 2009, Sir David Michels stood down
as Chairrnan of the Commitiee in accordance with provision B2.1 of the
Combined Code, smuttaneously standing down as member. From | July
2009, Keith Hamill was appointed to the Remuneration Committee and to
act as its Chairrman in place of S David Michels. The Board is satisfied that
the Directors who are currently members of this Commitiee are those who
are best able to contribute to the Committee’s objectives.

Shareholders are generally required to approve all new long term incentive
plans and significart changes to existing plans. Further details of these plans
can be found in the Report on Directars’ remuneration and the full text of
the terms of reference for the Remuneraton Committee is available in the
govemance section of easyjet's compaorate website,
httpficorporateeasylet.com.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnises three Nom Executive Directors, all of
whom are independent. As at 30 Septermber 2009, the Audit Committee
rnembers were David Bennett (Committee Chairman), John Browett and
Keith Hamil, who was appointed on | March 2009, On 30 June 2002

Sir David Michels stood down from the Audit Committee in accordance
with the provisions of the Combined Code. This Committee meets at least
three times per year.

The primary funciion of the Audit Committee s to assist the Board in
fulfiting its oversight responsibiites by reviewing the financal reports

and other financial Infermation n advance of publication. revievang

on a continuing bass the systems of intemal controls regarding finance

and accounting that management and the Board have established and
reviewing penerally the auditing accounting and firancial reporting processes.
The ultimate responsibifity for reviewing and approving the annual and other
accounts remains with the Board. The Audit Commitiee has met four tmes
during the course of the year, including an additional meeting in September
2005 to review the accounting policy issues raised in the statement of

Sir Stelios Haji-loannou appended to the end of the preliminary results
announcerment of 18 November 2008,

The Audit Committee is charged with reviewing the effectiveness of intemnal
control, approving and monitonng the internal audit work plan, considering
issues ansing frorm intemal audit's work, reviewing management's response
to intemal control ssues, approving the external audit fee, considenng the
external audit strategy and plans, reviewing the external auditors’ reports and
reviewng and approving the annual accounts. Both intemal and external
auditors are given the opportunity to meet prvately with the Audit
Committee without any member of management present It is standard
practice for the extemal auditors to meet with the Audn Committee
without the executive being present at each Audit Commitiee meeting.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committes are docurmented and
agreed by the main Board. The full text of the terms of reference is
available in the govemance section of easylet's corporate website,
htip//corporate.easyletcom. The key terms set out that the Audit
Commitiee will

¥ Serve as an independent and obijsctive party to monftor the quality and
timeliness of the financial reporting process and moenitor the intemal
financiat control system

% Rewew and appraise the audit efforts of the extermnal auditors

¥ Provide an open avenue of communication among the external auditors,
financial and senior managernent and the Board

+ Confimn and assure the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors (in particular, n the context of the provision of additional
services to the Company)

+ Review and ensure the effectiveness of the risk management processes of
the Company

%+ Review and monitor the effectveness of the intemal audr function and
management’s responsiveness to any findings and recommendations

+ Assess potential conflicts of interest of Directors on behalf of the Board

The Audt Cormittee recently reviewed its terms of reference in line with
the Financal Reportrng Courcil's 2008 Guidance on Audit Commiittees and
deaided that no changes were required.




42 easyJet pic’

,.).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Annwual repen and accounts 2009

The Audit Committee has the responsibility for appointing the extemal
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were reappointed auditors of the
Group at the Anaual General Meeting, held in February 2009, In order to
preserve auditor objectivity and independerxe, the Board has decided that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will not be asked to provide consulting
services unless this is i the best interests of the Company. Clause 9 of

the Audit Committee's terms of reference sets out the formal pelicy on
non-audit worke The auditors are asked on a regular basis 1 articulate the
steps that they have taken to ensure objectivity and independence. easyjet
monitors the auditors’ performance, behaviour and effectiveness during the
exercise of their duties, This included this year obtairing a report o the
auditors” own quality control procedures and a consideration of their annual
audit. quality and transparency report. In the financial year, easylet spent
£0.1 milion with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (2008: £0.9 million) n
respect of non-audit services.

The Board is satisfied that the Directors who are currently members of this
Committee are those who are best able to contribute to the Committee’s
objectives. David Bennett has served as the Chairman of the Committee
during the year. David was until 31 July 2009 an Executive Director of Abbey
National pic prior to which he was Chief Executive Officer and Finarce
Director of Alliance and Lelcester plc, experience which the Board considers
1o be recent and relevant for the purposes of undertaking the role as
Chairman of the Committee,

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee comprises at least three members. During
the year, the Nominations Committee members were Sir Celin Chandler
(Chairman until 30 June 2009), David Bennett, Professor Rigas [oganis,
Dawn Airey (until 3| Decermber 2008) and Sir David Michels who took
over as Chairman on | July 200%. Sir Colin Chandler was not considered to
be independent as he was Chairman of the Group before his retirement.
However, the Board was satisfied that Sir Colin Chandler's personal integnity
and expenence made him a highly effective member of the Board and the
Nominauons Committee, The Board is saiisfied on the same grounds with
the appointment of Sir David Michels to the Nominations Committee,

This Committee s responsible for nominating candidates to fill Board
positions and for making recommendations on Board composition and
balance. in appointing Non Executive Directors. the Board's practice is to
use an extemal recruitment agency.

The Nominations Committee has met three times during the year. The first
meeting was to consider and approve the appointment of Keith Hamill
The second was to consider a long-term successor 1¢ Sir Colin Chandler as
Chairman of the Company and resulted in the recommendation to the
Board of Sr Michagl Rake, The discussions at this meeting pertaning to the
appointrnent of Chainman were chaired by Dawd Bennett. n accordance
with the provisions of the Combined Code. The third was to consider

and approve the appointment of Sir Dawd Michels as Intenm Chairman
and Sir Michae! Rake as Deputy Chairman, The searches for Kerth Hamyll
and Sir Michae! Rake both involved the use of independent recruitment
consuitants, Sir Davig Michels was appotnted Intenm Chairrnan without the
involvement of independent recruitment consultants or open advertising

as his chairmanship 15 only intended to be short tern until a nev Chairman
is forrally appointed. The Committee is utilising independent recruitrment
consultants to identify a suitable successor to Jeff Carr as Group Finance
Director, and the search process is well advanced.

The terms of reference of the Nominations Committee are documented
ard agreed by the main Boarg. The full text of the terms of reference is
available in the governance section of easylet's corporate website,
http//corporate.easyjetcom.

Before selecting new appointees, the Nominations Committee considers the
balance of skills, knowledge and e<penence on the Board to ensure that a
suitable balance is maintaired. All job specifications prepared include details
of the time commitments expected i the role,

On joining the Board, new Board members receive a full and tallored
induction. Shareholders are offered the chance to meet new Direciors.

Contracis and letters of appointment with Directors are made available at
the Annuzl General Meeting or on request.

Litigation Commitiee

As a result of the proceedings brought by easyGroup IP Licensing Limited
(2 company under the utimate control of Sir Stelios Haji-loannou) in 2008
in relation to the clarification of the brand licence, the Board continues to
operate a separate Litgavon Committee to deal with the proceedings

and all matters related to themn. Neither Sir Stelios Haji-lcannou nor

Beb Rothenberg (as hvs nominee) sit on this Committee which comprises
every other Director of the Board. It 1s anticipated that the Committee shall
contnue to exist untl the proceedings and any refated arcumstances gving
rise to a conflict of interast between Sir Stefios Haji-loannou's interests and
those of the Compary have been resoved. In this respect, a date in or
around June 2010 for a High Court hearing to adjudicate the dispute 15
expected to be confirmed in due course.

Relations with investors and the Annual General

Meeting (“AGM")

The AGM gives all shareholders the opportunity to communicate directly
with the Board. There is also reguiar communication with institutional
investors on key business issues. easylet has an investor relations department
which nins an active investor relations programme to facilitate engagement
with investors including one on one meetings, visits to easyjet's operations
and presentations. The investor refations website was upgraded dunng the
year with the aim of improving the information available to shareholders
about easylet The webste can be accessed at hitp//corporate.easyjeLcom.

Internal control

The overall responsibility for easyjet's systerns of internal control and

for reviewing its effectiveness rests with the Directors of the Company.

The responsibility for establishing and operating detailed control procedures
lies with the Chief Executive. However, the intemal contro! systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and by their nature can only provide reasonable but

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual revew of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control dunng the year under the auspices of the Audit
Committee. No significart falings or weaknesses were identified dunng the
course of this review.

The intemal comirol regme is enhanced by the operation of a whistleblower
reporting function. The system is operated by a speciahist external third-party
service provider and allows emiployees to report concems in confidence on
a no-names basis, The Audit Committes has approved the processes and
reporting structure for the function and receives regular reports en the
operation of the function,
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Risk management

A formal bi-annual process is in place to identify. evaluate, manage and
report upon significant risks faced by the Company and is cperated

by the Company Secretary under the direction of the Risk Committee.
The process involves a rigorous mandatory reporting regime across
middle tier management with reporting of risks subject to review by a
cross-functional Risk Committee which produces consolidated risk reports
for the Board.

An ongoing process for the effective management of risk has been defined
by the Directors and has been adopted as follows:

= Ongeing assurance and risk management is provided through the vanous
monitonng reviews and reporting mechanisins embedded into the
business operations. Key monsonng reviews include those conducted
continuously in weelly meetings. Operational meetings include the
Safety Audit Group which meets mornsthly to discuss safety. secunty and
envronmental nsks, The Safety Review Board meets monthly, or more
regularty where events require, to review safety performance. in addition,
there are regular Commercial, Financial and T functional meetings:

+ The Executive Management Team meets monthly to consider significant
current risks, Individual department and overall business performance is
reviewed, The reporting of significant nsks to Executve Managernent
Team arvd the Board of the Company has been enhanced by the risk
management processes referved to above. Individual department and
overall business performance is reviewed:

+ Written reporting of current significant risks is provided to the Board on
a monthly basis. Control weaknesses or failings are considered by the
Board if they arise;

J+ internal audit considers, reviews and tesis intemal control and business
risk matters throughout the Group. Further details of the intemal audit
function's operavons are set out below;

¥ As described above, a bi-annual nsk and control identification process,
together with annual contrel effectiveness tesung, is conducted. The key
risks are dentified and the key controis 1o manage these nsks to the
desired leve! are also dentfied:

=+ Action plans are set to address any contro} weaknesses or gaps in
conurols ideritified,

The Directors revewed the effeciveness of internal control, including
operating, financial, compliance and nsk management controls, which mitigate
the significant risks identified. The procedures used by the Birectors to
review the effectiveness of these controls include:

+ Reports from management. Reporting 15 structured to ensure that key
1ssues are escalated through the management team and ultimately to the
Board as appropnate;

= Discussions with senior personne] throughout the Company. and

+ Consideration by the Audit Committee of any reports from intermal and
external auditors:

+ The controls, which mitigate or minimise the high-level nisks, are tested to
ensure that they are in operation, The results of this testing are reported
to the Board which considers whether these high-level risks are effectively
controlled.

Internal audit

Internat audit's work is focused primarity on areas of greatest risk to easylet,
as determined by management's risk identification and assessment processes
as validated by Executive Directors. The output from this process is
sumrnarised in an audit plan, which is approved by the Board and Audit
Committee, and updated on a rolling quarterly basis.

The Head of Intemal Audit reports to the Group Finance Director and the
Chairman of the Audit Commuittee. The Head of Intemal Audiit was invited
to and attended al of the Audit Committee meetings in the year and has
reported regularly on intemal audit rediews to the Executve Management
Team meetings dunng the course of the year. A fornal audit charter is

in olace.

The intermal audit department revews the extent to which sysiems of
ntemal conitrot:

+ are effectiver
+ zre adequate o manage easyjer’s sgnificant nsks; and
= safeguard the Company's assets.

The key objectives are to provide independent and objective assurance on
nisks and controls to the Board and senior management: and to assist the
Board with meeung its corporate governance and regulatory responsibilities.

The role of irtemal audit and the scope of ts work continue 1o evolve 1o
take account of changes within the business and emerging best practice.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Share capital
Details of the mavements in authorised and issued share capital dunng the
penod are provided in note 18 to the accounts.

The rights and obligauons attaching to the Company’s Ordinary Shares are
set out in the Articles,

Voting rights and restrictions on

transfer of shares
None of the ordinary shares carry any special rights with regard to control of
the Company. There are no restricions on transfers of shares other than:

7 Certan restnctions which may from tme to tme be imposed by laws or
regulations such as those relating to insider dealing

+ Pursuant to the Company's code for securities transactions whereby the
Directors and designated employees require approval to deal in the
Company's shares

+ Where a person with an interest in the Company's shares has been
served wath a disdosure notce and has failed to prowide the Company
with information concerming interests in those shares

+ Where a proposed ransferee of the Company's shares has faled 1o
fumish to the Directors a declaration of nationality {(together with such
evidence as the Directors may require) as required by the Company's
Articles of Association

¥ The powers given to the Direciors by the Company's Articles of
Assocation to limit the ownership of the Company's shares by non UK
nationals and powers 10 enforce this lmiation including the mght o force
a sale of any affected shares.

The Company is not aware of any arrangements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights.

Employee share schemes - rights of control

The trustee of the easyjet Share Incentive Plan {the Plan) will, on receipt of
any offer, compromise, arrangement or scheme which affects ordinary shares
held in the Plan, invite participants to direct the trustee on the exercise of
any voting rights attaching to the ordinary shares held by the trustee on their
behalf and/or direct how the trustee shalf act in relation to those ordinary
shares. The trustee shall take no action in respect of ordinary shares for
which it has recerved no directions or ordinary shares which are unallocated.
Generally, on a pall the trustee shall vote in accordance with directions given
by partiopants. In the absence of directions or on a show of hands the
trustee shall not vote.

The trustee of the easylet Employes Share Trust (the Trust), which 1s used in
connection with the easylet Long-Term Ircentive Plan, has the power to
vote or not vote at its discretion in respect of any shares in the Company
held in the Frust.

Substantial interests

In accardance with the Disclosure and Trensparency Rules DTR 5, the
Company as at 13 Novemnber 2009, has been natified of the following
disclosable interests of 3% or more inits issued ordinary shares:

%
easyGroup Holdings Lirnited
(holding vehicle for Sir Stelios Haji-loannou) 2694
Polys Holdings Limited
(holding vehicle for Polys Haji-loannou) 11.33
Standard Life investments 7.00
Schroders plc 550
FMR LLC 510
Sanderson Asset Management 314

Financial calendar

Financial year end 30 September 2009

Annual General Meeting 18 February 2010

Announcement of 2010 results
Release of interim results to 31 March 2010
Results for the year to 30 Septermber 2010

Il May 2010
16 November 2010

Registered office
Hargar 89

London Luton Airport
Bedfcrdshire

LU2 SPF

Company registrar
Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

tancing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Auditors

A resoiution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the
Company wi be put to shareholders &t the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting,

Company number
3959649
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REPORT ON DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

introduction

easylet has produced a reslient periomance in a very tough year. The arine
industry has faced many challenges from a cormbmation of economic
slowdown, volatte fuel pnces and curency fluctuzuons. The Company alse
faced a number of other difficutt Issues.

This report includes two major issues ansing during the year:

1} Setting robust long-term performance targets has been difficutt in this
uncertain enviranment. As a result, following consuttation with our larger
shareholders and shareholder protection bodies, the Remuneration
Committee made a change to the easyjet Long Term Incentive Plan's
performance measures for awards during the year ended 30 September
2009. The change supported our strategy of creating sustainable retums for
our shareholders over the long-term but recognised the unusual short-term
challenges that required effective management at the time of the awards.

The Committee remains satisfied that, wath this change, the overall packages
were appropriate during the year under review in light of the prevailing
economic drcumstances. There were no increases to the Bxecutive
Directors’ basic salanes and nor will there be for the 2010 financial year.

With regard to the Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP), the performance
measures will revert to the format that operated in the financial year ended
30 September 2008 for the 2010 financial year (as agreed with invesiors
during consultation). Detalls of the performance conditions for awards made
during the year under review are set out on page 53,

2} The Company has expenenced issues over the retention of members
of the Board and Exacutive Management Team. Accordingly, with effect
from 15 May 2009, a nurmber of changes were made to the contractual
arrangements with the Chief Executive to facilitate retention and a period
of continuity.

The Corporate Governance section gives full detalls of the changes that
have taken place n the leadership team; these have included the need

for the appantment of an Interim Chaiman (leading to a change of
Senior Independent Director), the appantment of a Deputy Chainman, the
resignation of the Group Finance Director and the need to replace a number
of key positions at the Executive Management Team level, including the
Chief Commercial Officer and the Procurement Director. The Company
and the Board have also been involved in a number of high profile issues
including: the accounts for the year ended 30 September 2008, strategy.
growth targets and the composition of the Board.

White these issues are now either resolved or subject to ongoing discussions,
it was considered at that time that it was appropriate and in the best
imerests of easyfet and the shareholders to take action to ensure a period of
management continuity. This dedision ook account of the need 1o maintain
2 management ervironment which was appropnate for the nature of the
Company's operating activities.

With effect from 15 May 2009, amendments were rmade to the Chief
Executive’s terms to secure the retention of his services with easylet

Details of these arrangements are set out on page 49. They include a
potential lump sum payment equivalert 1o 12 months salary and on target
bonus at | 00% of salary, which would nat be subject to mitigation. in the
event of termination {other than for bad leaver reasons) or resignation after
31 Marck 2010,

easylet has sought 1o maintain dialogue with shareholders and shareholder
protection bodies over its polices on remuneration. The Committee would
welcome feedback and questions from shareholders on the contents of this
report and the Company's policies.

Directors’ remuneration

This report sets out the Company's policy on Directors’ remuneration
and the details of remuneration paid to Directors in the year ended

30 September 2009. The report has been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large

and Medum Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports
Regulatons) 2008. Those secuons of the report that have been subject 10
audnt are idenufied below.

Membership and responsibilities of the

Remuneration Committee

The responsibifities of the Remuneration Committee are disclosed in the
Corporate Governance section on pages 40 to 43, The members of the
Committee are: Keith Hamnili (member and Chairman from ¢ July 2009),
Sir David Michels (Chairrman wntil 30 June 2009), David Bennett,

Sven Boinet and Professor Rigas Doganis,

The Committee continues to use Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS) as
remuneration advisers, Apart from advice regarding the design, establishment
anc operation of remuneration amangements, HNBS provides no other
services to the Company.

Activities of the Committee

The Committee has responsibility for determiring, within agreed terms of
reference, the specific remuneration packages for each of the Executve
Directors and the Chairman, and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of the Company's senior executives.

During the year endad 30 Septermber 2009. the Committee considered the
following items of business:

=+ Executive Director and senior executive salary levels
¥ Review of the Chairman’s fees
¥ Annual borus awards for the financial year ended 30 September 2008

= The structure of the annual bonus scheme for the financial year ended
3C September 2009

7 All employee Save As You Eam scheme grants

¥ The performance targets and award leveis for grants dunng the financial
year ended 30 September 2009 under the easyjet LTIP

¥ Testing of performance condtions and vesting of
— LTIP awards granted in December 2005
— Share Options granted in December 2005
— Chief Executive’s Matching Award granted in February 2006

=+ Remuneration arangements for the Chief Executive and, in particular,
determining appropnate arrangements to facilitate a pariod of continuity.

Policy

easylet's remuneration policy is to reward the Company's Executve
Directors and senior executives competitively against the comparative
market place, in order to recruit and retain Executive Dhirectors and ensure
that they are properiy motivated to perform in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Committee also oversees any significant
changes to easylet's employee remuneraton struciure and sets Directors’
rernuneration in this context. The Company aims to provde competitive
“total pay' for ‘on target’ perfarmance, with superior rewards for exceptional
performance.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior executives
romprise a combination of basc salary, annual bonus, participation in share-
based long-termy incentve plans, anc a very low level of beneiits prowsion.
easylet has a 'no frlls' approach to pension and benefit provision and does
not include, for exarnple. company cars or final salary pensions as part

of the package. Therefore, performance related efements form a significant
proporuon of the packages of the Executive Directors and senior executves.
Reflecting best practice, the Committee regulary reviews the structure of its
ncenuve armangements and. in particular, the balance between short and
leng-term incentives in light of the circumstances prevailing each year.
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REPORT ON DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION CONTINUED

In response to the dificutt trading condiions expenenced in the artine industry dunng the financial year ended 30 September 2008, the Company
completed an extensive shareholder consultaton prior to the 2009 Annual General Meebng to amend LTIP performance targets applyng 10 fture awards,
This enabled the LTIP 1o take into account the urique shert-term challenges that required effectve management at the sarme time as retaining a long-term
focus on return on equity ("ROE™} which remains a key long-term performance ndicator at easylet.

For the current financial year, the LTIP has again been amended with ROE once more becoming the sole measure of long-term performance as has been
the case pricr 1o the financal year under review. Full details of the targets set for the year under review and those that will apply for awards made to the
senior executve team in the current financial year are set out below.

In line with the Assaciation of British Insurers’ Guidelines on Responsible Investrment Disclosure, the Committee will ensure that the incentive structure for
Executive Directors and senior exectutives will not raise ervircnmental, sodal or govermnance ("ESG™) risks by inadvertently motivating irresponsible
behaviour, More generally, with regard to the overall remuneration structure, there is no restsiction on the Committee which prevents it from taking into
account corporate governance on ESG matters and the Committee takes due account of issues of general aperational nsk when struciuring inceritives,

The Committee takes account of risk by regular liaison with the Audit Comimittee to ensure that the remuneration polices adopted do not encourage
inappropriate rsk-taking.

When setting remuneration policy for the Executive Directors and senior executives for the cument financial year, the Committee considered pay and
employment conditions elsewhere within easylet. The Committee was informed of the proposed salary budget for easylet as a whole and the changes to
pay practices and staffirig levels that took place during the year. These factors were significant contribastory factors when determining Executive Directors’ pay
packages for the current year. The Committee did not consider it appropriate, for example, 1o award any salary increases for Executive Directors when very
limited salary increases were given to other staff.

easyjet's normal remuneration policies are summansed below.

Earent Furpose Poly Defry__
Basic salary *+ Reflect the value of the indvidual and » Reviewed annually, effectve ¢+ Cash
their role i October + Paid monthly
+ Reflect skills and experience + Agreed when previous results are + Pensionable
finahsed

Benchmarked against similar sized
campanies and industry comparators
+ Targeted at or around median

» Considers indivdual contribution

Annual bonus s Incentivise year on year delwvery of  + Major measure is profit before tax. + Pad as cash
short-term performance goals aligned to long-term targets + Not pensionable
+ Other measures hased on: *+ May defer up to half of bonus Into
- Revenue LTIP
— Cost
— Operational excellerce
tong Term Incentive Plan + Aligned to business plan + Subject to stretching ROE targats + Annual grant of performance shares
* incentivse long-term growth in « Subject 10 175% of salary = Opportunity to defer bonus and
easylet's ROE shargholding requirement obtain future matching share awards
Persion + Provide minimum retirement benefits » Defined contribution + Monthiy employer contribution of
« Opportunity for Executive to « HMRC approved salary sacrifice 7% of basic salary
conwibute to their retirement arrangement * Non contrbutory
+ Sadary sacnfice for employee
contributions

The Board as a whole determines the remuneration of the Company's Non Executive Directors, with Non Executive Directors exempiung themsebves from
discussions and voting as appropnate. When determining the remuneration of Non Executive Directors, account is taken of practice adopted in other similar
organisations, committees chaired and anucipated time commitment.
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Basic salary
The basic salanes of the Executive Directors are reviewed annually and are set taking account of the salary required 1o deliver an overall total package that
reflects a number of facters including

= practce adopied n companies of a broadly smilar size
= a formal appraisal of therr contribution to the busness
= ihe competiive ervironment

=+ pay and employmert conditions of employees elkewhere within easyjet

Annual bonus scheme

All Executive Directors partiopate in an annual bonus scheme, The masamuim annual bonus oppertunity of the Chief Executive duning the year was
200% of salary, with 2 1009 of salary maximum for other senior executives. The maxamurm will rermain at these levels during the financial year ending
30 September 201G.

Bonus targets are aligned with easylet's vision and values, with specific targets around easyjet’s key performance indicators. The performance targets that will
apply to Executive Directors’ annual borus opportunities in the financial year ending 30 Septernber 2040 are as folows:

Measure 2 maxmum bonus opportunity
Profit before tax 75%
Customer targets 10%
Operating costs 10%
On time performance 5%

Descriptions of the Executive Directors performance against the targets set for the year under review are set out in the emolurments table on pages 50
to 51,

Long term incentive plan
The easylet LTIP provides for annual awards of performance shares and matching shares. The plan was approved by shareholders at the AGM i 2005 and
amended at the 2008 AGM with the performance targets further amended dunng the year under review.

The annual award limit for performance shares is 2000 of basic salary.

Matching share awards are lnked to the investrment of up to 5G% of annual bonus into easyjet shares, which are then matched on a || gross basis.
This 1 the same as in the financial year ended 30 Sepiember 2008, Mo matching awards were granted in the financil year ended 30 September 2009,

Performance and matching share awards vest three years after grant, subject to continued employment and the Company achieving the ROE targets.
This measure was chosen as it is a fundamental measure of financial performance and is nked to the generation of shareholder retums. The Board controls
the rate of capital growth and balance sheet gearing, which ensures that ROE remains an appropriate measure of long-term performance.

The targets that applied during the year under review were amended to include short-term targets which reflected cumrent circumnstances. This was
considered appropriate due to the difficuities that existed in relation to setting robust fong-term targets at a time of exceptional fuel price volatility and
uncertain economic crcumstances. easylet’'s major shareholders and the shareholder protection bodies were consulted on the revisions which are set out
under the Executive Directors’ Share Awards table on page 52.
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LTIP awards to be granted in 2010

Since the Committee now considers it possible 1o set robust long-term ROE performance targets there wall not be a short-term performance element to
the targets that will apply during the current financial year, Instead, the conditions will mirror the structure approved by shareholders at the 2008 AGM.
Reverting to the same structure of target as operated immediately following the 2008 AGM is consistent with the future award policy communicated to cur
rajor shareholders during the 2009 consultation with the actual target ranges reflecting current econormic conditions. The targets for awards to be made in
financial year 2010 (with a base year of 30 September 2005) will be:

Awards up to {00% of salary

Thrasholc Target Marrum
(258 vesis) o {50% vests) { 00 s}
Return on equity (year ending 30 September 2012) 9.0% 120% 15.0%
Awards over {00% of salary
Threshola Target Mammum
(255 vasis) (5096 vests) (100X veus)
Return on eguity {year ending 30 Septernber 2012) 11,09 13.0% 15.0%

ROE continues to be the Committee’s preferred long-term performance measure for @ number of reasens, induding:
2 It s a fundamenital measure of easylet’s underlying performance and is directly linked 1o the generation of retums to shareholders

¥+ {tis directly connected to the self-sustaining growth rate of the business and incentivises management to achieve the appropriate balance between
growth and retums, to deliver the best shareholder value

The performance targets detalled above that apply to the part of an award over 10086 of salary are set 10 be tougher due to the higher potential guantum
available.

All employee share plan participation

easyjet encourages share ownership throughout the Company by the use of a Share Incentive Plan and a Sharesave Plan, Take-up of the schermes remains
very positive with over 80% of elighle staff now participating in one or more of the plans. Executive Directors may also participate in these plans which are
summiarised in the Corporate Responsibiiity section on page 31,

Previous share awards

Executive Share Option Scheme

The LTIP replaced the existing Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option Schemes (the "ESOS)) as the primary long term incentive arrangement
far the Executive Cirectors and other senior employees although the ESOS was retained for flexibility {e.g. options were granted to the Chief Executive
under the ESOS on his appomntment in 2005), However, there were no grants dunng the year and there is no cument imtention to make regular grants of
options under the ESOS.

Shareholding guideline
Executive Directors are required to build up a shareholding equivalent 1o 175% of basic salary. This was increased from 100% of salary following
the 2008 AGM.

for senior exacutives who report to the Executive Management Team and receve LTIP awards, a 50% share ownership guideline wall apply.

Pension contributions

easylet makes a contribution for Executive Directors, to a defined contribution pension scheme, of 7% of basic safary, While individuals are not obliged

to make a contribution, easyjet operates a pension salary sacrifice arrangement where individuals can exchange their salary for Company paid pension
contribuuons. Where individuals exchange salary this reduces easylet’s National Insurance contributions. easyjet credits hali of this saving to the indviduals
pension {currently 6.4% of the amount exchanged).

External appointments
Executive Directors are permitted to accept one appointment on an extemal board or commitiee so fong as this is not deemed to interfere with the
business of the Group. Any fees received in respect of these appointments are retaned directly by the relevant Executive Director.
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Service contracts
The service contracts of the Executive Directors that served during the year were of no fixed term

Andrew Harrison's service contract is terminable by the Company giving 12 months natice or by Andrew giving six months notice.

Provisions applying to termination prior to 31 March 2010

On termination of Andrew's employment he will receive & pro-rated bonus for the year of his termination based on performance up to the date of his
termination, In addition, the Company has the right to pay Andrew, in lieu of notice and on @ monthly basis until he secures commensurate employment. an
amount equal to base salary, pension and bonus eamed in the previous year,

Provisions applying to termination or resignation after 31 March 2010
in order 1 faciltate retention and a period of continuity, Andrew Harrisom's contractual previsions on temmination and resignation were revised on |5 May
2003 ’

The revised tenms provide that in relation to a termination by the Company (other than for certain defined bad leaver reasons) or on resignation, Andrew
Harrison has an entitement to receve a payment in lieu of notice In respect of the full 12 menth rotice penod with no obligation to mitigate the payment,
which would also be provided as a single lump sum. The payment in leu of notice would iIncluce the value of |2 months’ basic salary, |2 months’ pension
contibutions and the on target level of annual bonus of 100% of salary. Based on the current level of salary this would amount to £1,220000, He would also
receive a pro-rated bonus for the year of his termination based on performance up to the date of his termination. In addivcn, it was agreed that Andrew
Harrison would be considered a good leaver for the LTIP award made in December 2007, subject to the usual pro-rating for performance and servace.

Tris is explaned on page 54,

Jeff Can's contract was changed during the year under review, in line with a new policy for Executive Directors, to be terminable on |2 months notice by
both partes (formerly six months). Jef resigned during the year and his resignation was effective on 25 September 2009. There were no express provisions
for compensation on termunation in Jeff's service contract. No payment was made, or wall be made, in refation to his departure.

The Company's relationship with its Non Executive Directors is governed by letters of appointment The MNon Executive Directors are appointed for a
period not exceeding three years and their appointrment may be terminated with three months notice without compensation.

Sir Stefios Hap-loannou does not have a letter of appointment and his appointment 15 of no fixed term. He s however subject 1o re-election by shareholders
every three years, and was last re-elected by shareholders in February 2009, although this does not prejudice s rights under the relationship agreement with
the Company disclosed at the time of the Company’s IPO, which are set out in the Corporate Governance section of this Annual report on page 40.

Details of the service contracts and letters of appointment curently in place for Directors who served duning the year are as follows:

Date of cumerit Provesion for
leter of appotment Ungzpired tom MNawce penod compentation
Executive
Andrew Hamson 15 Septermber 2005 na 12 months 12 months
(amended 15 May 2009) (6 months
from executve)
Jeff Carr (resigned 25 September 2009) 24 November 2004 na 12 months (from & months
3 December 2008)
Non Executive
Sir Colin Chandler (resigned | July 2009) 26 Septermber 2007 nfa 3 months Nene
Sir Dawd Michals 25 September 2007 | 2 menths 3 months MNene
Sir Michae! Rake (appointed | June 2009) 17 Apnl 2009 2 years $ months 3 months None
Dawn Airey (resgned 31 Decernber 2008) 26 September 2007 nfa 3 months None
Dawid Bennett 26 September 2007 |2 months 3 months None
Sven Boinet i | February 2008 | year 5 months 3 moriths None
Johri Breswett 17 September 2007 12 months 3 months MNone
Professor Rigas Doganis 26 September 2007 12 months 3 mariths None
Sir Stehos Haji-loannou nfa na n/a nfa
Kerth Hamill {appointed | March 2009) 23 December 2008 2 years 5 months 3 months None
Bob Rathenberg (appoirited | August 2009) 29 july 2009 2 years 10 months 3 moniths None

Non Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are aligned to the standand terms appended 1o the Combined Code.
Copies of the service contracts and letters of appointment are available on request from the Company Secretary.
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Total shareholder return

Gven the nature oof easylet's uperauons, the Committee does not consider that there 15 a suitable comparator group against which to measure total
shareholder retum. However, for completeness, the foliowing graphs show the Caompany’s performance compared wih the performance of the FTSE 250
and that of a group of Furopean Airines'. The FTSE 250 has been chosen as it consists of companies of similar size to easylet. The group of Eurcpean
Airtnes comprises companies operating in a comparable sector.

Chart removed

Directors’ emoluments (audited)
Details of emoluments, paid or payable by easylet to the Directors of easylet plc who served in the financial year ended JO September 2009 are as follows:

Persion cortnbutions

Salary/fee Bonus Towul Toul
2009 2009 2009 2008 2000 2008
Executive
Andrew Harrisan 5%0 1,043 1,633 856 53 4|
Jeff Carr (resigned 25 September 2009) 356 - 356 441 27 25
Non Executive
Sir Colin Chandler (resigned | July 2009) 150 - 130 201 - -
Sir David Michels i4 - 14 65 - -
Sir Michael Rake (appointed | June 200%) 23 - 23 - - -
Dawn Airey (resigned 31 December 2008) i - i 45 - -
David Bennett 55 - 55 55 - -
Sven Bonet 45 - 45 26 - -
John Browett 45 - 45 45 - -
Professor Rigas Doganis 45 - 45 45 - -
Sir Stelios Haj-toannou - - - - - -
Keith Hamdl {appointed 1 March 2009) 29 - 29 - - -
Diederik Karsten (resigned 21 February 2008) - - - 18 - -
Bob Rothenberg (appointed 1 August 2009) 8 - 8 - - -
471 1.043 2514 1797 80 66

‘ihe tzble above excludes gains as a result of the exercise of share optiens. Details of share options and share awards and any movements dunng the year
are shown on page 52.

Pension contributions for Andrew Hamson and |ef Carr shown above are greater than 7% of salary as they include half of the National Insurance saving
resulting from employee coniributions made through easylet’s salary exchange scherme (equivalent to 64% of the sum sacificed). Andrew Harrison
exchanged £195.000 for additiona! pension contributions in the year (2008: £187,000) and Jeff Carr exchanged a total of £27.00C (2008: £27.000.

There was a pay freeze in place during the year under review for Executive Directors and the wider senior management population. Andrew Hamson's
safary remained at £590.000 and Jeff Can’s salary rermained at £360,000. It is not proposed that basic salary will be increased for Executive Directors in the
2010 financial year.
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Achievement of Bonus for 2009
Andrew Hamson wit be paid a bonus of £1,042.530 (177% of sdary) in the year ending 30 September 2010 to reflect performance in the year ended
30 September 2005 (2008: 45% of salary).

Jeff Carr resigned on 25 September 2009 and will not be paid a bonus for the year ended 30 Septernber 2009.

This bonus was eamed against challenging targets that were set at the start of the financial year under review. These targets reflected the key short-term
objectives of the business anising out of the exceptional fuel price volatility and econamic uncertainty that was prevalent at the start of the financial year.

Performance aver the year was stronger than the 'farget’ expectations set at the beginning of the year and resuitedin the bonus eamed being towards the
top end of the bonus range. Tn a difficult consumer environment, a strong revenue performance helped to offset anincrease in unit fuel costs equivalent to
£86.1 million and the Committee is satisfied that easylet’s performance is robust in refation to other aidines.

Bonuses were determined by the Remuneration Committee in light of the Company's performance against a range of key finandiat and operational metrics.
Performance achievement against these key performance indicators is shown below:

Chart removed

Directors’ interests
The following Directors hold drect interests n the share capaal of easylet:

30 Septemper 2009 30 Septernber 2008
Sir David Michels 12,100 12,100
Sir Michael Rake 3100 -
David Bennett 10000 10,000
John Browett 4,705 4,705
Professor Rigas Doganis 13,600 13,600
Sir Stelios Haji-loannou 66,076,451 66076451
Andrew Harrison 442711 682514

The interests of Sir Stefios Haji-loannou are held through easyGroup Holdings Uimited,

On 12 October 2003, Andrew Hamson purchased 3| partrership shares and was allocated 3| matching shares under the Share Incentve Plan.,
On 10 November 2009, Andrew Hanison purchased 34 partnership shares and was allocated 34 matching shares wider the Share Incentve Plan.
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Executive Directors are deemed to be interested in the shares held by the easyjet UK Employee Share Ownership Trust, the easyjet Overseas Employee
Share Ownership Trust, the Long Term Incentve Plan and the Share [ncentive Plan Trust (the “Trusts™). At 30 September 2009, ordinary shares held in the
Trusts were as follows:

Furber
Share Incentive Plan Trust (unallocated as employees are not entitled to these shares
until the performance conditions zttached to them are met) [.883.799
Total unallocated 1.883.799
Long Term Incentive Plan (allocated) - o o 292012
Share Incentve Plan (allocated) 150872
Total held by UK Trust (allocated) 8,229
Total held by Overseas Trust (alocated) 44872
Total dlocated 496985
2,380,784

Directors’ share awards (audited)
Details of share opticns and share awards under the schemes described above granted to the Directors of the Company and any movernents during the
year are shown in the following table:

Andrew Harrison

Mo, of shares/ No. of shares/ Martet
optors Jt aphions 2t prce on

30 Septemiber Sharesfoptors Sharesloplons Sharecioplons 30 Sepiarmber Erortima  ererie D' friom wh oh
Scheme 2008 grantee o yar apsed myear  Ewercised nyear B E‘?' _ Dameoigmnt  pree(H cae{)  eresle Eprydale
A 736,153 - 338,630 - 397,523 | Dec 2005 330 - | Dec 2008 | Dec 2015
B8 2095 - 4,183 - 4912 | Dec 2005 230 - | Dec 2008 | Dec 2015
C 90,756 - - - 90.756 | Dec 2006 - - | Dec 2009 I Jun 2010
cC 104,796 - - - 104,796 3 Dec 2007 - - 3 Dec 2010 3jun 201t
- 102,135 - - - 102,135 29 Feb 2008 - - 28 Feb 2011 28 Aug 2011
C - 358818 - - 358818 16 Jan 2009 - - 16 Jan 2012 b6 Jul 2012
D 75630 - - .- 75630 I Dec 2005 - - I DCec 2009 | jun 2010
] 88529 - - - 88,529 3 Dec 2007 - - 3Dec 2010 3 Jun 2011}
E 267,109 - 1§1,294 155815 - 8 reb 2006 - 302 8 Feb 2009 8 Aug 2009
F 356% - - 3.589 - 2 Jun 2006 2561 302 | Aug 2007 | Feb 2010
G 612 - - - 612 | Dec 2006 - - t Dec 2009 rva
G 487 - - - 487 | Dec 2007 - - | Cec 2010 n/a
H 838 499 - - 1,337 See note 2 below
Jeff Carr

MNe of shares/ No. of si‘\aru.‘ Market

3052&::5; Shares/options. Shares/optaons Shares/ophont 25 S:gtueorrb:tr Exercse Z‘ct;; Date from wiech
Scheme 2008" granted & year apted n yer exercised n year 2005+ Date of grart prce (£ date{d) erercaabie E-pry cate
A 108079 -~ - 108079 - 2 Jun 2005 232 33i 2 Jun 2008 2 jur 2015
8 12928 - - 12928 - 21n2005 232 33! 2un2008  2jun2015
c 75,793 - 25264 50529 - b Dec 2005 -~ 298 { Dec 2008 b Jun 2009
C 50420 - - - 50420 t Dec 2005 - - | Dec 2009 | Jun 2010
C 63943 - - - 63943 3 Dec 2007 - - 3 Dec 2010 3jun 2001
C 62,320 - - - 62,230 29 Feb 2008 - - 28 Feb 2001 28 Aug 2011
c - 218339 - - 218939 16 jan 2009 - - 16 jan 2012 6 Jut 2012
B 8881 - - - 8,881 3 Dec 2007 - - 3 Dec 2010 3 jun 2011
G 487 - - - 487 | Dec 2007 - - I Dec 2010 n/a

* Jeff Car's ourstanding share awards were forfeited on his resignation effectie 25 Septamber 2009.
No Non Executive Director has been granted any share options or awards.

The closing share price of the Company's ordinary shares at 30 Septernber 2009 was £3.79 and the range during the year ended 30 September 2009 was
£2.06 to £4.04.
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Notes

A Mon-Approved Discrevonary Share Option Scheme

8 Approved Discretionary Share Option Scheme

C Long Term Incentive Plan — Performance Shares

D Long Term Incentive Plan — iMatching Shares

E Chuef Executive Officer Recruitment Award

F Sharesave {SAYE) scheme

G Share Incentive Plan — Free shares

H Share Incenitive Plan ~ Matching Shares

MNote |. The nurrber of shares are caloutated according 1o the scheme rules of ndhvidual plans based on the middie-market dosing $hare dince of the day pror Lo grant {excent for the june 2005 ESCS

award which was based on the previous practice of the average middle-rarker price of the fve days prior to grant). As s usual rarkel practice, the oowon orce for SAYE awards 15 determined by the
Cormnmitiee n advance of the award, by reference 1o the share price foflowing announcernens of resubs.

MNote 2 Partcipants purchase shares monthly under the plan and the corpany providas one matching share for each share purchased These are frst svarlable for vesung three years afier prchase
The potertial vesung of cutstanding awards if the performance were based at the end of the year under review s shown at the end of this section.
The performance amtera for vesting of these share options and awards are as follows:

Discretionary Share Option Schemes {A&B)
Based on the average annual growth n eamings per share (EPS), where no shares vest if EPS growth s iess than RPI plus 5%, 309 vest where EPS growth is
APl plus 5% and 100% vest where EPS growth is RPI plus 20%, Straight-fine vesting will occur between these points.

In refation to the provision, the Committee agreed on |5 May 2009 to facilitate Andrew Harrison's cortinued service at easylet and agreed to exercise its
discretion to extend the period for which his vested share options can be exercised 10 six months from the termination date.

Long Term Incentive Plan {C&D)
Awards ptior to those made during the year under review were subject to the achievement of the following ROE targets:

Threshold Targs Mawmim

Grart dte Bassewr  (S%uews) (Ovess)  {100% vests)
December 2005 30 September 2006 8.4% 8.8% 10.0%
30 September 2007 11.8% 12.4% 130%

30 September 2008 125% 13.2% 1509

December 2006 30 September 2009 i25% 14.0% 165%
Decernber 2007 3G Septernber 2010 12.5% 14.0% 165%
February 2008 30 September 2010 13.5% 15.5% 175%

Straight-ine vesting will occur between the threshold, target and maximum targets set out above, The retums on equity shown for the February 2008 grant
relate to awards in excess of 100% of basic salary.

The December 2006 award is due 1o vest in December 2009. The award has performance targets relating to return on equity achieved in the year ended
30 Seprember 2009, However, the 1argets have not been met and the award will not vest.

The perforrmance conditions that applied to the awards made during the year under review retained ROE as the prmary measure of long-term
performance. However, to enable the LTIP to take into account the unique short-term challenges that the aidine industry was subject to during the year
under review, additional short-term targets were also set for part of the awards.

The actual targets set reflected the extensive discussions that were undertaken with easyjet's major shareholders and the shareholder protection bodies.
Both the range of ROE targets set and the short-term targets were felt to take full account of both (i) the exceptional velatlity n the price of oif and (i)
economic uncertainty triggered by the banking crisis,
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The actual targets that apphed to the awards of performance shares made to Executive Directors dunng the year under review were as follows:

Awards up to [00% of salary

Threshale Target Maxsnurm
{2526 vests) (50% vests) (1005 vests}
Retum on equity (vear ending 30 September 201 1) 700 100% 13.0%

Awards between 100% and 1 75% of salary
Vesting will take place based on the satisfaction of both of the following two targets:

= The award 1s subject to scale-back to the extent that a range of performance targets relating to the year ended 30 Septerber 2009 are not met.
Achievement of these targets, at 88.35%, was equal 1o the pertentage of bonus payable, and so the award has been scaled back by 11.65%.

¥ ROE for the year ending 30 September 201 | must be at least 10% in order for the remaining award to vest.
No matching shares were granted in the year under review.,

To facilitate a penod of continuity and the retention of Andrew Hamison's services to the Company, 1n May 2009 1t was agreed that Andrew Hamson would
be treated as a ‘good leaver’ in respect of the LTIP award (perfonmance and matching shares) granted n December 2007 upon his departure from easyjet,
prowiced his service is 1o continue to 31 March 2¢10. The maximurn number of performance and matching shares covered by this change 15 193,325,

Any vesting would be subject to pro-ratng for both performance and senvice. Based on performance for the year ended 30 September 2009, none of

these shares would vest

With regard to future long-term incentive plan targets, it was agreed with investors duning consultation that easyjet would revert to using ROE as the
sole performance metnc as soon as it was felt practicable to do so (e.g. once fue! price volatiity had returned to more normal’ levels). As a result, the
performance targets that are to apply 1o awards made in the current year will be based on challenging ROE targets alone, These targets are considered
to take into full account the current economic environment.

Chief Executive Officer Recruitment Award (E)
50% of the award s based on the average annual growth in EPS. No shares vest if EPS growth is less than RPI plus 5%, 30% vest where EPS growth is RP)
plus 5% and 100% vest where EPS growth is RPI plus 20%. Straight-line vesting occurs between these points.

Potential vesting of outstanding awards
The tabte below shows how vesting of outstanding share awards plans would take place if the performance was based on that for the year under review.

Grant date Actisl bass yoar Vasting
December 2005 30 September 2009 0%
December 2007 30 September 2010 0%
February 2008 30 Segternber 2040 0%
Janwary 2009 30 September 20t 0%
On behalf of the Board
%
Keith Hamull

Remuneration Committee Chairman
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the annual report. the report on
Ohrectors’ remuneration and the accounts in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors 16 prepare accournits for each financial
year, Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the Group

and parent company accounts in accondance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Under
company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a tue and far view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Cormpany and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod.

In preparing these finandial statements, the Directors are required to:

-+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

-+ make judgements and accounting estrmates that are reasonable and
prudent;

+ state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained
In the accounts; and

=+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
o presurne that the Group and Company will continue in business,

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting records that
are suffident to show and explan the Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial postion of the Comipany
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts and the report
on Directors’ remuneration comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group accounts, Article 4 of the [AS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
herce for taking reasonable steps for the prevenition and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsitle for the mantenance and integnty of the
Company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the
preparation and dissemination of accounts may differ from legislabon in
cther jursdictions.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages 36
and 37 confirn that, to the best of their knowledge:

% the Group and Company accounts, which have been prepared in
accordance wath IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabiites. financial positon and profit of the Group and
Company, and

+ the Directors’ repart includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a descrption of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ report s
approved, and in accondance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006:

{a) 50 far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

(b) he has taken alt the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director
in onder to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

The Annual report on pages 1 to 55 was approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for issue on 16 November 2009 and signed
on behalf of the Board.

jﬂm‘/ ~C /{"“SQP {\Na [Ty

Sir Dawid Michels Andrew Hamson
Director Drrector
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF easyJet PLC

We have audited the accounts of easylet ple for the year ended

3G September 2009 which compnee the Consohdated income statement,
Consolidated balance sheet, Consolidated cash flow statement. Consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense, Company balance sheet,
Cormpany cash flow statemenit, and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
Buropean Union and, as regards the parent compary accounts, as applied

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Respective responsibilities of Directors

and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibrlities set
out on page 55, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

QOur responsibility is to audit the accounts in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the
Company's members as a body in accordance with Sections 495 to 497 of
the Compames Act 2006 and for na other purpose. We do not, in ghang
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
corme save whiere expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting,

Scope of the audit of the accounts

An audit Involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounts are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or enor. This
includes an assessment of. whether the accounting policies are appropnate
to the Group's and the parent company's dircurnstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall
presentation of the accounts.

Opinion on accounts
In our opinion:

7 the accounts give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s and
of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2009 and of the
Group's profit and Group's and parent company's cash flows for the
year then ended;

= the Group aceounts have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Unian;

¥ the parent company accounts have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as apphed
In accordance with the prowsions of the Companies Act 2006; and

¥ the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group accounts, Article
4 of the 1AS Regulation.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

¥ the part of the Report on Directors’ remuneration to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
and

= the information given in the Direciors’ report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our
opinion:

¥ adequate accounting records have ot been kept by the parent company,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited Dy us, of

¥ the parent company accounts and the part of the Report on Direciors’
remuneration to be audited are notin agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

F we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit

Under the Listng Rules we are required 1o review:

+ the Directors’ staterment, set out on page 27, in refation to going cancem;
and

+ the parts of the Corporate govermance statement relating to the
Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code spevified for our review.

™~
o

Roger de Peyrecave {Senior Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

St Albans, Hertiordshire

16 Novermnber 2009
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Year ended Year ended

30 Saptember 30 September

200% 2008

MNotes £ milian £ mien

Passenger revenue 2,1505 19957

Ancillary revenue 5163 3674
Total revenue 2.666.8 23628
Ground handling (2559) (2122
Ajrport charges {481.5) (397.2)
Fuel (807.2) (708.7)
Navigation {2323) (195.7)
Crew {306.6) (263.2)
Maintenance (161.6) (147.5)
Advertising (47.0) (46.5)
Merchant fees and commissions (33.5) (33.7)
Arrcraft and passenger insurance {113 o.h
Other costs {104.8) {87.5)
GB Airways ntegration costs - (12.9)
EBITDAR - T 225.1 2486
Depreciation g (55.4) (44.4)
Profit on disposal of assets held for sale I 1.0 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 4.4 (25)
Aircraft lease costs (116.2) (1107
Operating profit 60.1 910
Interest recevable and other financing ncorme 225 532
Interest payable and other financing charges {27.9) (340
Net finance (charges) / income 2 (54 192
Profit before tax 3 54.7 110.2
Tax credit / (charge) 5 16.5 (27.0)
Profit for the year 20 712 832

Eamings per share, pence

Basic 6 16.3 198
Diuted 6 16.6 19.4
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30 September
30 Seprember [4 e on
2009 {Festatec)
Nezes £ miffion (note 23)
Non-current assets
Goodwill 7 3654 365.4
Cther intangible assets 7 8.7 80.6
Property, plant and equiprment 8 16122 1,1026
Derivative financial instruments 24 78 213
Loan notes 9 12.6 120
Restricted cash 13 48.0 429
Orther non-current assets 10 62.7 611
Deferred tax assets 5 04 05
2,190.8 16864
Current assets
Assets held for sale I 732 1945
Trade and other receivables 12 241.8 2369
Derwative financial instruments 24 68.0 965
Restricted cash 13 243 233
Money market deposits 13 286.3 2303
Cash and cash equivalents 13 788.6 6322
T T T I-lﬁil_.Z_ h 77| .4|4.|ﬁ
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 {750.7) (653.0)
Borrowings 15 {117.6) 56.7)
Derivative financial instruments 24 ¢GLG (760)
Current tax hiabilities (57.7) (732)
Mantenance prowisions 17 (45.1) (553)
{1.0622) 514.8)
Net current assets 4200 4933
MNon-current liabiities
Bonawings 15 {1.003.0) (570.2)
Derivative financial instruments Pl (28) ©3)
Non-current deferred income ) (52.6) (68.8)
Maintenance provisions i7 {168.6) (160.4}
Deferred tax liabilites 5 (767) (107.8)
{1,303.5) {507.5)
Met assets 1.307.3 1,278.2
Sharcholders’ funds
Share capital 18 106.0 1057
Share premium 20 6425 640.2
Hedging reserve 20 (23.9) 276
Transiation reserve 20 ©4) ol
Retained eamings 20 583.1 5048
1,307.3 2782

The accounts on pages 57 to 87 were approved by the Boand of Directors and authorised for issue on |6 November 2009 and signed on bebalf
of the Board.

ﬂm,,/ we Al {,\M,.3 T

Sir Davd Michels Andrew Hamson
Director Director
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Year ended Yearengied
30 Seprember 3 September
2007 2008
i Moes - Em¥lon  fmor
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 21 164.5 2904
MNet interest and other financing charges (paid} / receved (20.6) 200
Tax pad (9.4) (14.2)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1345 2962
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subskiiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 23 - {1180y
Purchase of property, plart and equipment (515.0) (324.0
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 778 300
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 124 05
Purchase of other intangble assets (5.5) (64)
Redemption of lozn notes 0.3 -
Proceeds from sale of investment in associate - Q3
Net cash used by investing activities (430.0) (#17.6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of ondinary share capitat 26 69
Purchase of own shares for employee share schernes (1.6) (4.5)
Praceeds from drawdewn of bank loans 543.1 40.2
Repayment of bark laans (69.4) (430)
Repayment of capial elements of finance feases (3.6) (27)
Net ncrease in money market deposits (29.0) (8.7)
{(Increase) / decrease in restrcted cash (i.9) 178
Net cash generated from financing activities 440.2 59
Effect of exchange rate changes It7 285
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1564 (86.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6322 7191
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 7885 632.2
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Year ended ““ear enced
30 Septamber 30 Septerrber
2008 2008
o ) o L hites _ £.milon £m: on
Cash flow hedges T o T
Fair value (losses) / gans in year 20 (214.3) 1435
Losses / (gans) transiered to .ncome statement 20 2288 (87.)
Gans transferred to property. plant and equipment 20 (85.9) (©3)
Related tax 20 199 (14.4)
Transtation differerces on foreign currency net investments 20 {0.5) 0.l
Net {(expense) / income recognised directly in shareholders’ funds (52.00 414
Profit for the year 712 832
Total recognised income and expense attributable to shareholders 192 1246
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

easylet plc (the "Company™) and its subsidiaries (“easyjet’’ or the "Group™ as applicabie) is a low cost aidine carvier operating principally in Europe.
The Company s a public limited company whose shares are listed on the London Stack Exchange under the ticker symbol EZ] and is incorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Hangar 89, London Luton Airport, Bedfordshire LU2Z 9PF,

The accounts are prepared In accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by the European Union, taking into account
Imtermational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Acts 1985 and 2006 applicable 1o
companies reporting under IFRS. IFRS as adopted by the EU differs in certain respects from IFRS as ssued by the Iniemational Accounting Standards Board
{|ASB). References 1o IFRS hereafter should be construed as references to IFRS as adopted by the EU.

Basis of preparation
The accounts are prepared based on the historical cost convention except for certain financial assets and liabilities induding derivative financial instruments
that are measured at fair value,

The accounting policies set cut below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these accounts.

In adopting the going concem basis for preparing the accounts, the Directors have considered the business activities as set out on pages 16 to 19 as well as
easyjet’s principal risks and uncertainties as set out on pages 28 to 29. Based on easylet’s cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied that easylet
will be able to operate within the level of its facilities and available cash for the foreseeable future. For this reason easylet continues to adopt the going
cencemn basis in preparing its acounts.

Significant judgements, estimates and critical accounting policies

The preparation of accounts in conformity with gererally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the accounts and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, evenits or actons may mean that actual results ultimately differ
fromn those estimates, and these differences may be material. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed regularly.

The following four accounting policies are considered c¢ritical accounting policies as they require a significant amount of management judgement and the
results are matenal to easylet's accounts.

Goodwill and fanding rights (note 7)

Gowdwill and landing nghts are tested for impairment at least annually. easyjet has one cash-generating unit, being its route network. In making this
assessment, easyjet has considered the manner in which the business 1s managed including the centralised nature of its operations and the ability to open or
cose routes and redeploy aircraft and crew across the whole route network. The value in use of the cash-generating unit is determined by discounting future
cash flows to their present value. When applying this method, easylet refies on a number of estimates including its strategic plans, fuel prices, exchange rates,
long-term economic growth rates for the principal countries in which it operates and its pre-tax weighted average cost of capital.

Assets held for sale {note 1)

When an aircraft s held for sale, the canrying value of the asset is assessed by companson wath its fair value less costs to seff the asset. The underlying market
for aircraft is conducted in US dallars. in the cumrent economic environment, where the market for used aircraft is thin, there are few transactions against
which a market compansor of fair value can be made. In these crcumstances easyjet uses data avallable from third party agencies and indications of interest
from prospective purchasers to estmate the fair value at the balance sheet date. The time i will take 1o sell the arcraft held for safe s also uncertain, and
asset values in steding could rise or &l before a sale is completed.

Aircraft maintenance provisions (note |7}

easyjet incurs labifives for maintenance costs in respect of aircraft leased urder operating leases during the term of the lease. These arise from legal and
constructive contractual obligations relating to the condition of the aircraft when it is retumed to the lessor. To discharge these obligations. easyjet will also
normally need to carry out one heavy maintenance check on each of the engines and the airframe during the lease term,

A charge is made in the income statement based on hours or cycles flown to provide for the cost of these obligations. Estimates required inciude the likely
utlisation of the aircraft, the expected cost of the heavy mantenance check at the time it is expected to occur, the condition of the aireraft and the Iifespan
of life-imited parts. The bases of all estimates are reviewed once each year, and also when information becomes avalable that 1s capable of causing a material
change to an estimate, such as renegotiation of end of lease return conditions, increased or decreased utiisation, or chaniges in the cost of heavy
maintenance senvices.

Tax (note 5)

in drawing up the accounts, estimates are made of current and defermed tax assets and liabilities for each jurisdiction in which easyjet operates. These
estimates are affected by transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination was uncertain at the tme the accounts were finalised. The issues
involved are often complex and may take ar: extended period to resolve. Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is different from the amounits that
were intially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and fiabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation
The consoldated accounts incorporate those of easylet plc and its subsidianes for the years ended 30 September 2008 and 2009.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by easylet. Control exists when easylet has the power, direcily or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to benedit from its activities,

Intragroup balances. transactions and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
accounts.

Foreign currencies

The primary economic envronment in which a subsidiary operates detarmines its functioral curreney, The consohdated accounts of easylet are presented
sterfing, whvch 15 the Company’'s functional currency and the Group's presentation currency. Certan subsidianes have operations that are pnmanty influences
by a currency other than stering. Exchange cifferences ansing on the transiation of these foreign operatians are taken to reserves until all or part of the
interest 1s solg, when the relevant portion of the exchange gains or losses 15 recogrised in the income statement. Profiss and losses of foreign operauons are
translated into sterling at average rates of exchange dunng the year. since this approximates the rates on the dates of the transactions,

Transactions ansing in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and habilues
denorminated in foregn curences are translated into sterling using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and {except where the asset or
habiity 15 designated as a cash flow hedge) the gains or losses on translatien are mduded in the income statement. MNon-monetary assets and fiabilibes
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into stering at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the transactions were effected,

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise the invoiced value of airing services, met of air passenger duty, VAT and discounts, phus ancillary revenue.

Passenger revenue anises from the sale of fight seats and 1s recogrised when the service is provided, Uneamed revenue represents flight seats sold but not
yet flown and is ncluded in trade and other payables until it 1s realised in the ncome staterent when the service s provided.

Ancillary revenue is generally recognised when the flight to which it relates departs. Certain types of andillary revenue are recognised at the tme the benefit
of the service provided passes to the customer. Ancillary revenue in the form of fixed anrual fees is recognised evenly throughout the year.

Amounts paid by "no-shows’” customers are recognised as passenger or ancillary revenue as approprate when the booked service 15 pravided as such
customers are not generally entitled to change flights or seek refunds once a fight has departed,

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method, The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the far values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets and labilites are recognised at thewr fair values at the acquisiion date. Goodwilt ansing on acquisiton 1s recognised as an asset and iniially measured at
cost. being the excess of the cost of the business combination over easylet’s interest in the net far value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and conungent
liabilities recognised.

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill is stated at ¢ost less any accumulated impairment losses. It has an indefinite expected useful life and is tested for impairment at least anrwatly
or where there is any indicaton of Impaiment.

Landing rights are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, They are considered to have an indefinite useful ife as they will remain availzble
for use for the foreseeable future provided minimum utilisation requirements are observed, and are tested for impairment at least annually or where there
is any indication of impairment

QOther intangble assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation, which 1s calculated 1o wite off their cost. less estmated residual value, on a
straight-fine basis over their expected useful lives, Expected usefud lives and residual values are revewed annualty.

Expected usefl Ue

Computer software 3 years
Contractual nghts Ower the length of the related contracis
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipmenit Is siated at cost less accumulated deprecaton. Depreciauon is cafeulated to witte off the cost, less esumated residual value,
of assets on a straght-line basis over their expected useful hives, Ex<pected useful lives are reviewed annually.

Expecied usefi Lie
Aircraft 23 years
Aircraft spares 14 years
Aircraft improvements 37 years
Aircraft — prepaid mantenarce 3-10 years
Leasehold improvemenis 5~10 years or the length of lease if shorter
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3 years or length of lease of property where equipment is used if shorter
Cormputer hardware 5 years

iterns held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their expected useftl bves, as shown above,

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevaiing rmarket rates at the balance shest date for equivalently aged assets and
depreciation rates adjusted accordingly on a prospective basis, The canying value 15 reviewed for impainment f events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the camying value may not be recoverable,

An elernent of the cost of a new aireraft is attrbuted on acguisiton 10 prepaid mantenance and is depreciated over a penod ranging from three to ten years
from the date of manulacture. Subsequent costs iIncurred which fend enhancement to future penods, such as long-tenm scheduled maintenance and major
overhaul of arcraft and engines, are capitalised and depreciated over the length of period benefiting from these enhancerments. All other maintenance costs
are charged to the income statement as incurred.

The cost of new aircraft comprises the invoiced price of the aircraft from the supplier less the estimated value of other assets received by easylet for
nil consideration. These other assets principally comprise cash (recognised as an asset) and aircraft spares and service credits.

Pre-delivery and option payments made in respect of aircraft are recorded in property. plant and equipment at cost.

Impairment of non-current assets

Animpairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset's falr vafue iess cost to sell and its value in use.
impairment losses recognised on assats other than goodwill are only reversed where changes in the esumates used result in an ncrease in recoverable
amount Impairment losses recognised on goodwill are not reversed,

Leases
Non-contingent operating lease rentals are dharged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. A number of operatng leases
require easylet to make contingent rental payments based on vanable interest rates; these are expensed as incumed.

easyjet enters into sale and leaseback transactions whereby it sells to a third party rights to acquire aireraft On delivery of the arcrafi, easylet subsequently
leases the aircraft back, by way of an operating lease. Surpluses arising on disposal, where the price that the aircraft is sold for is above fair value, are
recognised in deferred income and amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term of the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to easylet substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to cwnership of the leased item. are recognised at the inception

of the fease at the fair value of the leased asset, or, il lower, at the present value of the minimurn lease payments. Any directly attributable costs of entering
into financing sale and leasebacks are included in the value of the asset recognised. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the
reducton of the Jease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charges are ncluded in interest
payable and other financing charges.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recogrused when easylet becomes a party to the contractual provsions of the relevant instrument and derecogrised when it ceases
to be a party 1o such provisons.

Where market values are not available, the fair value of inancial nstruments is calculated by discounting cash flows at prevalling interest rates and by applying
year end exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Nen-derivative financial assets

MNon-derivative financial assets are recorded at amortised cost and indude loan notes. trade recewables, cash and money market deposits, Restcted cash
comprises cash deposits which have restncuons goverming thew use and is classified as a current or non-cument asset basec on the estimated remaning
length of the restriction. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held in bank accourits with ne access restrictions and bark or money market deposits
repayable on demand or maturing within three months of iInception.

Impairment losses are recognised on financial assets camied at amortised cost where there is objective evidence that an impairment 10ss has been incurred.
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the
onginal effective interest rate. If, subsequently, the amount of the impaimment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event that
occuned after the impaimment was recognised, the appropnate portion of the loss is reversed. Both impairment losses and reversals are recognised in the
income statemnent as components of net finance (charges) / incomne.

Investments in equity instrurents are ¢arvied at cost where fair value cannot be refiably measured due to significant variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates.

Interest income on cash and money market deposis is recognised using the effective interest method.

Non-derivative financial fiabilities
Non-derivative financial fiablities are initially recorded at farr value less directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently at amortised cost

Bormrowings are classified as current liabilties unless there is an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Interest expense on loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

Denvative fincncial instruments
Dearivatve financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges are used to mitigate operating and investing transaction exposures 1o movements in jet fuel
prices and currency exchange rates, Hedge accounting is zpplied to these instruments.

Changes in intrinsic fair value are recognised in shareholders' funds to the extent that the cash flow hedges are determired to be effective. All other changes
in far value are recognised immediately in the income statement. Where the hedged item results in a non-financial asset or lability, the accurnufated gains
and losses previously recognised in shareholders’ funds form part of the intal camying amount of the asset or liability, Ctherwise accumulated gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement in the same period in which the hedged items affect the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument is derecognised (e.g. through expiry or disposal), or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
Where the hedged tem is a highly probable forecast transaction, the refated gains and lasses remain in shareholders’ funds uniil the transaction takes place.

When a hedged future transaction is no longer expected to occur, any related gains and losses previously recognised inshareholders’ funds are immediately
recogrised in the Income statement.

Tax

Tax expense in the income statement consists of current and deferred tax. The charge for curent tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for
income that is exempt and expenses that are not deductible wsing tax rates that are applicable 10 the taable income. Tax is recognised in the income
staternent except when it refates to items credited or charged directly 1o shareholders’ funds. in which case it is recognised in shareholders’ funds.

Deferred tax is provided in fulf on remporary differences refating to the camrying amount of assets and liabilities, where it is probable that the recovery
or settlerment will result in an obligation to pay more, or a right to pay less. tax in the future, with the following exceptions:

¥ where the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initiai recognition (ather than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit

+ deferred tax arising on investrments in subsidiaries 1s not recognised where easylet is able 1o control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fnure,

Deferred tax s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which recovery of assets and settlement
of habilibes are expected 1o take place, based on tax rates or faws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax assets represent amounts recoverable in future pencds in respect of deductible temporary diferences, losses and tax credits camed forward.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that o 15 probable that there wall be sutable taxable profits from which they can be deducted.

Deferved tax liabilities represent the amount of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary diferences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and it is the
intention to settle these on a net basis.
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Aircraft maintenance provisions
The accountng for the cost of providing major arframe and certain engine mantenance checks for owned and finarce leased arcraft i descnbed in the
accounting policy for property, plant and equipment.

easyjet has contractual obligations to maintain aircraft held under operating leases. Prowisions are created over the term of the lease based on the estimated
future costs of major airframe checks, engine shop visits and end of fease liabilites. These costs are discounted to present value where the amount of the
discount is considered material. .

A number of leases also require easylet to pay supplemental rent to the lessor, Payments may be either a fixed monthly sum up to a cap or are based

on usage. The purpose of these payrmenis is to prowvide the lessor with collateral should an aircraft be retumned in 2 condition that does nat meet the
requirements of the lease. Supplemental rent is either refunded when qualifying maintenance is performed, or is offset against end of lease liabilities. Where
the amount of supplemental rent pald exceeds the estimated amount recoverable from the lessor, provision is made for the non-recoverable amourt

Employee benefits
easylet contnbutes to defined contribution pension schernes for the benefit of ernployees. The assets of the schernes are held separately from those
of easylet in independently administered funds. easylet’s contributions are charged to the income staternent in the year in which they are incurred.

The expected cost of compensated holidays is recognised at the time that the related employees’ services are provided,

Share-based payments

easyjet has a number of equity settfed share incentive schemes. The fair value of share options is measured at the date of grant using the Binomizi Lattice
option pncing mode!, The fair value of awards under the Long Tern Incentive Plan and awards of free shares is the share price at the date of grant. The far
value of the estimated number of options and awards that are expected to vest is expensed to the income staterment on a straight-line basis over the period
that employees’ services are rendered, with a corresponding increase in shareholders’ funds. Where performance cteria attached to the share options and
awartds are not met, any cumulative expense previously recognised is reversed.

Segmental disclosures
easylet has one business segment: the provision of a fow cost arline service, easyjet bas one geographical segment relating 16 the ongin of its tumover which
is Europe.

Investments in subsidiaries
investrents in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less any provision for impainment, in the entity accounts.

Assets held for sale
Where assets are available for sale in their cument cendition, and their disposal is highly probabile, they are redassified as held for sale and are measured
at the lower of their carrying value and the fair value less costs to sell. Depreciation ceases at the point of their reclassification from non-current assets.

impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards
The following interpretations are required 1o be implemented for the year ended 30 September 2005

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Amangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (IAS 18}

FRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction (JAS 19)
IFRIC 16 Heriges of a Net Investmenit in a Foreign Operation

The adoption of these interpretations has had no impact on these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies (continued)
New standards and interpretations not applied

The 1ASB and IFRIC have issued the foflewing standards and interpretations that have not been applied in preparing these accounts as their effective dates fal
in periods beginning after | October 2008, At 30 September 2009, items indicated below with an astedsk had net been adopted by the European Union,

Apples to penods

begnrng on or after

International Accounting Standards Board
New and revised standards

IAS 27 Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements (Revised)

IFRS | First-ume Adopuon of IFRS (Rewvsed)*

IFRS 3 Business Combinauons {Revised)

IFRS B Operating Segments

IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)

L45 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised)

1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Revised)

Amendments to standards

IAS | Presentation of Financal Statements (Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arsing on Liquidation)
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation)
IAS 32 Financial Instrurnents: Presentation (Classification of Rights Issues)*

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Elighle Hedged ltems)

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Embedded Dervatives)*

IFRS | First-time Adgption of IFRS (fnvestment in Subsidiaries)

IFRS | First-time Adoption of IFRS (Additional Exernptions for First-time Adopters)y*

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Vesting Conditions and Cancellations)

IFRS 2 Share-based Payrment (Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions)*

IFRS 7 Fimancial Instrurments: Disclosures (Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments)*

improvements to IFRS (2007)

improverments to IFRS (2009)*

Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives (Armended)*
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Esiate

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Mon-Cash Assets to Owners®

IFRIC I8 Transfers of Assets from Customers®

| july 2008
| July 2009
| July 2009
| January 2009
b January 2009
I January 2009
1 July 2009

| January 2009
| January 2009
| February 2010
| July 2009

30 June 200°

b July 2009

| January 2010
| January 2009
| January 2010
| Jarmuary 2009
| January 2009
b July 2009 and
| January 2010

30 June 2009

| January 2009
| July 2009

1 Juty 2009

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations wifl have a material impact on easyjet’s accounts. Certain of these

standards and interpretations will, when adopted, require addition to or amendment of disclosures in the accounts.

Under IFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Directors have deterrmined that easylet cortinues to operate in one business segment, namely the pi
cost airdine service.

2 Net finance charges / (income)

rovision of a low

2009 2008
£ milion £ rcion
Interest receivable and other financing income
Interest ncome (184) (48.9)
Net exchange gains on financing items (note 24) .1 (4.3)
(225) (533
Interest payable and other financing charges
Interest payable on bank loans 262 79
Interest payable on finance lease obligations 39 472
Other interest payable 2.2) 19
279 340
34 (19.2)

Gther interest payable in 2009 includes a credit of £3.3 milon reversing a previous interest accnal.
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3 Profit before tax
The following have been included in arriving at profit before tax

2009 2008
£ millicn £ mion
Employee costs (note 4) 3429 91.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Owned assets 520 4.
Under finance leases 34 33
Amorusation of intangible assets 44 25
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equipment 7.5 0.l
Operating lease remals
Aurcraft 125.1 1049
Other assets 27 27
Auditors’ remuneration
Dunng the year easyjet obtained the foilowing services from easylet's auditors and their associates (including foreign partners):
2009 2008
£ millicn £ mdon
Group audt fee 0.3 0.3
Audit of GB Airways purchase accourting - 0.1
Tetal audit fee 03 04
Fees for ather services
GB Adrways acquisition and integration - 0.7
Other 0.1 G.1
0.4 1.2
4 Employees
The average nurmber of persons employed by easyjet was:
2009 K06
Flight and ground operations 6,186 5985
Sales, marketing and admirustration 292 3%0
6.478 6375
Employee costs for easyjet were:
w0 2008
£ million £mlon
Wages and salaries 2792 2382
Social security costs 338 272
Pension costs 225 216
Share-based payments 74 4.2
3429 2912
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

4 Employees (continued)
Key managerent compensation was:

2009 7002

€ million £ miian

Short-term employee benefits 4.5 35
Pension costs 0.2 04
Payments for loss of office - ol
Share-based payments 07 05
54 45

The Directors of easylet plc and the other members of the Executive Management Team are easylet’s key management as they have collective authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the business.

Emoluments paid or payable to the Directors of sasyjet ple were:

2000 2004
£ milkon £moen
Remuneration 25 I.8
Gans made on the exerose of share options 0.l -
Pension costs (two Directors) 0.l 0.1
27 .9
Detals of directors’ remuneration are disclosed in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration.
5 Tax (credit) / charge
Tax on prefit on ordinary activities
2009 2003
£ million £ milion
Current tax
United Kingdom corporation tax 69 148
Foreign tax 12, €0
Prior year adjustments (27.4) (23.0)
(8.4) 23)
Deferred tax
Temporary differences relating to property, plant and equipment (13.1) (24
Other temporary differences 9.3 1.3
Prior year adustments (4.3) 204
(8.1 293
(16.5) 270
Effective tax rate (30.2)% 24.5%

During the year, agreement was reached with Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs on certain tax issues. This has resulted in the release 1o the income
statement of £30.7 mithon relating to current tax liabiliues prowded for in prior years. In addition, easylet has reassessed certain other open iax matters.
The net impact of these has been dassified as prior year curvent and deferred 1ax adustmenits. The prior year adjustmenis in 2008 include a redassification
of £163 mifion from current tax 10 deferred tax.

Tax on items recognised directly in shareholders’ funds

2009 2008

£ milion £ mnlion

Deferred tax credit / (charge) on share-based payments N 73
Deferred tax credit / {charge) on fair value movements of cash flow hedges 9.9 (i4.4)
Current tax credit on share-based payments 04 20

204 (19.7)
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Reconciliation of the total tax (credit) / charge
The tax for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation wax in the UK as set ot below:

2009 008
£ midion Lmor
Profit on ordinary activities befaore tax 547 1102
Tax charge at 28% 15.3 309
Attributable to rates other than standard UK rate (1.3) (1.5)
incorne not chargeable for tax purpeses (2.5) 02)
Expenses not dedudctible for tax purposes 25 03
Share-based payments i.2 0.2
Adjustments in respeci of prior years - current tax (27.4} (23.1)
Adjustments in respect of pror years — deferred tax (4.3) 204
(16.5) 270
Deferred tax
The net deferred tax hability ncluded in the balance sheet s as foliows:
Acceerited Shost-term Far
capaal unng value Share-basec
A.owWarces cifferences Tax ossey (gersfones payments Tota
Lmeon £moon Lenon Looon fmon Lmvon
At | October 2008 - originally reported 497 306 - 300 (38 107.6
Adjustment re acquisition of GB Airways
(note 23) - 0.3) - - - Q3
At | October 2008 — restated 49.7 303 - 3t (38) 107.3
Charged / (credited) to the income statement (14.2) 233 (160} - (1.2) (A
Transfer from current tax liabiiues - (1.9) - - - B
Credited to shareholders’ funds - - - (19.9) (1.1} 210
At 30 September 2009 355 517 (160) H.2 (6.1) 763
Accelermted Short-term Far
capral uning vaue Share-based
aberwances cifferences Tax lomsas {garsplosses payments Tota
£ mZion £mZon Lmion £mijon £ mion £mlon
At | October 2007 519 (1.8) - (37 1.8 346
Charged / (credited) to the income statement 15 356 - &5 Q7 29.3
Acquisition of GB Airways (note 23) (37 (32) - 289 - 220
Charged to shareholders’ funds - - - 144 73 217
At 30 September 2008 497 306 - 311 (38) 107.6

Of the total net deferred tax labitty of £76.3 mithon at 30 September 2009, it is estmated that assets of approximately £7.4 milion will reverse during the
year ending 30 September 2010. Deferred tax assets and habilites have been offset where they relate to income taves levied by the same taxation authortty.

As a resutt the net UK deferred tax labity s £76 1 mifion (2008 £107.8 mulban). The net overseas deferved tax liabilty is £0.2 million (2008: assat of
£0.5 miton). There are no unrecognised deferred 1ax assets.
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6 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share has been cakculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year after
adjusting for shares hefd in employee share trusts.

For diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted te assume conversion of al! diltive potential shares,
Share options grarted 1o employees where the exercise price i less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares dunng the year are
considered to be dilstive potential shares. Where shzre options are exercisable based on periosmance criteria and those performance critena have been
met duning the year, these options are included in the calculation of diutive potential shares.

Eamings per share is based on:

2009 2008
£ miliion £ rlion
Profit for the year 712 832
million rrulhon
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year used to calculate basic eamings per share 4249 4194
Weghted average number of dilutive share opticns 64 9.2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 4283 4286
Earnings per share
2009 2008
pence pence
Basic R Y I T
Dilted 166 19.4
7 Goodwill and other intangible assets
COrther rang bie assets
Lancting Contractua! Cornputer
Gooaw rights nghis software Tata
£mion € miion £mion £miion £ mdion
Cost
At i October 2008 — onginally reported 3598 726 25 126 877
Adjustment re acguisition of GB Airways (note 23) 56 - - - -
At | October 2008 - restated 3654 716 25 126 877
Additions - f.4 - 44 55
At 30 September 2009 3654 740 25 16.7 932
Amortisation
At | October 2008 - - 07 64 FA
Charge for the year - - 10 34 44
At 30 September 2009 - - 1.7 9.8 1S
Net book value
At 30 September 2009 3654 740 08 69 817
At ¥ October 2008 - restated 3654 716 I.& 62 806
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Other rtangble assets
Ladng Contracuaal Computer

Goodwsi nghts gt software Tow!

£ rn'on £mon £ mion £ mon £ mZon
Cost
At | October 2007 305.6 - - 64 64
Acausition of GB Airways (note 23) 55.8 724 25 - 749
Additions - 02 - 6.1 6.4
At 30 September 2008 365.4 6 25 6 877
Amortisation
At | October 2007 - - - 44 46
Charge for the year - - 07 1.8 25
At 30 September 2008 - - 0.7 64 71
Net book value
At 30 September 2008 3654 706 1.8 62 B0.6
At | October 2007 309.6 - - ] 1.8

easylet has one cash-generating unit, being its route network The recoverable amount of goodwill anc other assets with indefinite expected useful lives has
been determined based on value in use of the route network.

Pre-tax cash flow projections have been derived from the five-year strategic plan approved by the Board in fune 2009, using the following key assumptions:

Pre-tax discount rate {dernved from weighted average cost of capital) 10.69%
Fuel pnce, per metne tonne, in US doltars 775
Exchange rates

US dollar 155
Euro 1.20
Swiss franc 1.70

Both fuel price and exchange rates have been volatile dunng the past year, and the assumptions used represent management’s view of reasonable average
rates. Operating rmargins are sensitive to sgnificant changes in these rates.

Cash flow projections beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using real growth rate scenarios ranging from zero up to an estimated average
of long-term econormic growth rates for the pnncpal countnes in which easylet operates. No impairmment resufted fom any of these scenanos.

No reasonably possible cambination of changes in the key assumptions abave would result in the carrying value of the cash-generating unit exceeding
its recoverable amount.

8 Property, plant and equipment

Lexsehold

Adxeratt improvernents. Crber Total

£ mon {mion Lmion Lmon
Cost
At | Ocrober 2008 11778 125 266 1,2169
Additions 5115 - 35 5150
Transfer from assets held for sale 679 - - 679
Disposals (10.1) - - [{143))]
At 30 September 2009 1,747.1 125 301 1,789.7
Depreciation
At | October 2008 93. 64 148 143
Charge for the year 524 07 23 554
Transfer from assets held for sale 130 - - 130
Disposals (52) - - (5.2}
At 30 September 2009 1533 7.1 17.1 172.5
Net book value
At 30 September 2009 15938 54 13.0 6122

At | October 2008 1.084.7 &.l 1.8 11026
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8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehotd

Aurcralt srprovernents Other Total

£ elon £mion £mlon £ mion
Cost
At [ October 2007 98738 122 224 10224
Acquisition of GB Airways (restated — note 23) 825 - - 825
Additions 3195 03 42 3240
Transfer to assets held for sale (restated — note 23) (211.3) - - (281.3)
Disposals 07 - - (©7)
At 30 September 2008 T TTTToimme T s e 121089
Depreciation
At | October 2007 68.2 56 128 26.6
Charge for the year 416 08 20 444
Transfer to assets held for sale (164} - - (164)
Disposals (0.3) - - (©3)
At 30 September 2008 931 64 148 1143
Net book value
At 30 September 2008 1.084.7 6.} 1.8 [,1026
At | October 2007 9196 66 9.4 9358

At 30 September 2009, sasylet is contractually committed to the acquisition of 74 (2008: 109} Airbus A320 family aircraft with a total Hist prce of

US5$34 bilion (2008: USES.| billion) before escalations and discounts, for delivery in the period to October 2013,
The net book value of arcraft at 30 September 2009 inciudes £148.5 million (2008: £188.1 million) refating to advance and option paymens for future

detvery of arcraft. This amount is not depreciated.

The net bock value of arcraft held under finance leases at 30 September 2009 was £71.1 million (2008 £74.5 million). £34 milion of the related

accumulated depreciation was charged in the year ended 30 September 2009 (2008: £3.3 mifion).

At 30 September 2009, arcraft with a net book value of £984.5 million (2008: £610.9 millon) were mortgaged to lenders as loan secunty.

9 Loan notes

In 2001, easylet In consortium with six other UK airfines formed The Airline Group Limited in order to acquire a minonty interest in NATS. the company
that owns the UK air traffic control sysiem, easyjet’s investment is principally in the form of unsecured loan notes bearing interest at a fixed rate of 8%.
Interest recenable is settled by the issue of additional loan notes. Redemption is governed by a priority agreement among the consortium members.

2009 2008

£ million £ mition

At | Ocober 120 11

Interest receivable corverted to loan notes 09 09

Redemption of loan notes 03 -

At 30 September 126 120
10 Other non-current assets

2009 2008

£ million £ milign

Recoverable supplemental rent on leased aincraft (pledged as collateral) 57.3 542

Deposits held by aircraft fessors 23 35

Cther 34 33

627 a1

Supplementary rent i pladged 10 lessors to provide collateral shouid an arcraft be retumed in a condivon that does not meet the requirements of the lease

and s refunded when qualifying heavy maintenance 15 performed, or 15 offset against the costs incurred &t the end of the lease.
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11 Assets held for sale

{m oon
At | October 2008 — orignally reported 195.8
Adjustment re acquisition of GB Airways (note 23) . {09)
At | October 2008 - restated 194.5
Disposals (66.8)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (54.9)
At 30 September 2009 732

During 2008, seven Airbus A321 and five Airbus A319 arcraft, measitred at carrying value which is considered to be less than current market value,
were reclassiied from property, plant and equioment to assets held for sale, This carrying value was subsequently restated (see note 23).

During the year, three Airbus A32 | arcraft have been sold, realising a net profit of £1 1.0 million. easylet continues to market the remaining four A321
aircraft, and afthough the pericd over which the asset is dlassified as held for sale exceeds one year, the Directors consider that this classification remains
appropriate.

In view of cumrent market conditions and the challenges for potential purchases in arranging finance, the five A319 arrcraft have been transferred back
to property. plant and equipment, with a comesponding catch-up of related depreciation charged to the income statement.

12 Trade and other receivables

2008 2008
£ millian o _{m_‘n?f_
Trade receivables i58.4 1421
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (29} (26}
1355 1395
Other receivables 228 27.1
Recoverable supplemental rent on leased aircraft (pledged as collateral) 45 206
Prepayments and accrued income 590 49.7
2418 2369

Supplemeniary rent is pledged to lessors 1o provide collateral should an arcrait be returned in a condition that does not meet the requirements of the lease
and is refunded when qualifying heavy maintenarice is performed. or s offset aganst the costs incurred at the end of the lease,

Allowance for credit losses
Movemernts in the provision for mpairment of trade recevables are shown below:

2009 2008
€ milfion z mli
At 1 October B 26 12
Increase in provsion (included in "Other cosis™) 09 22
Amounts wntten off (0.6} (0.8)
At 30 September 29 26

Trade receivables are monitored and allowances are created when there is evidence that amounts due, according 10 the terms of the recenable, may not
be collected.

The following amounts of trade and other receivables are past due but not impaired:

2009 2008

£ roillion £ mSon

Up to three months past due 201 134
Over three months past due 03 1.7
214 t5.1

With respect to trade receivables that are neither impaired nor past due, there are no indications at the reporting date that the payment obligations will not
be met. Amounts due from trade receivables are short term in rature and largely comprise credit card receivables due from financial institutions with ¢redit
ratings of at least A and, accordingly. the possibifity of significant default is considered 10 be unlikely.
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13 Cash and money market deposits

2009 2008

£ radiion £ mcion

Cash and cash equivalents (onginal maturity less than three months) 7886 6322
Money market deposits {orginal maturity over three months) 2863 2303
Curvent restricted cash 243 233
Non-current restricted cash 480 429
o o 11472 9287

Interest rates on money market deposis and restricied cash are repriced within |85 days based on prevailing market rates of interest. Carmying value is not

significantly diferent from faw value

Pestricted cash compnses:

2009 2008
£ milion £ mZion
Custorrer payrnents for packaged holidays 234 233
Pledged as coflatera! to third-parties:
Aircraft operating lease deposits 444 372
Aurcraft mortgage collateral 27 40
Orther 18 1.7
T 723 662
14 Trade and other payables
2009 2008
£ million £ miion
Trade payables 992 Ti5
Other taxes and social security 7.8 10.2
Other creditors 83.6 4.3
Uneamed revenue 3243 286.2
Accruals and deferred income 255.8 2373
7507 £53.0
15 Borrowings
At 30 September 2009 cncwm:.n Nmm 7 £rnT°:r
Bank loans 138 8%9  10i07
Finance lease obligatons 18 106, 10%.9
178 1,003.0 1.120.6
At 30 September 2008 m Nm{ﬁ“_fn £ miwn
Bank loans 535 471.4 5249
Finance lease obligations 32 988 1020
567 5702 6269

Ban loans, which bear interest at vanable rates knked to UBOR were drawn down to finance the acquistion of arcratt that have been mortgaged to the

lender to prowde security.

Finance lease obligations refate to aircraft and bear interest partly at fixed rates and partly at vanable rates tinked to LIBOR.

The maturity profile of borrowings 1s set out in note 25
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16 Non-current deferred income
Deferred income principally compnses the non-current excess of sale proceeds over fair value of arcraft that have been sold and leased back under
operaung leases. This balance will be realised in the income statement over the next eight years,

17 Maintenance provisions

£ ron
At | October 2008 — originally reported 209.4
Adjustment re acquisition of GB Airways (note 23) 69
At | October 2008 - restated 2163
Exchange adjustments 216
Charged 10 income statement 41.2
Utilised i the year (65.4)
At 30 September 2009 2137
Mantenance provisions are analysed as follows;
2009 2008
£ millien £ mion
Current (restated ~ note 23) 45.1 559
Non-current 168.6 160.4
- 2137 263
The provision for maintenance liabilities 1s expected to be utlised within eight years.
18 Share capital
Pumber Value
2009 2008 2009 008
milkion mton £ million £m or
Authorised
At beginning and end of the year, ordinary shares of 25 pence each 5000 500.0 1250 1250
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At | October 4227 415.1 105.7 i04.8
Issued during the year under share incentive schemes 22 36 0.3 09
At 30 September 4249 427 106.0 105.7
The weightad average share price for options exercised during the year was £3.09 (2008: £4.72).
sasylet’s emplayee share trusts hold the following shares. The cost of these has been deducted from retained eamings:
2009 2008
Numier of shares {million} 20 1.9
Cost {£ milton) 9.7 103
Market value at 30 September (£ million) 7.5 56
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19 Share incentive schemes

easylet operaies the following share incentive schemes, all of which are equity setted. The change in the number of awards cutstanding and weighted
average exercise prices during the year, and the number exercisable ai each year end were as {ollows:

| October 30 September
2008 Granted Forfarted Lapsed Ererceed Expired 2009
Awards by grant date millon mion milion mdon mition milien million
Fre-flotation scheme
29 February 2000 36 - - - 03) - 33
26 Septermber 2000 05 - - - - - 05
Discretionary schemes
18 January 200k Ql - - - - - a.l
19 January 2004 05 - - - - 0.5
8 December 2004 4.6 - (0.4} ~ (07 - 38
2 june 2005 04 - - - (04) - -
i December 2005 o7 - - (0.3} - - 0.4
Sharesave
29 June 2005 06 - - - (05) ©on -
2 June 2006 Q05 - 0.1y - o - 02
8 June 2007 05 - (02) - - - 03
& June 2008 35 - (04) - - - 3.1
5 June 2009 - 1.4 - - - - 1.4
Share incentive plan 19 03 - - - - 2.2
Long term incentive plan
| December 2005 05 - - 02 (03) - -
| Decernber 2006 07 - @) - - - 0.6
3 Decemnber 2007 09 - (02 - - - 0.7
29 Febnuary 2008 04 - {07) - - - 0.2
16 Jarwary 2009 - 24 ©.3) - - - 21
Chief Executive recruitment award 03 - - 0hH 02 - -
202 4.1 (16) (06) (26) ©n 19.4
| Ocober 30 September
2008 Gramed Forfered Lapsed Ereruced Expirad 2009
Weighted aversge exercise prices £ £ £ { [4 [4 i
Pre-flotation scherne 1.66 - - - |.62 - 1.66
Discretionary schemes 220 - 239 330 203 - 216
Sharesave 259 243 302 - 208 1.86 256
The exercise price of all awards save those disclosed in the above table s £nil.
2009 2064
Nurmber of awands exendsable million M on
Pre-flotation scheme 38 41
Driscretionary schernes 4.8 56
Sharesave 0.2 06
Share incentrve plan 0.2 -
9.0 103
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Pre-flotation scheme
Opnons vested in tranches of 25% ending on the third anniversary of easylet's admussion to the Offical bist on 22 Novermnber 2000, and expire ten years
after grant.

Discretionary schemes
Options awarded in 2001 in connection with easyjet’s admission to the Official List had a three-year vesting penod and no performance conditions,

Al other awards have a three-year vesting period and performance conditions based on growth in eamings per share. During the year 54% of the options
grarited in December 2005 vested,

Sharesave

Sharesave is open to all employees on the UK payroll. Participants may elect to save up to £250 per month under a three-year savings contract. An option is
granted by the Company to buy shares at a discount of 209 from market price at the time of the grant. At the end of the savings period, a tax-free bonus is
applied to the savings and the option becomes exercisable for a period of six months. Employees who are not paid through the UK payroll may save under
similar terrms and conditons. albeit without tax benefits.

Share incentive plan

The share incentive plan is open to all employees on the UK payroll, Particpants may invest up to £1,500 of therr pre-tax salary each year to purchase
partnership shares in easylet. For each parinership share acquired easyjet purchases a matching share. Employees must remain wath easylet for thiee years
from the date of purchase of each partnership share in order to qualfy for the matching share, and for five years for the shares to be transferred to them tax
free. The empioyee 1s entited to dividends and to vote at shareholder meetings, Employees who are not paid through the UK payroll may save under smilar
terms and conditions, albert without tax benefits,

In Octeber 2006 and December 2007, easyjet also awarded free shares to all employees under the share ncentve plan.

Long term incentive plan

The plan is open. by nvitation, to Executive Directors and senior management. and provides for annuat awards of performance shares worth up to 200%
of salary each year and matching shares linked to the nvestmenit of up to 50% of annual bonus in easyjet shares. The vesting of these awards is dependent
on retum on equity targets being achieved.

Chief Executive recruitment award

In December 2005, on Andrew Harvison acquinng and retaining £1,000,000 worth of easyjet shares using his own funds, he was granted an equal number
of shares with a three-year vesting penod. Hall of the award 1s subject to performance conditions relating 1o the growth in EPS over the three years to
September 2008, The other half 1s subject to the same retum on equity targets as the 2005 long term incentive plan award, Dunng the year 509% of the
award related to growth in EPS and 67% of the award related to returm on equity vested.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for each class of share award is as follows:

ears

Pre-flotation scheme 05
Discretionary schemes 5.1
Sharesave 2.5
Share incentive plan 30
Long term incentive plan 22

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 2, fair values have not been calculated for grants of share options that accured before 8 November 2002,
Exercise prices for these options he between £1.61 and £3.65.
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19 Share incentive schemes {continued)

The far value of other grants under the discretionary and sharesave schemes 1s estirmated by appiyng the Binomual Latuce opuion pricing mode! using the

following key assumpuons. The fair value of grants under all othar schemes is the share pnce on the gzie of grant.

Share Erercse Espectac Opton Rg-fee Far

pree pree Ol 2y e FIEVES? rale AL
Grat date 14 < % (years) o {
Discretionary Schemes
19 fanuary 2004 380 360 40% 65 4.62% 190
& December 2004 181 184 42% 65 4.45% 0.88
2 June 2005 225 232 42% 65 420% 108
I December 2005 342 330 42% 55 4.15% |42
Sharesave
29 June 2005 245 1.85 42% 35 4.05% .42
2 June 2006 3.66 264 42% 35 4.68% 1.79
8 jure 2007 519 479 32% 35 5.76% 1.82
6 june 2008 286 240 41% 35 492% I.16
5 june 2009 3.04 248 53% 35 252% 1,48
Share incentive plan 252-727 - - - - 262-7.27
Long term incentive plan
| Decernber 2005 342 - - - - 342
| December 2006 595 - - - - 595
3 December 2007 5.63 - - - - 5.63
29 February 2008 433 - - - - 4.33
16 January 2009 2.88 - - - - 288
Chief Executive recruitment award 376 - - - - 376

The weighted average fair value of shares issued under the share incentive plan during the year was £3.00 (2008: £5.46).

Share pnce is the closing share price from the last working day pnor to the date of grant Exercise price for the discretonary schemes was determined using
a five-day weighted average price. For the Sharesave scheme, a 209 discount has been given between share pnce and exerdise price,

Expected volatility is based on historical volatifity over a period comparable to the expected life of each type of option.

In all cases the assumed dividend yield is zero as easylet does not pay dividends,

Levels of early exertises and lapses are estmated using histoncat averages.

20 Shareholders’ funds

Share Share Hedgry Tranlston Retared
apdat T resene resanve eaTngs Towl
£ mdion £ mien £ mdon £m'en £ on £ medon
At 1 October 2008 1057 6402 276 0. 5046 12782
Profit for the year - - - - 712 712
Cash flow hedges
Fair value losses - - (214.3) - - (214.3)
Losses wansferred to income statement - - 2288 - - 228.8
Gains transferred to property. plant and equipment - - (859} - - (85.9)
Related tax (note 5) - - 19.9 - - 19.9
Share incertive schemes
Proceeds from shares issued a3 23 - - - 256
Value of employee services - - - - 74 74
Related tax (note 5) - - - - b5 1.5
Purchase of own shares - - - - (1.6} (L6}
Currency translation differences — - - (05) - (0.5)
At 30 September 2009 106.0 6425 (23.9) {C4) 583.1 1307.3
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Hedgrg Trarglation Retzned

caprat reserve reserve eamngs Tota!
£ milion £ mithon £ medion £ mifion £ oillion £ miicn
At | October 2007 104.8 6339 (137) - 4274 1.152.4
Profit for the vear - - - - 832 832
Cash flow hedges
Fair value gains - - 1436 - - 1436
Gains transferred to income statement - - (87.6) - - {87.6)
Garns transferred to property. plant and equiprnent - - (0.3 - - {3
Related tax (note 5) - - (144) - - {14.4)
Share incentive schemes
Proceeds from shares issued 09 63 - - ©3) 69
Value of employee services - - - - 42 42
Related tax (note 5) - - - - {53) 5.3
Purchase of own shares - - - - {4.6) (4.6}
Currency translation diferences - - - 0. - ol
At 30 September 2008 105.7 #402 276 0.1 5046 12782

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of cash fliow hedging instrurents relating to highly probable

transactions that are forecast to occur after year end.

21 Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

2009 2008
£ million £million

Operating proiit 60,1 310
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 554 444
Profit on disposal of property. plart and equipment (7.5} ©.n
Profit on disposat of assets held for sale {11.0} -
Amartisation of intangible assets 4.4 25
Share-based payments 7.4 4.2
Denvative financral instruments — time value 03 26
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (6.2) {(34)
Changes in working capital and non-current deferred income:
Decrease n trade and other receivables 32 101
Increase iy trede and other payables 104.9 1129
(Decrease) / increase in provisions (27.8) 43.8
Increase in other non-cument assets (1.6) 0.3)
Increase in derivative financial instruments 09 (5.3)
Decrease in non-curren: deferred income: (16.2) (18.0}

164.5 2904
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22 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds / (debt)

} October Loan iave 30 Septermber
2008 ifflerences costs Cash flows 2005
£ rition £ mizon Lmlon £ mion £ meon
Cash and cash equivalents 6322 7 - 1447 7886
Money market deposits 2303 270 - 290 2863
8625 387 - 1737 10749
Bank loans (524.9) (14.0) ] (473.7) (10107
Finance lease obligatons (162.0) (11.5) - 3.6 {1095}
(6269) (25.5) t9 {470.1) (1.1206)
Net funds / (debt) {non-GAAP measure} 235.6 132 1.9 (296.4) (45.7)

23 Acquisition of GB Airways

On 31 january 2008, easylet acquired |00% of the share capital of and voting rights in GB Airways. At 30 September 2008 the fair values of assets acquired

and habities assumed were determined on a provisional basis. These provisional fair values and subsequent adjustments made are as follows:

Provisional

farvake Far value
Lmon Ly on £ myion
im-d:ng nghts 724 - 724
Other intangible assets 25 - 25
Property. plant and equipment 834 {0%) 815
Cther non-current assets 27 - 27
Assets held for sale 300 - 300
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 556 - 556
Cash and cash equivalents 151 - 15.1
Current liabllities, excluding borrowings and overdrafts (31.8) 19 (89.7)
Overdrafts 3.7 - (&)
Borrewings (55.) - (5%.1)
Deferred tax liabilities (220) 03 217
Mainterarice provisions i . (6.1) {65) {130}
Net assets acqured - 792 (5.6) 736
S:zoodwill 502 56 55.8
T T 1294 - 1294
Purchase consideration
Intial consideration pard 1035
Deferred consideration paid 26
Direct acquisition costs 4.3
1294
Cash and cash equivalents acquired {15.1)
Overdrafts acquired 37
Net cash outflow 1180

Adjustments made since 30 September 2008, but within twele months of the acquisition date, principally relate to mantenance provisions in respect
of leased aircraft, Fair values are now final and no further adjustments may be made.
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To report these adjustments in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 3 *"Business Comnbinations™, the consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2008

has been rastated as follows:

Frevousy
reported Adustroents. Restatea
£ miaon £ mdon £ mbon
Goodwil 359.8 Sé 3654
Assets held for sale {included on acquisition as property, plant and equipment) 195.8 09 1949
Current tax liabilities 75.1) 1% 732
Maintenance provisions (current portion) (49.0) (6.9) {559)
Deferred tax liabities (108.1) 03 (107.8)
24 Financial instruments
Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The farr values of finanaial assets and liabilities, together with the carmyng value at each reporting date are as follows:
Arnortised cost Held at far vae
Loans and Financial Cash flow Held for Non-financial Carying Fair
receivables liabiities trading instruments value value
At 30 September 2009 £ million £ milson £ railion £ rrifiion £ mition £ miffion £ milfion
Financial assets
Loan notes 126 - - - - 12.6 129
Restricted cash 723 - - - - 723 723
Orther non-cument assets 5946 - - - 34 617 82.7
Drerivative financial assets - - 631 127 - 758 758
Trade and other receivables 1931 - - - 487 241.8 21418
Cash and money market deposits 10749 - - - - 1.074.% 1.074.9
financial liabilities
Trade and other payatles - 33846 - - 4121 750.7 750.7
Borrowings - |.1205 - - - 11204 1323
Denvatve financal irabiities - - 937 - - 937 937
Amortsed cost Heid & farvace
Loars and Fnancal Cash fiow el for Mon-francal Caryirg Far
At 30 Septermber 2008 rezem mﬁ £ meien £mcon m?:»ﬁ;: £ .I‘SZ {rv:al‘a;
Financial assets
Loan notes 120 - - - - 120 123
Restricted cash 66.2 - - - - 66.2 66.2
Other non-cument assets £0.0 - - - 1. &1 &l.l
Denvatve financial assets - - I 164 1.4 - 1178 1178
Trade and other recewables 1875 - - - 494 2369 23659
Cash and money market deposits 8625 - - - - 8625 8625
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - 304.4 - - 3485 5530 6530
Borrowings - 6269 - - - 6269 6278
Dervatve financal labilities - - 763 - - 763 763

Fair value calculation methodology

Derivative financial instrumenits comprise forward contracts and {in the comparative penod only) zero cost collars, and are valued based on market rates at
each year end, Where carrying value does not equal fair value, the far value has been estimated by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest rates and by
applying year end exchange rates. For ali other financial instruments far value approximates to canying value.

Non-financial instruments represent amounts recagrised in the balance sheet for the fine items disclosed above that do not meet the definition of a financial
instrument and are disclosed to permit reconciliation of the carmying values of financial instruments to fine itemns presented 1n the balance sheet
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24 Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of derivative financial instruments

At 30 September 2009 O::m 3 mAfIT:::: Lfﬁ?‘éi

Designated as cash flow hedges

Forward US dollar contracts 8742 399 (6.9)

Forwarg euro contracts 2000 Q.1 (154

Forward jet fuel contracis b2 231 714

Designated as held for trading

Forward US dollar contracts 8250 127 -
758 (23.7)

Less non-current portion;

Forward contracts 7.8 (2.6)

Current portion 68.0 (?1.1)

At 30 September 2008 Qn':m; £ i“g: o

Designated as cash flow hedges

Forward US dolfar contracts 18742 100.7 -

Forward euro contracts 4400 34 (11

Forward Swiss franc contacts 1000 - @1

Zero cost US dollar collars 720 06 -

Forward jet fue! contracts 07 1.7 {75.1)

Designated as held for trading

Forward US dollar contracts 3180 14 -
1178 (76.3)

Less non-current, portion:;

Forwand contracts 213 ©0.3)

Cumrent portion 96.5 (760)

For currency cortracts. quantity represents the nominal value of currency contracts held, disclased in the contract cumency. For jet fuel contracts, guantity

represents contracted metnc tonnes.
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Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

All denvatives to which hedge accounting is appfied are designaied as cash flow hedges, with only the intrinsic value being designated for option instrumens.
Changes in fair value are recognised directly in shareholders' furds. 1o the extent that they are effective, with the ineffective portion being recognised in the

income statement Where the hedged item results in a non-financial asset or liability, the accumulated gaing and losses previously recognised in shareholders’
funds are included in the carrying value of that asset or liability. Othenwise accumulated gains and losses are recogrised in the Income statement in the same

perod i which the hedged items affects the income staternent.

easylet uses forward contracts and zero cost calfars to hedge transaction cunvency sk, jet fuel price nsk and surplus euro and Swiss franc menetary balances,
Transaction currency risk includes capital expenditure, lease payments, debt repayments and fuel payments, Where these hedges are assessed as highly
effective, gains and losses are deferred in shareholders' funds and transferred to the income staterment or cost of preperty, plant and egquipment when

the related cash flow oceurs. The cumulative net gains / (losses) deferved in shareholders' funds and their expected maturities are as follows:

At 30 September 2009 wm?r:uﬁ:: IZ%:?&EZ? cmTi:ﬁ?]}\
Hedges of transaction currency risk 134 t.8 15.2
Hedges of jex fuel price nsk (53.1) 47 (48.4)
(39.7) 6.5 (33.2)
Related deferred tax 93
Net losses . (23.9)
At 30 September 2008 M on Zon o e
Hedges of transaction cumency nsk o T R E Y T
Hedges of jet fuel price nsk (67.3) 38 (635)
S 187 95 32
Refated deferred tax (1C.6)
Net gains ) 7756
The amount deferred and recognised in shareholders’ funds during each financial year is disclosed in note 20.
Amaounts recorded in the income statement were as follows:
2009 2008
£ milicn £ mlion
Gains / (losses) on cash flow hedges recyclec from shareholders’ funds into income staternent captions:
Revenue (30.5) -
Fuel (20%.3) 884
Maintenance 1.3 (02)
Orther costs 1.4 -
Profit on disposal of assets held for sale (44) -
Aurrgraft lease costs 132 (22)
Undesignated portion of losses on cash flow hedges (time value) 0y (2.6)
(286) 83.4

The amount transferred to property, plant and equipment from shareholders’ funds during the peried is a gain of £859 mulkon {2008: gain of £0.3 mulkan).

Changes in the far vaiue of options atributable to time value represent the undesignated portion of the gan or loss and are charged directly to the

ncome statement,




84 easyJetplc Annual report and accounts 2009

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

24 Financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives designated as held for trading

easylet has US dotiar net monetary labifities at the balance sheet date of £518.7 million (2008: £181.0 million). easyjet has no other significant cumency net
monetary exposure at each batance sheet date. In accordance with |AS 2|, monetary assets and lizbiities are revalued using exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, This exposure 15 managed by the use of forward foreign exchange contracts.

Net US dollar monetary liabilities at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2009 2008

£ milion ] £ mrthon

Cash and money market deposits 559.7 4325
Borowings (9359} {4515
Maintenance provisions (180.8}) {1019
Crher 383 (58.1
(518.7} {810

Amounts recorded in the income statement in respect of revaluation of the monetary assets and liabilities and the gains and losses on denvatives designated
as held for trading are as follows:

2008
£ million £ mition
Operating profit
Unrealised revaluation gains on non-derivative financial instruments 309 155
Unrealised revaluation losses on other monetary assets and liabilities (260) {135}
Realised foreign exchange losses on finandial instrurments {164) (6.7}
Urrealised gains on derivatives 1.3 1.4
Realised gains on derivatives 16.6 108
6.4 75
Net finance (charges) / income
Unrealised revaluation gans on other financal instruments 12.8 Q.7
Unrealised gains on derivatives 10.1 0.3
Realised (losses) / gans on derivatives (18.8) 33
4.1 43
Net pains 105 I1.8

25 Financial risk and capital management

easylet is exposed 10 financiat risks including fluctuations in exchange rates, jet fuel prices and interest rates. Financial risk rmanagement aims to limit these
market risks with selected dervative hedging instruments being used for this purpose. easylet policy is not to trade in dervatives but to use the instruments
10 hedge amticipated exposure. As such, easylet is not exposed to market risk by using derivatives as any gains and losses ansing are offset by the outcome
of the undertying exposure being hedged. In addition to market risks, easylet is exposed 10 credit and liquidity risk.

The Board is responsible for setting financial risk and capita! management policies and objectives which are implemented by the treasury function on

a day-to-day basis. The policy outlines the approach to risk managernent and also states the instruments and time penods which the treasury function is
authorised to use in managing financial risks, The poficy is under ongoing review to ensure best practice in light of developments in the financial markets,
There have been no changes to the policy in the current year.

Capital management
The objective of capital management is 10 ensure that easylet is abie to continue as a going concern whilst delivering shareholder expectations of a strong
caprtal base as well as retuning benefits for other stakeholders and optimising the cost of capital.

easylet manages its capital structure in response to changes in both economic conditions and strategic objectives. The cash and net debt position, 1ogether
with the matunty profie of existing debt, 1s monitored to ensure the conunuity of funding, During the year, funding totafing $217 miion for seven A320
arcraft was put in place and utilised. On 16 November 2009 lease funding for a further six A320 arcraft totaling $222 mfion was agreed.

The principal measure used by easylet to manage capftal risk is the geanng ratio of debt (defined as debt plus seven tmes aircraft operating lease payments
less cash, including money market deposits and restricted cash} to shareholders' funds. Gearning increased in the year from 28.8% 1o 37.6%, principally due 1
the acquisiton of new aircraft and the strengthening of the US dollar against stering,
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Liquidity risk management

The objactive of easylet's liquidity risk management is 1o ensurs sufficient cash resources and the avallability of funding as required. easyjet holds fimancial
assets either for which there is a liquid market or which are expected to generate cash inflows that are available to meet liguidity needs. In addition, easylet
has committed undrawn bank facilities of $528 millon (2008: $1,135 million), being a $250 miflion revalving credt fzcility and a remaining $278 million from
facilities of $337 millior put in place in Decernber 2007, The cash, cash equivalent. restricted cash balances ang money market deposits at 30 September
2009 totalled £1,147.2 miflion (2008: £928.7 million). easylet continues 1o hold significant cash and liquid funds to mitigate the impact of potential business
disruption events with Board approved policy stating an absolute minimum level of liquidity that must be maintained at all times. Surplus funds are invested,
in line with Board approved policy, in high quality short-term liquid instruments, usually money market funds or bank deposits.

The maturity profie of easylet's financial liabilities based on the remaining contractual maturities is set out below. The analysis represents undiscounted gross
anticipated future cash flows.

Within Cver
30 September 2009 € rlwllyle:r: 'Eﬁﬁi’i zzsn:ﬁi::ﬁn csmﬁzﬁ
Bonrowings 138.5 150.5 4189 525.1
Trade and other payables 33856 - - -
Derivative contracts — receipts (1482.2) (217.7) - -
Dervative contracts — payments §1.541.3 2328 - -

Wahn Orver
30 September 2008 £ rlnuﬁr: ‘Ezm"aﬁﬁ Ezsm":ie';?\ &ffﬁﬁ
Borrowings 855 963 2512 296.0
Trade and cther payables 3041 - - -
Dervative contracts — receipts (1,7599) (3369) - -
Derivative contracts — payments 17296 3103 - -

Credit risk management

easylet is exposed to credit risk arising from liquid funds, derwative financial instruments and trade and other receivables. Credit risk ranagernent aims

to reduce the risk of counterparty default through limiting aggregate credit exposure to any one indvidual counterparty, based on its credit rating. Such
counterparty exposures are regularly reviewed and adjusted as necessary. Accordingly, the possibility of matenal loss arising in the event of non-performance
by counterparties is considered to be unlikely.

Credit sk is limited to the carrying amount recogrised at the balance sheet date. Disclosure relating to the credt quality of trade and other receivables is
detailed in note 12, The ¢redit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks
with high quality external credit ratings. For deposits with financial institutions, internal imits are placed on the maxirmum exposure to individual
counterparties and a mimimum external credit rating of A s regured.

Foreign currency risk management

The principal exposure to currency exchange rates arises from fluctuations in both the US dollar and euro rates which impact operating, financing and
investing activities. The aim of foreign currency risk management is 10 reduce the impact of exchange rate volatility on the resuits of easylet. Foreign exchange
exposure arsing from transactions in various currences is reduced through a policy of matching, as far as possible. receipts and payments in each ndividual
currency. Ary remaining significart anticipated exposure is managed through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts and zero cost collars. No new
zero cost collars were put in place during the year ended 30 September 2009, and all existing positions rmatured prior to 30 September 2003. In addition.
easylet has substantial US dollar balarice sheet liabilties, partly offset by holding US doftar cash: any residual net liabifiy 1s managed through the use of forward
foreign exchange contracts,

Financing and interest rate risk management
interest rate cashflow risk arises on floating rate borrowings and cash investments.

Interest rate risk management policy aims to provide certainty in a proportion of financing while retaining the opportunity to benefit from interest rate
reductions. Interest rate policy is used to achieve the desired mix of fixed and floating rate debt. All borrowings are at floating irterest rates repricing every
three to six months. A signilicant proportion of the US dollar loans are matched with US dollar cash, with the cash being invested to coincide with the
reprcing of the debt. Operating leases are a mix of ficed and floating rates. Of the operating leases in place at 30 September 2009 approximately 60%

of lease payments were based on fixed interest rates and 40% were based on floating interest rates (2008: 60% fixed, 40% foating).

All debt is asset related, reflecting the capital intensive nature of the aidine industry and the attractiveness of aircraft as security to lenders. These factors are
also reflected in the medium-term profile of easyjet’'s borrowings and operating leases. Curing the year four aircraft were cash acquired (2008 13 aircreft).
Committed financing is in place for up to 21 of the 27 aircraft due to be delivered dunng the year to 30 September 2010,
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25 Financial risk and capital management (continued)

Fuel price risk management

easylet is exposed 1o fuel pnce risk The objective of the fuel price nsk management policy 1 to provide protecuon against sudden and significant increases
in jet fuel prices thus mitgating volatifity in the income statement in the short term. in arder to manage the risk exposure, forward contracts are used in fine
with Board approved policy to hedge between 50% and 80% of estimated exposures up to |2 months in advance, and to hedge a smaller percentage of
esumated usage up 1o 24 months in advance. In exceptional market conditions, the Board may accelerate or limit the mplementation of the hadging pohcy.

Market risk sensitivity analysis

Financial instruments affected by market nsks include borrowings, deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and derivative financial instruments. The
following sensitivity analysis illustrates the sersitivity of such finandial instruments to changes in relevant foreign exchange rates, interest rates and fuel prices.

it shoutd be noted that the sensitivity analysis reflects the impact on profit or loss after tax for the year and shareholders' funds on financiat instruments held
at the reporting date. It does not reflect changes in revenue or costs that may result from changing currency rates, interest rates or fuel prices. Each sensitivity
is calculated based on all other variables remaring constant. The analysis below is considered represeniative of easyfet’s exposure over the 12 month period,

The currency sensitvity analysis is based on easylet’s foreign currency financal Instruments held at each balance sheet date taking inte account forward
exichange contracts anc zero cost collars that ofiset effects from changes in cumrency exchange rates. The increased senstivity in the LS dollar and eure rate
represents sterling weakening against each variable currency with the — 10% sensitiaty showing a stronger sterfing sensitvty. The interest rate analysss assurmes
a 1% change in interest rates over the reporting year apphed ta end of year financiat instruments, The fisel price sensitty analysis 15 based on easyfet's fuel-
refated denvative financial instruments held at the end of each reporting penod. The sensitivity applied to both currency rates and the fuel pnce 15 based

on a reasonably possible change in the rate applied to the velue of financial instruments at the balance sheet date.

Currency rates
) Interest rates Fuel prce
At 30 September 2009 v dou::rr:eflg’: v d°"?f r;i:Ig E”fn:nllﬁ Euamr;illﬁ ""éﬁﬁ?"m l%m
Income statement impact: gain/{loss) 17.9 (13.8) ) 09 04 -
Impact on shareholders’ funds: increase/(decrease) 449 (37.6) (14.5) 120 - 34
Currency rates
Irtarest rates Fuel pree
US doftar +10% U5 doflar - 105 Euo +10% Euro ~10% 1% rerease 10% narease
At 30 September 2008 £ mion £ miion £ millon £ mon £ eon Ly n
Income statement impact gain/(loss) (34) 29 23 {19) 24 -
Impact on shareholders’ funds: increase/(decrease) 86.8 (70.5) (27.1) 221 - 276

The impact of a 1% increase im interest rates and a 10% increase in the fuel pnce 1s disclosed above, A caresponding decrease in each of the rates results n
an equal and opposite iImpact on the income statemeant and shareholders’ funds in both reporting penods,

26 Leasing commitments
Commitments under operating leases

Acarat Ctber assets
2009 2000 2009 2005
£ millign £ mon £ milkon £ rmusgn

Total commitments under non-carkellable operating leases due:
Not later than one year 0.0 1182 23 25
Later than one year and not later than ive years 2230 2677 37 44
Later than five years 379 728 35 4.1
3819 4587 9.5 Ho

easylet holds 68 aircraft (2008: 84 arcraft) under operating ieases, with initial lease terms ranging from seven to ten years easyjet s contractually ob¥iged
to carry out maintenance on these alrcraft and the cost of this is provided based on the number of fiying hours and cycles operated. Further details are given
in the ¢ritical accounting policies section of note 1.
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Commitments under finance leases

2009 2008
£ million £ mihon
Minimum fease payments fall due as follows:
Not later than one year 65 69
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 285
Later than five years 92.3 914
127.6 1268
Future finance charges on finance leases (7.7 (24.8)
1059 162.0

Carrying value of finance lease liabilities

easylet holds six arcraft under finance leases with ten year intial lease teimns, Further details are grven in note 15,

27 Contingent liabilities

easylet 1s involved 1 vanous disputes o litgaton in the nomal course of business. Whilst the result of such disputes cannot be predicted with certanty,

management considers that the ulumate resalution of these disputes will not have a material effect on easyjet’s financal position, results or cash flows.

At 30 Seprember 2007 easylet had outstanding letters of credit and performance bonds totalling £29.4 milion of which £28.7 million expires on or before
30 September 20:0. The far value of these instruments was approximately equal o their canying value,
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

30 September 30 September-

2006 2008
Netes. £ miion £ mdon
Non-current assets
Investments in subsiciary undertakings b 65.7 7002
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 1,049.0 3624
Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (1.7 (2277)
Current tax labilites 28) -
Other payables (1.7} -
(6.2) -
Net current assets 10428 1347
Net assets 11085 83459
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital c 106.0 1057
Share premium c 642.5 6402
Retained earnings c 3600 890
_ 1,1085 8349

The accounts on pages 88 to 91 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 16 MNovember 2009 and signed on behalf of
the Bcard.

ﬂ@w’ﬂ’ nc A L\NLA Hermee

Sir Davd Michels Andrew Hamrison
Director Director
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septernber
2009 2008
Motes £ millien £ mifhon
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used by operations d (4.6) {125)
Interest received 20 5.3
MNet cash used by operating activities (2.6 (7.2)
Cash fiows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 26 72

MNet movement in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - -
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE
SHEET AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT

a) Income statement and statement of recognised income and expense

Im accordance wath section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own income statement

The Company's proft for the year was £263.6 million (2008: £15.2 million}. included i this amount are dvdends receved of £261.7 million (2008: £ni).
The Company recognised no other income or expenses in erther the current or pnor year.

The Corpany has eight employees at 30 September 2009 (2008: seven). These are the Non Executive Directors of easyjet plc; their remuneration is paid
by easylet Airline Company Limited. The Executive Directors of easyjet ple are employed and paid by easylet Airline Company Limited, Details of Directors’
remuneraton are disclosed in the Report on Directors' remuneration and in note 4 to the consolidated accounts.

b) Investments in subsidiary undertakings
investrents in subsidiary undertakings were as follows:

2009 2003

£ million £ rmuon

At | October 7002 £94.6

Capital contributions to subsidiaries 74 56
Capital distributions made by subsidiaries (641.9)

At 30 September 65.7 700.2

During the year a group reorganisation was effected whereby a number of subsidiaries distrbuted their retaned earmings and the majority of their share
capnal to easyjet ple. These distributions, being satisfied by the transfer of amounts due from another subsidiary undertzking, are nen-cash transactions and
have therefore been excluded from the Company cash flow statement.

The principal subsidiary undertakings, all of which are included in the consofidated accounts, are shown below. A full fist of Group companies wil be included
in the Company's next annual return, in accordance with Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006.

Courtry of incorporaten Prncipal actvity Class and percertage of orthnary shares beld
easyjet Airdine Commum‘wted England and Wales Airline operator 100%
easylet Swizerfand SA Swatzerand Aurline operator 49%
easylet Aircraft Company Limned Cayman Islands Aircraft trading and leasing 100%
easyjet Stering Limited Cayrnan slands Aurcraft trading and leasing | Q0%
easyjet Leasing Limited Cayman lslands Areraft trading and leasing 100%
easyjet Malta Limited Malta Aurcraft trading and leasing 100%

The Company has a 49% interest in easyjet Switzerland SA with an option that expires in 2014 to acquire the rermaining 51%, easylet Switzerfand SA is
consofidated as a subsidiary on the basis that the Company exercises a dominarit influence aver the uncertaking. A minority interest has not been reflecied
in the accounts on the basis that holders of the remaining 51 % of the shares have no entitlement to any dividends from that holding and the Company has
an eption to acquire those shares for a predetermined consideration.
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¢) Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

Share Snare Retaned
capial prermim edrTngs Tetx
Cm™on L oon £moon reelon
At | October 2008 1057 6402 890 B349
Profit for the year - - 2636 2536
Share incentive schemes
Proceeds from shares issued 03 23 - 26
Maovement in reserves for employee share scheme - - 74 74
At 30 September 2009 1060 6425 3600 1.108.5
Share Share Betared
cepual pr&rTuLT. £arMiNgs Tota'
£ on L ion Lmoon £ m2on
At | October 2007 1048 6339 682 8069
Profit for the year - - 152 152
Share incentive schemes
Proceeds from shares issued 0% 63 - 72
Maovement in reserves for employee share scheme - - 56 56
At 30 Septemnber 2008 105.7 5402 83.0 8349
The disclosures required in respect of share capital are shown in note 18 to the consolidated accounts.
d) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations
200 2008
£ miflion £mion
Operating profit 2644 99
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Unrealsed foreign exchange differences (8.5) (10.1)
Dandends recewved from subsidiary undertakings (261.7) -
Changes in working capital:
Decrease in amounis due from subsidiary undertakings 2170 5382
Increase in amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (215.8) (550.5)
(4.8) (12.5)

e) Guarantees and contingent liabilities

The Company has given a formal undertaking to the Civil Aviation Authority to guarantea the payrment and discharge of al kabifities of easyjet Aurdine
Company Limited, a subsiciary of the Company. The guarantee 1s required for that company to mainiain its operaung licence under Regutation 3 of the
Licensing of Air Camers Regulations 1992,

The Company has ssued a guarantee in favour of easyjet Aurine Company Limited. a subsidiary undertaking, in refaten to the processing of credit card
transactions, and also in respect of hedging transactions camied out according to treasury policy.

The Company has guaranteed the contractual obligations of easyjet Leasing Lirmited, a subsidiary undertakang, in respect of its contractual obligatons to
Auirbus SAS in respect of the supply of Arbus 320 family arcraft

The Comparny has guaranteed the repayment of bomowings that financed the acquisition of aircraft by subsidiary undertakings, The Company has also
guaranteed the payment obligations for the lease of aircraft by subsidiary undertalangs.

The Company has guaranteed certain letters of credit which have been issued by a bank on behalf of subsidiary undertalangs.

f) Related party transactions
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings. which principally relate to the provision of funding within the Group, are caried out on an armi's-length basis.
Oustanding balances are placed on intercompany accounts with no specified credit period, are unsecured, and bear market rates of interest.

In additon, easylet has a key relatonship with easyGroup IP Licensing, which owns the easylet brand.

=2




Annual repon and accounts 2009

GLOSSARY

Overview

Busingss review

Governance

AcCcounts

= Ciher infarmation

Aircraft owned/leased at end of period

Available Seat Kilometres (ASK)
Awverage fare
Block hours

Cost per ASK

Cost per seat

Cost per seat. excluding fuel
EBITDAR

Load faclor

Operated aircraft utilisation
Other costs

Passengers

Profit before tax per seat

Return on equity

Revenue

Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK)
Revenue per ASK

Revenue per seat

Seats flown

Sector

Number of aircraft owned or on lease arrangements of over one monih's duration at the end of
the period

Seats flown muliiplied by the number of kilometres flown,

Passenger and ancilary revenue divided by passengers.

Hours of service for aircraft. measured from the tme that the aircraft leaves the terminal at the
departure airport to the time that it anives at the terminal at the destination airport.

Revenue less profit before tax, divided by available seat kilometres.
Revenue less profit before tax, divided by seats flown.
Revenue, less profit before tax., plus fuel casts, divided by seats fiown.

Earmings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortisation, arcrat lease costs, and profit or loss on
disposal of aircraft.

Nurnber of passengers as a percentage of number of seats flown. The load factor is not weighted
for the effect of varying sector lengths.

Average number of block hours per day per aircraft operatec,

Adrninistrative and operational costs not reported elsewhere, ncluding some employee costs.
compensation paid to passengers, exchange gains and losses and the profit or loss on the disposal
of property plant and equipment,

Nurnber of eamed seats fiown. Eamed seats cornprises seats sold to passengers (including no-
shows), seats provided for promotional purposes and seats provided to staff for business travel.

Profit before tax divided by seats flown,

Proftt for the year divided by the average of opening and dosing shareholders’ funds.

The surn of revenue from ticket safes and ancillary revenue.

Number of passengers multiplied by the number of kilornetres those passengers were flown.
Revenue divided by available seat kilometres.

Revenue divided by seats flown.

Seats available for passengers.

A one-way revenue fight.




